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PART I

ITEM
1.

BUSINESS

As used herein, references to the “Company,” “Franklin Holding,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Franklin Credit Holding
Corporation (“FCHC”), collectively with its subsidiaries (including Franklin Credit Management Corporation);
references to “FCMC” refer to Franklin Credit Management Corporation, the Company’s servicing business subsidiary;
references to the “Legacy Credit Agreement” refer to the Legacy Credit Agreement between certain subsidiaries of
FCHC (but not FCMC), on the one hand, and The Huntington National Bank (“Huntington” or the “Bank”) and its
participating lenders, on the other hand, dated as of March 31, 2009, as amended, which covers the debt incurred by
the Company prior to December 2007; references to the “Licensing Credit Agreement” refer to the Licensing Credit
Agreement between FCHC, FCMC and the Bank, dated March 31, 2009, as amended, which extends a line of credit
and letter of credit facility to FCMC and FCHC; references to the “Legacy Debt” refer to the indebtedness owed to the
Bank and its participating lenders under the Legacy Credit Agreement; references to the “Unrestructured Debt” refer to
the indebtedness owed to the Bank under the Company’s 2004 master credit agreement with the Bank and previously
subject to the original terms of the forbearance agreements entered into with the Bank in December 2007 and
subsequent amendments thereto until the expiration pursuant to their terms on September 30, 2011; and references to
the “Total Debt” refer to the aggregate Legacy Debt and Unrestructured Debt, which is the total indebtedness owed to
the Bank and its participating lenders under agreements to which the Company and/or its subsidiaries is a party.

Franklin Holding is a Delaware corporation incorporated on July 30, 2008.  Following a corporate reorganization that
took effect in December 2008 and a debt restructuring completed in March 2009 with the Bank, which are described
in greater detail below, Franklin Holding’s operating business has been conducted solely through FCMC.  FCMC is a
specialty consumer finance company primarily engaged in the servicing and resolution of performing, reperforming
and nonperforming residential mortgage loans, including specialized loan collection and recovery servicing, and in the
due diligence, analysis, pricing and acquisition of residential mortgage portfolios, for third parties.  FCMC is a
Delaware corporation incorporated on February 24, 1988.

Overview

Recent Developments: Anticipated Bankruptcy Filing of FCHC and Separation of FCMC from FCHC

Subject to the final approval of the Bank, the Bank agreed as part of certain implementing agreements regarding a
transaction in September 2010 (the “September 2010 Transaction”) (as described in Note 11 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements) to a spinoff of the ownership of FCMC.  Within the next several weeks simultaneously with or
shortly after the commencement of a potential bankruptcy case, we anticipate beginning the process of spinning off
FCMC through the filing of a voluntary petition for bankruptcy relief (the “Bankruptcy Filing”) and pre-packaged plan
of reorganization (the “Plan of Reorganization”) under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in the U.S. Bankruptcy
Court for the District of New Jersey (the “Bankruptcy Court”), subject to having first obtained the consent of the only
eligible voting creditor, the Bank, which we anticipate receiving and otherwise satisfying the requirements of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code.  Neither FCMC nor any other subsidiaries of FCHC intend to file for bankruptcy.  It is anticipated
that following the Bankruptcy Filing, FCHC will continue to operate in the ordinary course of business as a
“debtor-in-possession” under the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court and in accordance with the applicable provisions
of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code and the orders of the Bankruptcy Court.  FCHC will not request the appointment of a
case trustee or examiner.  Vendors of FCHC will be paid for goods furnished and services provided in the ordinary
course of business during the pendency of the bankruptcy.  FCHC has incurred and we anticipate will continue to
incur significant costs, primarily professional fees, associated with the Bankruptcy Filing.  The Plan of
Reorganization, if successfully consummated, would result in a controlled liquidation of FCHC with the proceeds of
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the liquidation paid to the creditors of the Company, as received.
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As a result of the Bankruptcy Filing, FCHC will be required to file various documents with, and provide certain
information to, the Bankruptcy Court, including statements of financial affairs, schedules of assets and liabilities, and
monthly operating reports in forms prescribed by the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, as well as certain financial information
on an unconsolidated basis.  Such materials will be prepared according to requirements of Federal bankruptcy
law.  While these documents and the information contained therein provide then-current information required under
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, they are nonetheless unconsolidated, unaudited, and prepared in a format different from
that used in FCHC’s Consolidated Financial Statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and filed under the securities laws.  Accordingly, FCHC believes
that the substance and format will not allow meaningful comparison with its regular publicly-disclosed Consolidated
Financial Statements.  Moreover, the materials to be filed with the Bankruptcy Court will not be prepared for the
purpose of providing a basis for an investment decision relating to FCHC’s securities, or for comparison with other
financial information filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).

The Bankruptcy Filing would constitute events of default under the Legacy Credit Agreement, which in any event is
set to mature on March 31, 2012, and the Licensing Credit Agreement, with the Legacy Debt automatically due and
payable but subject to the automatic stay and other provisions of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code.  Therefore, prior to the
Bankruptcy Filing, FCHC intends to seek from the Bank (i) an agreement to delete FCHC as a party and any
references to FCHC under the Licensing Credit Agreement, with FCHC to have no further rights or obligations as a
borrower thereunder, (ii) a waiver of any defaults under the Licensing Credit Agreement relating to the Bankruptcy
Filing and (iii) a forbearance from the Bank on initiating collection proceedings or exercising its rights and remedies
with respect to the cash collateral of $7.5 million pledged to the Bank under the Legacy Credit Agreement and
Licensing Credit Agreement, until at least September 30, 2012.  Because neither FCHC nor FCMC is an obligor or
guarantor under the Legacy Credit Agreement, FCHC and FCMC are not liable to the Bank for the indebtedness under
the Legacy Credit Agreement, except for the $7.5 million pledged by FCHC and FCMC to the Bank as described
above.

There can be no assurance, however, that (i) FCHC will obtain the consent of the Bank to the Plan of Reorganization
or that the Plan of Reorganization filed with the Bankruptcy Filing to spin off FCMC from FCHC will be confirmed
by the Bankruptcy Court or that there might not be tax, shareholder, legal, regulatory, accounting or other matters that
could prevent the spinoff of FCMC from FCHC or (ii) that FCHC and FCMC will obtain the necessary waivers and
agreements of the Bank with respect to the Legacy Credit Agreement and Licensing Credit Agreement to maintain the
line of credit and letter of credit facility of FCMC for its servicing licenses, which is supported by the $7.5 million of
cash collateral previously pledged to the Bank by FCHC and FCMC, should FCHC make the Bankruptcy Filing.

The primary objective of the Plan of Reorganization is to spin off FCHC’s 80% interest in FCMC to its shareholders in
consideration for FCMC agreeing to pay FCHC the amount equal to the estimated fair market value of FCMC, as
determined by an independent advisory firm, over a period of years, which has not yet been determined.  The potential
benefits of a spinoff of FCMC from FCHC include:

•  enabling FCHC stockholders to potentially retain some value in the Company, which would not be likely without
the spinoff due to Franklin Holding’s significant consolidated losses, significant stockholders’ deficit, inability to
repay its outstanding debt to the Bank, and going concern uncertainty of the consolidated Franklin Holding;

•  enabling the financial markets to appropriately value FCMC as a stand-alone company;
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•  enhancing the ability of FCMC to develop new business opportunities;

•  providing FCMC with potential financing and capital raising opportunities that are not available to FCMC as long
as it is a part of Franklin Holding; and,

•  attracting and retaining qualified employees essential to FCMC’s business growth and success.

New Servicing Agreement

On February 8, 2012, FCMC entered into a terms agreement (the “Terms Agreement”) with Bosco Credit II Trust Series
2010-1, a Delaware statutory trust, for the subservicing of a pool of approximately seven thousand subordinate-lien
residential mortgage loans.  The sole depositor and sole certificate-holder of the trust is Bosco Credit II, LLC (“Bosco
II”), an entity of which the Chairman and President of FCHC and FCMC, Thomas J. Axon, is the sole member.

The Terms Agreement is effective April 1, 2012, or such other date as mutually agreed by FCMC and the trust, with a
monthly servicing fee principally based on a percentage of monthly net collections.  Pursuant to the Terms
Agreement, the subservicing of the mortgage loans are governed by a loan servicing agreement dated and made
effective as of November 19, 2010 between FCMC and the trust (under which FCMC already has been subservicing
approximately nineteen thousand loans).  FCMC shall subservice the loans subject to customary terms, conditions and
servicing practices for the mortgage servicing industry and is entitled to reimbursement of certain third-party fees and
expenses incurred by FCMC in the servicing and collection of the loans.  The subservicing of the loans may be
terminated without cause and penalty upon thirty days prior written notice.

The Company’s Business

Investment in REIT Securities – Dividend.  The Company’s investment in preferred and common stock in a REIT
owned by the Bank (the “REIT Securities”) was surrendered to the Bank on May 23, 2011.

On March 31, 2011, the Company received declared dividends on the REIT Securities in the amount of $63.8 million,
of which $31.9 million was recognized as Dividend income in the three months ended March 31, 2011, representing
dividends paid for the last two quarters of 2010 and the first quarter of 2011.  The dividends paid on March 31, 2011
for the three quarterly periods ending December 31, 2011 in the amount of $31.9 million, which were deferred, were
recognized as Dividend income in the three months ended June 30, 2011 due to the surrender of the REIT Securities to
the Bank on May 23, 2011.  As a result of dividends paid on March 31, 2011 for the last two quarters of 2010 and the
first quarter of 2011 and the surrender and transfer of the Company’s investment in the REIT Securities to the Bank, a
total of $63.8 million of dividends that were paid by the REIT on March 31, 2011 were recognized as Dividend
income during the six months ended June 30, 2011.

Termination of Interest Rate Swap Agreements.  On January 25, 2011, the Bank declared an early termination of all
remaining interest rate swaps due to a failure by the Company to make payments due under the swap agreements.  The
Company’s failure to make these payments was occasioned by insufficient funds available under the Legacy Credit
Agreement as a direct result of the loss of cash flows attributable to the July, September and December 2010 loan
sales by a trust of the Bank (the “Bank’s Trust” or the “Trust”) and the suspension of dividends on the REIT Securities.
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Settlement Agreement with the Bank, Surrender of the Company’s Investment in Preferred and Common Stock of the
Bank’s REIT and Termination of Interest Rate Swap Agreements.  On May 23, 2011, the Company entered into a
settlement agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) with the Bank, a subsidiary of the Bank’s parent, and the Bank’s
lending participants covering the surrender and transfer of the REIT Securities held by the Company, (and pledged as
collateral under the Legacy Credit Agreement), and the early termination of all remaining interest rate swaps, in
exchange for:

•  a waiver of the alleged default under the Company’s Legacy Credit Agreement that the Company had failed to make
certain payments required under certain interest rate hedge agreements (the “Interest Rate Swaps”) with the Bank (the
“Specified Default”);

•  a reduction of the outstanding balance of the Bank’s portion of tranche A debt in the amount of $478 million;

•  full satisfaction of indebtedness relating to the Interest Rate Swaps totaling approximately $14.7 million;

•  an amendment to the Legacy Credit Agreement and associated pledge agreement (as described below);

•  a discharge of the limited recourse guarantee of FCHC under the Legacy Credit Agreement;

•  an amendment to the Licensing Credit Agreement of FCHC and FCMC, dated as of March 2009, as amended (as
described below); and,

•  a comprehensive release of claims by the Company in favor of the Bank and its lending participants.

As a result of the full satisfaction of indebtedness relating to the Interest Rate Swaps, the Company recognized a gain
on the settlement of the swap liability totaling approximately $14.7 million in the quarter ended June 30, 2011.

Contemporaneously with the execution of the Settlement Agreement, the Company entered into the agreements
described below.

Legacy Credit Agreement.  The Legacy Credit Agreement was amended to (i) delete FCHC as a guarantor, (ii) waive
the Specified Default, and (iii) permit the transfer to FCHC of assets, amounting principally to approximately
$370,000 in cash, of an inactive limited purpose wholly-owned subsidiary, and the subsequent dissolution of that
subsidiary.

The pledge agreement between FCHC and the Bank dated March 31, 2009, as amended, which was entered into in
connection with the Legacy Credit Agreement (the “Pledge Agreement”), was further amended to release the equity
interest in the limited purpose wholly-owned subsidiary that had been pledged by FCHC to the
Bank.  However, FCHC remains a pledgor, other than with respect to the interests of the limited purpose
wholly-owned subsidiary, under the Pledge Agreement (which includes a pledge of 100% of the equity interests in all
direct and indirect subsidiaries of FCHC other than FCMC).

The limited recourse guarantee between FCHC and the Bank dated March 31, 2009, which was entered into in
connection with the Legacy Credit Agreement, was released, cancelled and discharged.

6
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Licensing Credit Agreement.  The Licensing Credit Agreement provides for a $1 million line of credit and $6.5
million letter of credit facility from the Bank to FCMC and FCHC.  The Settlement Agreement extended the term of
the Licensing Credit Agreement to September 30, 2012, and deleted the financial covenant that FCHC and FCMC
maintain a minimum amount of net income before taxes.

Expired Forbearance Agreement with the Bank.  Prior to the agreements entered into with the Bank in connection with
the March 31, 2009 restructuring (the “Restructuring Agreements”), our indebtedness was governed by forbearance
agreements and prior credit agreements with the Bank.  Effective as of March 31, 2009, all of our borrowings, with
the exception of the Unrestructured Debt (which totals approximately $38.2 million), are governed by credit
agreements entered into as part of the Restructuring Agreements.  The Unrestructured Debt, which became due and
payable as of September 30, 2011 under the Company’s 2004 master credit agreement with the Bank, was subject to
the original terms of the forbearance agreements entered into with the Bank in December 2007 and subsequent
amendments thereto until the expiration pursuant to their terms on September 30, 2011.  In connection with the
Restructuring Agreements, certain of the forbearance agreements to which subsidiaries of FCHC were parties were
collapsed into the Legacy Credit Agreement while the forbearance agreement covering the Unrestructured Debt (the
“Forbearance Agreement”) remained in place.  Although the Bank under the Forbearance Agreement had agreed not to
exercise certain rights available to it due to the defaults under the 2004 master credit agreement governing the
Unrestructured Debt, such restrictions are no longer effective since the Forbearance Agreement has now expired.  See
Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Due to the previously existing defaults under the 2004 master credit agreement and expiration of the forbearance
period with respect to the Bank’s rights and remedies under that credit agreement, the Bank, with notice, has the right
to call an event of default under the Legacy Credit Agreement but not the Licensing Credit Agreement, which does
not include cross-default provisions that would be triggered by such an event of default under the Legacy Credit
Agreement.  The Bank’s recourse in respect of the Legacy Credit Agreement is limited to the assets and stock of
FCHC’s subsidiaries, excluding the assets and stock of FCMC (except for a second-priority lien of the Bank on $7.5
million of cash collateral held as security under the Licensing Credit Agreement).  The Bank has not exercised the
rights and remedies available to it with respect to the Unrestructured Debt.

FCMC is not obligated to the Bank with respect to the Unrestructured Debt and any references to FCMC in the
Company’s 2004 master credit agreement governing the Unrestructured Debt were amended to refer to Franklin Credit
Asset Corporation (“Franklin Asset”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of FCHC.

The Bank, which holds legal title to the commercial loans governing the Unrestructured Debt, has through
participation agreements transferred 100% of the beneficial interest in the commercial loans to two parties, each
holding a 50% beneficial interest in the commercial loans.  One of the participants is Bosco Credit III, LLC (“Bosco
III”), a related party in which 50% of the membership interests are held by Thomas J. Axon, the Company’s Chairman
and President.

Franklin Credit Holding Corporation (FCHC).  The Company had net income attributed to common stockholders of
$22.2 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, compared with a net loss of $55.3 million for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2010.  The net income in the twelve months of 2011 resulted principally from the
Bank’s REIT declaring and paying dividends on March 31, 2011 for the third and fourth quarters of 2010 and for the
full year of 2011 in the aggregate amount of $63.8 million, all of which was recognized in the six months ended June
30, 2011, and a gain of $14.7 million recognized in the quarter ended June 30, 2011 from the settlement with the Bank
of interest rate swap liabilities.  At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company’s stockholders’ deficit was $827.7
million and $852.9 million, respectively.  See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations.”
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As a result of the Company’s surrender and transfer of the REIT Securities to the Bank in May 2011, the principal
business activity of Franklin Holding predominately consists of specialized mortgage loan collections and recovery
servicing of residential mortgage loan portfolios for third-party investors.  The Company’s specialized mortgage loan
collections and recovery servicing business has been conducted since the corporate reorganization in December 2008
(see below) through FCMC, a subsidiary corporation of FCHC, which is directly owned 80% by FCHC and 20% by
Thomas J. Axon, the Chairman and President of the Company and FCMC.

Except for the mortgage servicing business conducted through FCMC, the business activities of Franklin Holding and
its subsidiary companies following the December 2008 holding company formation and corporate reorganization and
2009 debt restructuring (the “Restructuring” or “March 2009 Restructuring”) principally consisted of making payments on
the Legacy Debt in accordance with the Legacy Credit Agreement.  Payments made on the Legacy Debt generally
were limited to the cash flows received from the Bank’s Trust and from the dividends received on the REIT
Securities.  However, since the September 2010 Transaction (as described in Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements) with the Bank, and until May 23, 2011 when the Company entered into the Settlement Agreement with
the Bank covering the surrender and transfer of the REIT Securities held by the Company (and pledged as collateral
under the Legacy Credit Agreement), payments made on the Legacy Debt generally were limited principally to the
cash flows received from dividends received from the REIT Securities.  As a result of the Company’s surrender and
transfer of the REIT Securities to the Bank, the Company, as of May 2011, was left without what had been essentially
the remaining principal cash-flow generating asset available to service the outstanding principal balance of the Legacy
Debt, and the Company will be unable to pay the remaining principal balance of the Legacy Debt at the maturity of
the Legacy Credit Agreement on March 31, 2012 (or upon earlier termination under the provisions of the Legacy
Credit Agreement).  The Company’s remaining cash flows available to service the outstanding principal balance of the
Unrestructured Debt are solely from the Notes receivable held for sale, net, which at December 31, 2011 amounted to
$2.4 million (50% of which is available to service the Unrestructured Debt).  See Notes 11 and 18 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Prior to December 2007, the Company was primarily engaged in the acquisition and origination of loans for portfolio,
and the servicing and resolution of those portfolios, of performing, reperforming and nonperforming residential
mortgage loans and real estate owned (“REO”) properties, including the origination of subprime mortgage loans.

In December 2008, the Company engaged in a series of transactions (the “Reorganization”) in which the Company
adopted a holding company form of organizational structure, with FCHC serving as the new public-company
parent.  Under the Reorganization, FCHC became the successor issuer to FCMC, and FCMC ceased to have portfolios
of loans and real estate properties and the related indebtedness to the Bank under the Legacy Credit Agreement and
became the Company’s servicing business subsidiary.

Effective March 31, 2009, FCHC and its consolidated subsidiaries, including FCMC, entered into the Restructuring
Agreements with the Bank pursuant to which (i) the Company’s loans, pledges and guarantees under the Legacy Credit
Agreement with the Bank and its participating banks were substantially restructured, (ii) substantially all of the
Company’s portfolio of subprime mortgage loans and owned real estate was transferred to the Bank’s Trust (with the
loans and owned real estate transferred to the Bank’s Trust collectively, referred to herein as the “Portfolio”) in exchange
for trust certificates with certain trust certificates, representing an undivided interest in approximately 83% of the
Portfolio transferred in turn by the Company to a real estate investment trust wholly-owned by the Bank (the Bank’s
Trust or the Trust), (iii) FCMC and FCHC entered into a new credit facility with the Bank (the Licensing Credit
Agreement), and (iv) FCMC entered into a servicing agreement (the “Legacy Servicing Agreement”) with the Bank’s
Trust (the preceding, collectively referred to herein as the Restructuring).
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The Restructuring did not include the Unrestructured Debt portion of the Company’s debt, which became due and
payable in full as of September 30, 2011 and as of December 31, 2011 remains unpaid and totals approximately $38.2
million.  The Unrestructured Debt had been subject to a forbearance agreement, which expired on September 30, 2011
without further extension.

See “Restructuring Agreements with Lead Lending Bank – Forbearance Agreements with Lead Lending Bank” and “Risk
Factors – Risks Related to Our Business.”  See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Franklin Credit Management Corporation (FCMC).  Since the Reorganization that took effect in December 2008 and
the March 2009 Restructuring, the Company’s operating business has been conducted solely through FCMC, a
specialty consumer finance company primarily engaged in the servicing and resolution of performing, reperforming
and nonperforming residential mortgage loans, including specialized loan collection and recovery servicing, and in the
due diligence, analysis, pricing and acquisition of residential mortgage portfolios, for third parties.  FCMC, the
servicing company within Franklin Holding’s consolidated group of companies, has positive net worth, and as a result
of the September 2010 Transaction (discussed below), all of its equity is free from the pledges to the Bank.  Except for
cash collateral of $7.5 million held by FCMC, the Legacy Debt is not an obligation of FCMC.

At December 31, 2011, FCMC had total assets of $27.8 million and had stockholders’ equity of $14.0 million.  Under
Amendment No. 2 to the Licensing Credit Agreement with the Bank, FCMC has available credit under a revolving
loan facility of $1 million and a $6.5 million letter of credit facility with the Bank, and cash collateral securing the
revolving loan and letter of credit facilities of $7.5 million.  The Licensing Credit Agreement expires September 30,
2012. At December 31, 2011, FCMC had no debt outstanding under the revolving line and approximately $4.7 million
of letters of credit under the Licensing Credit Agreement.

The Company, through FCMC, provides specialized servicing, collection and recovery services for third parties that
following the July and September 2010 loan sales by the Bank have been primarily entities related to Mr.
Axon.  Effective September 30, 2010, FCMC has been operating its servicing, collections and recovery business free
of pledges of its stock and free of significant restrictive covenants under the Legacy Credit Agreement.  FCMC and
Mr. Axon are, however, each obligated under an agreement (the “Deferred Payment Agreement”) entered into as part of
the September 2010 Transaction with the Bank to pay the Bank under the Legacy Credit Agreement 10% of the
aggregate value of each monetizing transaction, dividend or other distribution (other than the sale, restructuring or
spinoff, subject to the prior approval of the Bank, by FCHC of its ownership interests in FCMC), prior to March 20,
2019, in excess of a threshold of $4 million.

Mr. Axon directly owns 20% of FCMC, while the remaining 80% of FCMC is owned by FCHC and indirectly by its
public shareholders (including Mr. Axon as a principal shareholder of FCHC).

See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Franklin Credit
Management Corporation (FCMC)” and Notes 11 and 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Potential FCMC Spinoff from FCHC

Subject to the consent of the Bank, the Company anticipates petitioning the Bankruptcy Court through a Bankruptcy
Filing and Plan of Reorganization, to be filed within the next several weeks, for permission to break out and spin off
its separate mortgage servicing subsidiary, FCMC, from Franklin Holding’s consolidated group as a separate
publicly-owned company owned 80% by FCHC shareholders.

There can be no assurance, however, that (i) FCHC will obtain the consent of the Bank to the Plan of Reorganization
or that the Plan of Reorganization filed with the Bankruptcy Filing to spin off FCMC from FCHC will be confirmed
by the Bankruptcy Court or that there might not be tax, shareholder, legal, regulatory, accounting or other matters that
could prevent the spinoff of FCMC from FCHC or (ii) that FCHC and FCMC will obtain the necessary waivers and
agreements of the Bank with respect to the Legacy Credit Agreement and Licensing Credit Agreement to maintain the
line of credit and letter of credit facility of FCMC for its servicing licenses, which is supported by the $7.5 million of
cash collateral previously pledged to the Bank by FCHC and FCMC, should FCHC proceed with the filing of a
bankruptcy petition.

Following such a spinoff of FCMC from FCHC, if successful, the remaining direct and indirect subsidiaries of
Franklin Holding that are obligors under the Legacy Debt will be insolvent and unable to pay off the balance of Total
Debt owed to the Bank or any other creditors.

Going Concern Uncertainty – Franklin Holding

The Company since September 30, 2007 has been and continues to be operating with significant operating losses and
stockholders’ deficit.  At December 31, 2011, the Company’s outstanding indebtedness (the Total Debt), was
approximately $847 million, which consisted of approximately $808.8 million of Legacy Debt due to the Bank and
approximately $38.2 million of Unrestructured Debt, with substantially no remaining income-generating assets (other
than FCMC, which, but for cash collateral of $7.5 million held by FCMC and subject to a second-priority lien of the
Bank, is not liable for the Total Debt); and, consequently, the Company will not be able to pay off the outstanding
balance of the Total Debt.  Further, due to the September 30, 2011 expiration of the Forbearance Agreement, under
which the Bank had agreed not to exercise certain rights available to it due to the defaults under the 2004 master credit
agreement governing the Unrestructured Debt, the Bank is entitled to declare the Unrestructured Debt, and with
notice, the remaining Legacy Debt under the Legacy Credit Agreement (which, in any event is set to mature on March
31, 2012) immediately due and payable.  (The Total Debt is not an obligation of FCMC.)  Without the continued
cooperation and assistance from the Bank, the consolidated Franklin Holding’s ability to continue as a viable business
is in substantial doubt, and it may not be able to continue as a going concern.  Franklin Holding’s financial statements
for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are prepared assuming the Company continues as a going concern
and do not include any adjustment that might result from its inability to continue as a going concern.

Subject to the consent of the Bank, the Company anticipates petitioning the Bankruptcy Court through a Bankruptcy
Filing and Plan of Reorganization, to be filed within the next several weeks, for permission to break out and spin off
its separate mortgage servicing subsidiary, FCMC, from Franklin Holding’s consolidated group as a separate
publicly-owned company owned 80% by FCHC shareholders in consideration for FCMC agreeing to pay FCHC the
amount equal to the estimated fair market value of FCMC over a period of years, which has not yet been determined.

The Company had net income attributed to common stockholders of $22.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2011 as a result of (i) dividend income recognized during the three months ended June 30, 2011 due to the surrender
and transfer of the Company’s Investment in REIT securities, (ii) dividend income recognized during the three months
ended March 31, 2011 representing the dividends paid for the third and fourth quarters of 2010 and the first quarter of
2011, and (iii) a gain recognized during the three months ended June 30, 2011 on the settlement of the Company’s
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swap liability as a result of the full satisfaction of indebtedness relating to the termination of the Company’s interest
rate swaps.  Excluding the $31.9 million of dividend income recognized during the three months ended June 30, 2011,
the $31.9 million of dividend income recognized during the three months ended March 31, 2011, and the gain on the
settlement of the swap liability totaling approximately $14.7 million recognized during the three months ended June
30, 2011, the Company would have recorded a net loss before taxes of approximately $56.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011.  For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company had a net loss of $55.5 million.  The
Company had income per common share for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 of $2.77 and $2.76 on a
basic and diluted basis, respectively, compared to a net loss per common share of $6.89 on both a diluted and basic
basis for the twelve months ended December 31, 2010.  At December 31, 2011, the Company’s stockholders’ deficit
was $827.7 million.  At December 31, 2010, the Company’s stockholders’ deficit was $852.9 million.

10
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Franklin’s Business – Loan Servicing, Collections and Recovery Servicing

The Company’s servicing business is conducted through FCMC, a specialty consumer finance company primarily
engaged in the servicing and resolution of performing, reperforming and nonperforming residential mortgage loans,
including specialized loan collections and recovery servicing, for third parties.

We have invested to create a loan servicing capability that is focused on collections, loss mitigation and default
management.  In general, we seek to ensure that the loans we service for others are repaid in accordance with the
original terms or according to amended repayment terms negotiated with the borrowers and in accordance with the
terms of our servicing contracts with our servicing clients.  Because the loans we service generally experience above
average delinquencies, erratic payment patterns and defaults, our servicing operation is focused on collections and
recovery, and, therefore, maintaining close contact with borrowers and as a result, is more labor-intensive than
traditional mortgage servicing operations.  Through frequent communication with borrowers we are able to encourage
positive payment performance, quickly identify those borrowers who are likely to move into seriously delinquent
status and promptly apply appropriate collection, loss mitigation and recovery strategies.  Our servicing staff employs
a variety of collection and recovery strategies that we have developed to successfully manage serious delinquencies
and defaults, bankruptcy and foreclosure.  Additionally, we maintain a real estate department with experience in
property management and the sale of residential properties.

As of December 31, 2011, FCMC had four significant servicing contracts (all of which except for one are with related
entities) to service 1-4 family mortgage loans and owned real estate, principally consisting of first and second-lien
loans and owned properties secured by 1-4 family residential real estate that were previously acquired and originated
by Franklin and transferred to the Trust in the March 2009 Restructuring, and sold by the Trust and the Bank to third
parties in the quarter ended September 30, 2010 (the “Loan Sales”) and in December 2010 (the “December Loan Sale”).

Loan Servicing and Collection Operations

At December 31, 2011, our servicing and collection business, conducted through FCMC, consisted of 70 servicing
and collection employees who serviced and provided recovery collection services and actively managed
approximately 31,000 loans and real estate properties (with an unpaid principal balance of approximately $1.524
billion), including a total of approximately 21,500 first and second-lien loans for the Bosco entities, which are
related-party entities of FCMC, as follows: approximately 2,000 home equity loans for Bosco Credit, LLC (“Bosco I”);
approximately 18,400 subordinate-lien loans for Bosco Credit II, LLC (“Bosco II”); approximately 500 actively serviced
first and subordinate-lien loans that are in principally bankruptcy, foreclosure or charge-off statuses, and
approximately 600 actively serviced loans (representing 100% of the loans securing the Unrestructured Debt)
underlying a 50% participation interest in each of the commercial loans to the Company covering that portion of the
Company’s Unrestructured Debt with the Bank, for Bosco Credit III, LLC (“Bosco III”); and, approximately nine real
estate owned properties serviced for Bosco Credit IV, LLC (“Bosco IV”).  Included in the Company’s consolidated
revenues were servicing fees recognized from servicing the portfolios for the Bosco entities of $6.4 million and $2.5
million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

11
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We maintain a call center staffed by professionals with skills based in customer service, collections, loss mitigation,
and recovery.  Our call center handles borrower inquiries on a “one-call resolution” basis, wherein the first agent with
whom a borrower speaks is qualified to satisfy almost any request for information, such as payoff declarations, escrow
account balance, payment information, collections, repayment arrangements, settlements and short sales.  Our “one-call
resolution” structure includes the following principal functions/groups:

Customer Service.  The primary objective of customer service is to obtain timely payments from borrowers, respond
to borrower requests and resolve disputes with borrowers.  Within 10 days of boarding newly acquired loans onto our
servicing system, our customer service representatives contact each new borrower to welcome them to FCMC and to
gather and/or verify any pertinent missing information required to properly service a loan.  Customer service
representatives respond to all inbound customer calls for information requests regarding payments, statement
balances, escrow balances and taxes, payoff requests, returned check and late payment fees.  In addition, our customer
service representatives process payoff requests and reconveyances.

Collections.  The main objective of our collections function is to ensure loan performance through maintaining contact
with our servicing and recovery collection clients’ borrowers.  Our collections agents continuously review and monitor
the status of collections and individual loan payments in order to proactively identify and solve potential collection
problems.  When a loan becomes seven days past due, our collections agents begin making collection calls and
generating past-due letters.  Our collections group attempts to determine whether a past due payment is an aberration
or indicative of a more serious delinquency.  If the past due payment appears to be an aberration, we emphasize a
cooperative approach and attempt to assist the borrower in becoming current or arriving at an alternative repayment
arrangement.  Upon a serious delinquency, by which we mean a delinquency of sixty-one days by a borrower, or the
earlier determination by our collections group based on the evidence available that a serious delinquency is likely, the
loan is typically transferred to our loss mitigation group.  We employ a range of strategies to modify repayment terms
in order to enable the borrower to make payments and ultimately cure the delinquency, or focus on expediting the
foreclosure process so that loss mitigation can begin as promptly as practicable.

Loss Mitigation.  Our loss mitigation group, which consists of staff experienced in collection work, manages and
monitors the progress of seriously delinquent loans and loans that we believe will develop into serious
delinquencies.  In addition to maintaining contact with borrowers through telephone calls and collection letters, this
group utilizes various strategies in an effort to reinstate an account or revive cash flow on an account.  Loss mitigation
agents analyze each loan to determine a collection strategy to maximize the amount and speed of recovery and
minimize costs.  The particular strategy is based upon each individual borrower’s past payment history, current credit
profile, current ability to pay, collateral lien position and current collateral value.  Loss mitigation agents qualify
borrowers for relief programs appropriate to the borrower’s hardship and finances.  Loss mitigation agents process
borrower applications for Temporary Relief programs (deferments and rate reductions), Expanded Temporary Relief
programs (repayment plans), Homeowner Relief programs (pre-foreclosure home sale) and Permanent Relief
programs (long-term modifications, including, when applicable, those sponsored by the U.S. Treasury’s Home
Affordable Modification Program (“HAMP”)), as well as for settlements, short sales, and deeds-in-lieu.

12
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Seriously delinquent accounts not resolved through the loss mitigation activities described above are often foreclosed
or a judgment is obtained, if potential collection warrants the cost, against the related borrower in accordance with
state and local laws, with the objective of maximizing asset recovery in the most expeditious manner possible and as
provided by the client’s servicing agreement.  This is commonly referred to as loss management.  Foreclosure timelines
are managed through a timeline report built into the loan servicing system.  The report schedules milestones
applicable for each state throughout the foreclosure process, which enhances our ability to monitor and manage the
process.  Properties acquired through foreclosure are transferred to our real estate department to manage eviction and
marketing or renting of the properties.  However, until foreclosure is completed, efforts at loss mitigation generally
are continued.

In addition, our bankruptcy group manages loans by borrowers who have declared bankruptcy.  The primary objective
of the bankruptcy group, which utilizes outside legal counsel, is to proactively monitor bankruptcy assets and outside
bankruptcy legal counsel to ensure compliance with individual plans and to mitigate losses and ensure recovery in the
event of noncompliance.

Deficiency Recovery & Judgment Processing Department (“Recovery”).  The Recovery group pursues principally
hard-to-collect consumer debt for third parties.  Our recovery department’s primary objective is to maximize the
recovery of unpaid principal on each seriously delinquent account by offering borrowers multiple workout solutions
and/or negotiated settlements.  The recovery unit performs a complete analysis of the borrower’s financial situation,
taking into consideration lien status, in order to determine the best course of action.  Based on the results of our
analysis, we determine to either continue collection efforts and a negotiated workout of settlement or seek a money
judgment against the borrower for the amount due.  Agents may qualify borrowers for Temporary Relief and
Expanded Temporary Relief programs where appropriate.  Agents will seek to perfect a judgment against a borrower
and may seek wage garnishment, if permitted and economically justified by the borrower’s finances and if provided by
the client’s servicing agreement.

Our servicing and collection operations also include the following principal functions/groups:

Loan Boarding and Administration.  The primary objective of the loan boarding function is to ensure that newly
acquired loans under contracts to service and provide collection and recovery services for others are properly
transitioned from the prior servicer and are accurately boarded onto our servicing systems.  Our loan boarding group
audits loan information for accuracy to ensure that the loans conform to the terms provided in the original note and
mortgage.  The information boarded onto our systems provide us with a file that we use to automatically generate
introductory letters to borrowers summarizing the terms of the servicing transfer of their loan, among other standard
industry procedures.

The loan administration group performs typical duties related to the administration of loans, including incorporating
modifications to terms of loans.  The loan administration group also ensures the proper maintenance and disbursement
of funds from escrow accounts and monitors non-escrow accounts for delinquent taxes and insurance lapses.  For
loans serviced with adjustable interest rates, the loan administration group ensures that adjustments are properly made
and identified to the affected borrowers in a timely manner.

Real Estate.  The real estate-owned department is responsible for managing and or disposing of properties, located
throughout the country, acquired through foreclosure in an orderly, timely, and cost-efficient manner in order to
maximize our clients’ return on assets.  These properties include 1-4 family residences, cooperative apartment and
condominium units.  We foreclose on a property primarily with the intent to sell it at fair market value to recover a
portion of the outstanding balance owed by the borrower.  From time to time, foreclosed properties may be in need of
repair or improvement in order to either increase the value of the property or reduce the time that the property is on the
market.  In those cases, the property is evaluated independently and we make a determination of whether the
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additional investment might increase the return upon sale or rental of the property.
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Face to Face Home Solutions (“Face to Face”).  The Face to Face group seeks to facilitate contact between borrowers
and our servicing employees through on-site visits to the borrower’s residence.  Whether successful in meeting with a
borrower or not, Face to Face agents confirm occupancy and report property conditions as well as any evidence of
code violation or additional liens on the property.

Client Relations.  The principal objective of the client relations group is to interface with our servicing and recovery
collection clients regarding the servicing performance of their loans, and for invoicing servicing clients.  In addition,
our client relations group oversees the boarding of new loans for servicing and/or recovery collections.

Training.  Our training department works with all departments of our servicing operations to ensure that the
employees of all departments are fully informed of the procedures necessary to complete their required tasks.  The
department ensures loan servicing employees complete the Secure and Fair Enforcement for Mortgage Licensing Act
of 2008 (the “SAFE Act”) education and are trained in the tenets of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, including
corollary state and local debt collection laws, as well as in effective communication skills.

Quality Control.  Our quality control department monitors all aspects of loan servicing from boarding through
foreclosure and REO.  It is the department’s responsibility to ensure that FCMC’s policies and procedures and
regulatory requirements are implemented and followed.  Collection calls are monitored to ensure quality and
compliance with the requirements of the federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and state and local collection
laws.  Monthly meetings with staff to discuss individual quality control scores are held and, in certain cases, further
training is recommended.  Reviews of the controls for privacy and information safeguarding and document removal
are conducted monthly.  In addition, monthly meetings with the Servicing Department’s senior managers are held to
discuss findings and recommendations for improvements.

Due Diligence Services

During 2008, capitalizing on our acquisition experience with residential mortgage loans, FCMC began providing
services for third parties not related to us or the Bank, on a fee-paying basis.  During 2011, we were engaged in due
diligence assignments principally for one independent third party.

Financing

The Company’s Legacy Credit Agreement expires on March 31, 2012, the Licensing Credit Agreement expires on
September 30, 2012, and the Unrestructured Debt became due and payable in full as a result of the expiration of the
Forbearance Agreement with the Bank on September 30, 2011.

In December 2007, the Company entered into forbearance agreements with the Bank with respect to its borrowing
arrangements.

In March 2009 and through December 31, 2010, Franklin entered into a series of restructuring agreements and
amendments to restructuring agreements with the Bank (the March 2009 Restructuring Agreements), pursuant to
which the Company’s debt, loans, pledges and guarantees with the Bank and its participating banks were substantially
restructured through the Legacy Credit Agreement, except for the Company’s Unrestructured Debt.
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Through the Licensing Credit Agreement, FCMC has available credit under a revolving loan facility of $1 million and
a $6.5 million letter of credit facility with the Bank, which is secured by cash collateral of $7.5 million.

At December 31, 2011, FCMC had no debt outstanding under the revolving line and approximately $4.7 million of
letters of credit under the Licensing Credit Agreement with the Bank.

See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Borrowings” and Notes
11 and 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Servicing Portfolio

The Company’s servicing business is conducted through FCMC, a specialty consumer finance company primarily
engaged in the servicing and resolution of performing, reperforming and nonperforming residential mortgage loans,
including specialized collections and loan recovery servicing for third parties.

As of December 31, 2011, FCMC had four significant servicing and recovery collection services contracts with third
parties to service 1-4 family mortgage loans and owned real estate: three with related parties (Bosco I, Bosco II and
Bosco III); and, one with an unrelated third party.  We also had a servicing contract between FCMC and certain
Company entities for the loans collateralizing the Unrestructured Debt.  At December 31, 2011, we also serviced and
provided recovery collection services for relatively small pools of loans under recovery collection contracts for several
other third parties, whereby we receive fees based principally on a percentage of amounts collected.

The unpaid principal balance of loans serviced for the Bosco related party entities represented approximately 59% of
the unpaid principal balance (68% of the number of loans) of the total loans serviced at December 31, 2011.  The
Company did not service loans for Huntington at December 31, 2011.

Bosco II is the Company’s largest servicing client, and the purchaser of the remaining 75% of the loans acquired in the
July 2010 transaction is the Company’s second largest servicing client.  See Notes 11 and 18 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

At December 31, 2011, the portfolio of residential mortgage loans serviced for other entities consisted of
approximately 30,800 loans representing approximately $1.50 billion of unpaid principal balance
(“UPB”).  Approximately 69% of the portfolio of residential mortgage loans (based on UPB) serviced for other entities
consisted of second-lien loans.
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The following tables set forth information regarding the types of properties securing the serviced for others portfolio
at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

December 31, 2011

Property Types
Number
of Loans

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Percentage
of Total
Principal
Balance

Residential 1-4 family 15,876 $895,394,791 59.88 %
Condos, co-ops, PUD dwellings 2,553 143,350,639 9.59 %
Manufactured and mobile homes 396 10,232,705 0.68 %
Secured, property type unknown(1) 1,090 15,468,786 1.03 %
Commercial 35 2,181,543 0.15 %
Unsecured loans(2) 10,866 428,608,474 28.67 %
Total 30,816 $1,495,236,938 100.00 %
__________________

(1)  The loans included in this category are principally small balance second-lien loans, and are collateralized by
residential real estate.

(2)  The loans included in this category are principally second-lien loans where the Company is aware that residential
real estate collateral has been foreclosed by the first-lien holder.

December 31, 2010

Property Types
Number
of Loans

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Percentage
of Total
Principal
Balance

Residential 1-4 family 17,827 $1,047,657,971 65.17 %
Condos, co-ops, PUD dwellings 2,889 168,737,824 10.50 %
Manufactured and mobile homes 438 11,248,155 0.70 %
Secured, property type unknown(1) 1,220 17,510,222 1.09 %
Commercial 40 2,767,412 0.17 %
Unsecured loans(2) 10,019 359,733,710 22.37 %
Total 32,433 $1,607,655,294 100.00 %
__________________

(1)  The loans included in this category are principally small balance second-lien loans, and are collateralized by
residential real estate.

(2)  The loans included in this category are principally second-lien loans where the Company is aware that residential
real estate collateral has been foreclosed by the first-lien holder.
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The following table provides a breakdown of the delinquency status of our portfolio of residential mortgage loans
serviced for other entities at December 31, 2011, by unpaid principal balance.

December 31, 2011
Contractual Delinquency

Days
Past
Due Amount %

Performing – Current
0 – 30
days $ 150,044,818 10.03 %

Delinquent                             
31 – 60
days 15,203,760 1.02 %
61 – 90
days 3,060,921 0.20 %
90+
days 812,120,333 54.31 %

Modified Loans                             
0 – 30
days 89,514,168 5.99 %

Delinquent                             
31 – 60
days 18,772,655 1.26 %
61 – 90
days 1,794,861 0.12 %
90+
days 34,605,612 2.31 %

Bankruptcy                             
0 – 30
days 18,744,841 1.25 %

Delinquent                             
31 – 60
days 3,233,897 0.22 %
61 – 90
days 692,729 0.05 %
90+
days 172,830,237 11.56 %

Foreclosure                             
0 – 30
days 636,615 0.04 %

Delinquent                             
31 – 60
days - -
61 – 90
days - -
90+
days 173,981,491 11.64 %

Total $ 1,495,236,938 100.00 %

All current loans
0 – 30
days $ 258,940,442 17.32 %
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Included in the above table were second-lien mortgage loans in the amount of $1.04 billion, of which $104.3 million
were current on a contractual basis.  The legal status composition of the second-lien mortgage loans at December 31,
2011 was: $833.2 million (including $719.9 million at least 90 days contractually delinquent), or 80%, were
performing; $51.4 million, or 5%, were modified due to delinquency or the borrower’s financial difficulty; $155.8
million, or 15%, were in bankruptcy; $349,000, or less than 1%, were in foreclosure.

The following tables set forth information regarding the lien position of the properties securing the portfolio of
residential mortgage loans (exclusive of real estate assets) serviced for other entities at December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31, 2011

Lien Position
Number
of Loans

Unpaid
Principal Balance

Percentage
of Total
Principal
Balance

1st Liens                   4,947 $ 454,454,583 30.39 %
2nd Liens                   25,869 1,040,782,355 69.61 %
Total                30,816 $ 1,495,236,938 100.00 %

17

Edgar Filing: FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORP/DE/ - Form 10-K

25



December 31, 2010

Lien Position
Number
of Loans

Unpaid
Principal Balance

Percentage
of Total
Principal
Balance

1st Liens                   5,267 $ 501,708,182 31.21 %
2nd Liens                   27,166 1,105,947,112 68.79 %
Total                32,433 $ 1,607,655,294 100.00 %

The following tables set forth information regarding the geographic location of properties securing the residential
mortgage loans serviced for other entities at December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31, 2011

Location
Number
of Loans

Unpaid
Principal Balance

Percentage
of Total
Principal
Balance

California 4,863 $ 393,354,781 26.31 %
Florida 2,598 133,697,821 8.94 %
New Jersey 786 98,947,473 6.62 %
New York 1,167 98,615,674 6.59 %
Texas 3,139 82,021,540 5.49 %
Illinois 1,218 49,033,760 3.28 %
Pennsylvania 969 48,894,467 3.27 %
Ohio 1,569 45,827,004 3.06 %
Georgia 1,146 43,394,445 2.90 %
Michigan 1,580 43,177,458 2.89 %
All Others 11,781 458,272,515 30.65 %
Total 30,816 $ 1,495,236,938 100.00 %

December 31, 2010

Location
Number
of Loans

Unpaid
Principal Balance

Percentage
of Total
Principal
Balance

California 5,278 $ 436,286,590 27.14 %
Florida 2,621 128,525,259 8.00 %
New Jersey 833 108,792,758 6.77 %
New York 1,216 101,532,645 6.32 %
Texas 3,263 86,478,663 5.38 %
Pennsylvania 1,032 53,392,301 3.32 %
Ohio 1,657 49,895,626 3.10 %
Illinois 1,235 48,919,997 3.04 %
Georgia 1,216 46,808,833 2.91 %
Michigan 1,617 44,567,163 2.77 %
All Others 12,465 502,455,459 31.25 %
Total 32,433 $ 1,607,655,294 100.00 %
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Real Estate Assets Serviced for Other Entities

The following table sets forth the UPB of real estate properties serviced for other entities at December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, and sales of real estate properties during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010:

2011 2010
Number of

Assets Amount
Number of

Assets Amount
Real estate properties                                                128 $28,495,374 214 $37,703,695
Real estate properties sold                                                197 $26,135,477 309 $53,196,739

Government Regulation

The mortgage lending, servicing and collection industry is highly regulated.  Our business is regulated by Federal,
state and local government authorities and is subject to Federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, as well as
judicial and administrative decisions that impose requirements and restrictions on our business.  At the Federal level,
these laws, rules and regulations include the:

•  Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, and the various regulations promulgated under that
Act;

•  Equal Credit Opportunity Act and Regulation B;

•  Truth in Lending Act (“TILA”) and Regulation Z;

•  Home Ownership and Equity Protection Act (“HOEPA”);

•  Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act (“RESPA”), and Regulation X;

•  Fair Credit Reporting Act;

•  Fair Debt Collection Practices Act;

•  Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, and Regulation C;

•  Fair Housing Act;

•  Telemarketing and Consumer Fraud and Abuse Prevention Act;

•  Telephone Consumer Protection Act;

•  Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act;

•  Servicemembers Civil Relief Act;

•  Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act;

•  CAN-SPAM Act;
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•  SAFE Act; and,

•  Helping Families Save Their Homes Act of 2009.
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States have also in some instances enacted their own variants of the foregoing laws, rules and regulations, especially
with respect to those laws, rules and regulations that address anti-predatory lending and abusive servicing or privacy
issues.

These laws, rules and regulations, among other things:

•  impose licensing obligations and financial requirements on us;

•  limit the interest rates, finance charges, and other fees that we may charge;

•  prohibit discrimination both in the extension of credit and in the terms and conditions on which credit is extended;

•  prohibit the payment of kickbacks for the referral of business incident to a real estate settlement service;

•  impose underwriting requirements;

•  mandate various disclosures and notices to consumers, as well as disclosures to governmental entities;

•  mandate the collection and reporting of statistical data regarding our customers and the loans we service;

•  require us to safeguard non-public information about our customers;

•  impose servicing standards and regulate our collection, loss mitigation, foreclosure and loan modification practices;

•  require us to combat money-laundering and avoid doing business with suspected terrorists;

•  restrict the marketing practices utilized to find customers, including restrictions on outbound telemarketing; and,

•  impose, in some cases, assignee liability on us as purchaser or seller of mortgage loans as well as the entities that
purchase or purchased our mortgage loans.

Our failure to comply with these laws can lead to:

•  civil and criminal liability, including potential monetary penalties;

•  loss of servicing licenses or approved status required for continued business operations;

•  demands for indemnification or loan repurchases from purchasers of our loans;

•  legal defenses causing delay and expense;

•  adverse effects on our ability, as servicer, to enforce loans;

•  the imposition of supervisory agreements and cease-and-desist orders;

•  the borrower having the right to rescind or cancel the loan transaction;
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•  adverse publicity;

•  individual and class action lawsuits;

•  administrative enforcement actions;

•  damage to our reputation in the industry; or,

•  inability to obtain credit to fund our operations.

In response to an unusually large number of foreclosures in recent years, a growing number of states have enacted
laws that subject the holder to certain notice and/or waiting periods prior to commencing a foreclosure.  In some
instances, these laws require the servicer of the mortgage to consider modification of the mortgage or an alternative
option prior to proceeding with foreclosure.  The effect of these laws has been to delay foreclosure in particular
jurisdictions.

The mortgages or assignments of mortgage for some of the mortgage loans have been recorded in the name of
Mortgage Electronic Registration Systems, Inc., or MERS, solely as nominee for the originator and its successors and
assigns, including the issuing entity.  Subsequent assignments of those mortgages are registered electronically through
the MERS system.  The recording of mortgages in the name of MERS has been challenged in a number of
states.  Although many decisions have accepted MERS as mortgagee, some courts have held that MERS is not a
proper party to conduct a foreclosure and have required that the mortgage be reassigned to the entity that is the
economic owner of the mortgage loan before a foreclosure can be conducted.  In states where such a rule is in effect,
there may be delays and additional costs in commencing, prosecuting and completing foreclosure proceedings and
conducting foreclosure sales of mortgaged properties.  In addition, borrowers are raising new challenges to the
recording of mortgages in the name of MERS, including challenges questioning the ownership and enforceability of
mortgage loans registered in MERS.  An adverse decision in any jurisdiction may delay the foreclosure process.

Although we have systems and procedures directed to comply with these legal requirements and believe that we are in
material compliance with applicable Federal, state and local statutes, rules and regulations, we cannot provide
assurance that more restrictive laws and regulations will not be adopted in the future, or that governmental bodies will
not interpret existing laws or regulations in a more restrictive matter, which could render our current business
practices noncompliant or which could make compliance more difficult or expensive.  These applicable laws and
regulations are subject to administrative or judicial interpretation, but some of these laws and regulations have been
enacted only recently or may be interpreted infrequently or only recently and inconsistently.  As a result of infrequent,
sparse or conflicting interpretations, ambiguities in these laws and regulations may leave uncertainty with respect to
permitted or restricted conduct under them.  Any ambiguity under a law to which we are subject may lead to
noncompliance with applicable regulatory laws and regulations.  We actively analyze and monitor the laws, rules and
regulations that apply to our business, as well as the changes to such laws, rules and regulations.

Licenses to Service Loans

By letter dated April 12, 2010, the New York State Banking Department (which is now a part of the New York State
Department of Financial Services) had notified FCMC that in connection with its review of FCMC’s financial
statements and mortgage servicing volume, its application for registration as a mortgage servicer in that state, which
FCMC had filed during the transitional period allowed by the state for registration of mortgage servicers doing
business in New York State on June 30, 2009, could not be accepted for processing until FCMC addressed its
“Adjusted Net Worth” (as defined by the New York State Banking Department), which the Banking Department had
determined to be below the minimum Adjusted Net Worth requirement for mortgage servicers of at least 1% of the
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outstanding principal balance of aggregate mortgage loans serviced (whether or not in New York), but in any event
not less than $250,000; and, (ii) a ratio of Adjusted Net Worth to the outstanding principal balance of New York
mortgage loans serviced of at least 5%.

21

Edgar Filing: FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORP/DE/ - Form 10-K

33



On September 9, 2010, the New York State Banking Department found the capital plan submitted by FCMC on May
12, 2010 (to address how FCMC would achieve compliance with regulatory net worth requirements that were adopted
in New York State in 2009 for mortgage servicers) to be satisfactory and accepted for processing the application of
FCMC to continue to service residential mortgage loans in that state and granted a twelve-month waiver of otherwise
applicable net worth requirements.  The capital plan was to remain effective and enforceable until FCMC regained full
compliance with net worth and financial responsibility requirements.

On August 24, 2011 (as filed for publication in the state register on September 14, 2011), new regulations were
adopted that lowered minimum Adjusted Net Worth requirements to a minimum of at least $250,000 plus ¼ of 1% of
the outstanding principal balance of aggregate mortgage loans serviced (whether or not in New York), provided, that,
if such person is solely a third-party servicer (as defined in the regulations) with respect to certain mortgage loans and
owns other mortgage loans or the servicing rights thereto, it shall maintain net worth of at least $250,000 plus ¼ of
1% of the outstanding principal balance of the non third-party servicer loans and ¼ of 1% of the outstanding principal
amount of the New York mortgage loans for which it is a third-party servicer.  As FCMC is in compliance with such
requirements, its capital plan is no longer in effect.  However, its application to be a registered mortgage servicer is
still pending with the New York State Department of Financial Services.

New Areas of Regulation

We are subject to numerous laws and regulations as a result of our historical business as an originator and acquirer of
residential mortgage loans, as well as our historical and current business of servicing such loans and providing due
diligence services for third parties.  Furthermore, many new laws and regulations applicable to the mortgage industry
have recently been enacted and promulgated in response to what some have alleged to be unfair and deceptive trade
practices even prior to the enactment of such new laws and regulations.  Our summary below includes such laws and
regulations which may, in that context, need to be considered in context of our historical activities.  In addition, our
clients expect us to be generally aware of new laws and regulations affecting the mortgage industry that may apply to
them.

Regulatory and legal requirements are subject to change, making our compliance more difficult or expensive, or
otherwise restricting our ability to conduct our business as it is now conducted.  In particular, Federal, state and local
governments have become more active in the consumer protection area in recent years.

Local, state and Federal legislatures, state and Federal banking regulatory agencies, state attorneys general offices, the
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (“CFPB”), the Federal Trade Commission (the “FTC”), the Department of Justice,
the Department of Housing and Urban Development and state and local governmental authorities have continued to
focus on lending and servicing practices by some companies, primarily in the mortgage industry, sometimes referred
to as “predatory lending” and “abusive servicing” practices.  Sanctions have been imposed by various agencies for
practices such as charging excessive fees, imposing higher interest rates than the credit risk of some borrowers
warrant, failing to disclose adequately the material terms of loans to borrowers and abrasive servicing and collections
practices.
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On July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Reform Act”) was signed
into law.  The Reform Act, which is designed to improve accountability and transparency in the financial system and
to protect consumers from abusive financial services practices, creates various new requirements affecting mortgage
servicers, such as FCMC, including mandatory escrow accounts for certain mortgage loans; notice requirements for
consumers who waive escrow services; certain prohibitions related to mortgage servicing with respect to force-placed
hazard insurance, qualified written requests, requests to correct certain servicing errors, and requests concerning the
identity and contact information for an owner or assignee of a loan; requirements for prompt crediting of payments,
processing of payoff statements, and monthly statements with certain disclosures for adjustable rate mortgage loans;
and late fee restrictions on high-cost loans.  In addition, a new executive agency and consumer financial regulator, the
CFPB, was established in the Federal Reserve System under the Reform Act.  On July 21, 2011, the regulation of the
offering and provision of consumer financial products or services, including mortgage servicing, under Federal
consumer financial laws, was generally transferred and consolidated into the CFPB (with a few exceptions that will
among other provisions affecting FCMC result in the Federal Trade Commission exercising concurrent enforcement
authority with CFPB and retaining certain rulemaking authority under certain acts and the Department of Housing and
Development administering and enforcing the Fair Housing Act).

On January 4, 2012, President Obama named Richard Cordray as Director of the CFPB.  This appointment of a
Director authorizes the CFPB to fully employ all of the enforcement, rulemaking and examination powers over
non-depository institutions, including FCMC.

The Reform Act sets forth certain objectives for and the functions of the CFPB.  The objectives of the CFPB, as
identified under the Reform Act, are to ensure that: (1) consumers are provided with timely and understandable
information to make responsible decisions about financial transactions; (2) consumers are protected from unfair,
deceptive, or abusive acts and practices and from discrimination; (3) outdated, unnecessary, or unduly burdensome
regulations are regularly identified and addressed in order to reduce unwarranted regulatory burdens; (4) Federal
consumer financial law is enforced consistently, without regard to the status of a person as a depository institution, in
order to promote fair competition; and (5) markets for consumer financial products and services operate transparently
and efficiently to facilitate access and innovation.  The primary functions of the CFPB under the Reform Act are: (1)
conducting financial education programs; (2) collecting, investigating, and responding to consumer complaints; (3)
collecting, researching, monitoring, and publishing information relevant to the functioning of markets for consumer
financial products and services to identify risks to consumers and the proper functioning of such markets; (4) subject
to certain sections of the Reform Act, supervising covered persons for compliance with Federal consumer financial
law, and taking appropriate enforcement action to address violations of Federal consumer financial law; (5) issuing
rules, orders, and guidance implementing Federal consumer financial law; and (6) performing such support activities
as may be necessary or useful to facilitate the other functions of the CFPB.  The Reform Act also provides the CFPB
with the authority to define, examine and bring claims against entities for violations of unfair, deceptive or abusive
acts or practices.

Several Federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations have been adopted, or are under consideration, that are
intended to protect consumers from predatory lending and abusive servicing practices, and in some instances establish
or propose a servicing standard and duty of care for mortgage servicers.  On January 4, 2011, the CFPB
implementation team entered into an information sharing memorandum of understanding with the Conference of State
Bank Supervisors (an organization that historically has cooperated with the American Association of Residential
Mortgage Regulators, which is another association comprised of the state regulators of FCMC) to promote state and
Federal cooperation and consistent examination procedures among regulators of providers of consumer financial
products and services, including mortgage servicers.
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The Reform Act creates various new requirements affecting mortgage servicers, such as FCMC, including mandatory
escrow accounts for certain mortgage loans; notice requirements for consumers who waive escrow services; certain
prohibitions related to mortgage servicing with respect to force-placed hazard insurance, qualified written requests,
requests to correct servicing errors, and requests concerning the identity and contact information for an owner or
assignee of a loan; requirements for prompt crediting of payments, processing of payoff statements, and monthly
statements with certain disclosures for adjustable rate mortgage loans; and late fee restrictions on high-cost
loans.  These provisions are not self implementing, however, and the CFPB is expected to promulgate regulations that
will enforce these requirements in the coming months.

The SAFE Act was enacted as part of the Federal Housing and Economic Recovery Act of 2008.  The SAFE Act is a
model act that required states to implement licensing requirements for all individual mortgage loan originators (i.e.,
mortgage brokers, loan officers, etc.) and set minimum requirements for such individual employees, including testing
and initial and continuing education requirements.  The SAFE Act directed each state to enact legislation requiring
licensing; otherwise, the SAFE Act directs the CFPB to provide a default licensing system.

The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, the regulator of national banks, issued a final regulation in 2004 that
prescribed an explicit anti-predatory lending standard without regard to a trigger test based on the cost of the
loan.  This regulation prohibits a national bank from, among other restrictions, making or purchasing a loan based
predominately on the foreclosure value of the borrower’s home, rather than the borrower’s repayment ability, including
current and expected income, current obligations, employment status and relevant financial resources.

On May 16, 2005, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Office of Thrift Supervision, and the National Credit Union
Administration (the “Agencies”) jointly issued “Credit Risk Management Guidance for Home Equity Lending.”  The
guidance promotes sound credit risk management practices for institutions engaged in home equity lending (both
home equity lines of credit and closed-end home equity loans).  Among other risk factors, the guidance cautions
lenders to consider all relevant risk factors when establishing product offerings and underwriting guidelines, including
a borrower’s income and debt levels, credit score (if obtained), and credit history, as well as the loan size, collateral
value, lien position, and property type and location.  It stresses that prudently underwritten home equity loans should
include an evaluation of a borrower’s capacity to adequately service the debt, and that reliance on a credit score is
insufficient because it relies on historical financial performance rather than present capacity to pay.  While not
specifically applicable to loans that had been originated by our mortgage lending subsidiary Tribeca Lending Corp.
(“Tribeca”), the guidance is instructive of the regulatory climate covering low and no documentation loans, for certain of
the loans originated by Tribeca in the past.

On June 29, 2007, the Agencies released their final statement on subprime mortgage lending to address certain
concerns of the Agencies that subprime borrowers may not fully understand the risk and consequences of certain
adjustable-rate mortgage products.  The Agencies expressed particular concern with (1) marketing products to
subprime borrowers offering low initial payments based on an introductory (“teaser”) rate that is considerably lower
than the fully indexed rate; (2) approving borrowers without considering appropriate documentation of their income;
(3) setting very high or no limits on payment or interest rate increases at reset periods; (4) loan product features likely
to result in frequent refinancing to maintain an affordable monthly payment; (5) including substantial prepayment
penalties and/or prepayment penalties that extend beyond the initial rate adjustment period; and (6) providing
borrowers with inadequate information relative to product features, material loan terms and products risks.
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The final statement identified underwriting standards, consumer protection principles and control systems applicable
to subprime mortgage loans that focus on the importance of evaluating the borrower’s ability to repay the debt by its
final maturity at the fully indexed rate and providing information that enable consumers to understand material terms,
costs, and risks.  The Agencies cautioned their regulated institutions against making mortgage loans based
predominately on the foreclosure or liquidation value of a borrower’s collateral rather than on the borrower’s ability to
repay the mortgage according to its terms, inducing a borrower to repeatedly refinance a loan in order to charge high
points and fees each time a loan is refinanced and engaging in fraud or deception to conceal the true nature of the
mortgage loan obligation.  The Agencies also advised their regulated institutions that when underwriting higher risk
loans, stated income and reduced documentation should be accepted only if there are mitigating factors that clearly
minimize the need for direct verification of repayment capacity.  A higher interest rate is not considered a mitigating
factor.  While the final statement, in part, discusses subprime products that were not offered by Tribeca such as loans
with “teaser” rates, the final statement appears to apply strict standards for all types of subprime loans and is instructive
of the regulatory climate concerning subprime mortgage loans, such as Tribeca’s “Liberty Loan,” where the lending
decision was or may have been based entirely or primarily on the borrower’s equity in his or her home and not, or to a
lesser extent, on a determination of the borrower’s ability to repay the loan.  In addition, as with the 2006 Interagency
Guidance on Nontraditional Mortgage Product Risks for mortgages where the borrower is able to defer repayment of
principal for a period of time (interest-only loans and Pay Option ARMs), state regulators have adopted similar
standards applicable to the institutions they regulate, which included Tribeca.  On July 17, 2007, the American
Association of Residential Mortgage Regulators (“AARMR”), which is comprised of state officials with responsibility
for regulating state licensed mortgage lenders and brokers, in conjunction with the Conference of State Bank
Supervisors (“CSBS”) and the National Association of Consumer Credit Administrators (“NACCA”), issued a statement
on subprime lending that is substantially similar to the Agencies’ final statement and which, as of July 7, 2008, was
adopted in 40 states in addition to the District of Columbia.  Moreover, under the Reform Act and implementing
regulations to be prescribed, a creditor may not make a residential mortgage loan unless the creditor makes a
reasonable and good faith determination based on verified and documented information that, at the time the loan is
consummated, the consumer has a reasonable ability to repay the loan, according to its terms, and all applicable taxes,
insurance (including mortgage guarantee insurance), and assessments.

A key mortgage industry tool for finding new borrowers is under attack in class action litigation across the
country.  Those class actions have been filed by attorneys seeking to capitalize on a 2004 decision of the Seventh
Circuit Court of Appeals, Cole v. U.S. Capital, Inc. (“Cole”) interpreting the meaning of “firm offers of credit” under the
Fair Credit Reporting Act (“FCRA”).  A prescreened or firm offer is any offer of credit to a consumer that will be
honored if the consumer is determined, based on information in a consumer report on the consumer, to meet the
specific criteria used to select the consumer for the offer.  Cole was the first case in the nation to hold that an offer of
nominal “value” to the consumer, which could arise from a combination of factors such as a low dollar amount of the
offered credit, ambiguous or contradictory terms, or complex approval procedures, may not actually qualify as a “firm
offer” under FCRA, even if the stated amount is guaranteed.  Courts have split on the issue.  Some of the courts in
recent cases have concluded that the defendant’s violation of FCRA was “willful.”  FCRA distinguishes negligent or
inadvertent noncompliance from “willful” violations by the damages that are available.  Specifically, FCRA provides for
statutory damages of $100-$1,000 per violation for “willful” violations and permits punitive damages as well.  By
contrast, FCRA provides that a defendant whose noncompliance was merely negligent will be liable only for “actual
damages sustained by the consumer as a result of the failure.”  This distinction is significant because FCRA does not
have a cap for statutory damages in a class action, unlike other Federal statutes regulating consumer lending which
cap statutory damages in a class action at a maximum of $500,000 or one percent of the creditor’s net worth,
whichever is less.  If we are named as a defendant in a class action, and the court were to find that the violation was
willful, we could face substantial liability that could have a material adverse affect on our financial condition and
operations.
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HOEPA identifies a category of mortgage loans and subjects such loans to restrictions not applicable to other
mortgage loans.  Loans subject to HOEPA consist of loans on which certain points and fees or the annual percentage
rate, known as the “APR,” exceed specified levels.  Liability for violations of applicable law with regard to loans subject
to HOEPA would extend not only to us, but to the institutional purchasers of our loans as well.  It was our policy to
seek not to originate loans that were subject to HOEPA or state and local laws discussed in the following paragraph or
purchase high-cost loans that violated such laws.  Non-compliance with HOEPA and other applicable laws may lead
to demands for indemnification or loan repurchases from our institutional loan purchasers, class action lawsuits and
administrative enforcement actions.

Laws, rules and regulations have been adopted at the state and local levels that are similar to HOEPA in that they
impose certain restrictions on loans on which certain points and fees or the APR exceeds specified thresholds, which
generally are lower than under Federal law.  These restrictions include prohibitions on steering borrowers into loans
with high interest rates and away from more affordable products, selling unnecessary insurance to borrowers, flipping
or repeatedly refinancing loans and making loans without a reasonable expectation that the borrowers will be able to
repay the loans.  If the numerical thresholds were miscalculated, certain variations of Tribeca’s “Liberty Loan” product,
where the lending decision was or may have been based entirely or primarily on the borrower’s equity in his or her
home and not, or to a lesser extent, on a determination of the borrower’s ability to repay the loan, would violate
HOEPA and many of these state and local anti-predatory lending laws.  In the past, we have sold a portion of Tribeca’s
“Liberty Loan” production to third parties on a whole-loan, servicing-released basis.  Compliance with some of these
restrictions requires lenders to make subjective judgments, such as whether a loan will provide a “net tangible benefit”
to the borrower.  These restrictions expose a lender to risks of litigation and regulatory sanction no matter how
carefully a loan is underwritten.  The remedies for violations of these laws are not based on actual harm to the
consumer and can result in damages that exceed the loan balance.  In addition, an increasing number of these laws,
rules and regulations seek to impose liability for violations on assignees, which may include our prior warehouse
lenders and whole-loan buyers, regardless of whether the assignee knew of or participated in the violation.

RESPA prohibits the payment of fees for the mere referral of real estate settlement service business.  This law does
permit the payment of reasonable value for services actually performed and facilities actually provided unrelated to
the referral.  In the past, several lawsuits have been filed against mortgage lenders alleging that such lenders have
made certain payments to independent mortgage brokers in violation of RESPA.  These lawsuits generally have been
filed on behalf of a purported nationwide class of borrowers alleging that payments made by a lender to a broker in
addition to payments made by the borrower to a broker are prohibited by RESPA and are therefore illegal.  On
September 18, 2002, the Eleventh Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision in Heimmermann v. First Union
Mortgage Corp., which reversed the court’s earlier decision in Culpepper v. Irwin Mortgage Corp. in which the court
found the yield-spread premium payments received by a mortgage broker to be unlawful per se under RESPA.  The
Department of Housing and Urban Development responded to the Culpepper decision by issuing a policy statement
(2001-1) taking the position that lender payments to mortgage brokers, including yield spread premiums, are not per
se illegal.  The Heimmermann decision eliminated a conflict that had arisen between the Eleventh Circuit and the
Eighth and Ninth Circuit Courts of Appeals, with the result that all Federal circuit courts that have considered the
issue have aligned with the Department of Housing and Urban Development policy statement and found that yield
spread premiums are not prohibited per se.  If other circuit courts that have not yet reviewed this issue disagree with
the Heimmermann decision, there could be a substantial increase in litigation regarding lender payments to brokers
and in the potential costs of defending these types of claims and in paying any judgments that might result.

A new RESPA rule effective on January 1, 2010 includes the yield spread premium in the calculation of the mortgage
broker’s total compensation and requires more detailed closing costs disclosures to be provided to consumers at the
time of loan origination.  The new RESPA rule might usher in a new wave of litigation when mortgage lenders and
brokers are subject to new compliance parameters.
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Further, in a rule that took effect on April 6, 2011 under Regulation Z sweeping changes with respect to permissible
and prohibited loan originator compensation are underway that prohibit loan originator compensation, when
compensation is not received directly from the consumer, based on loan terms or conditions (other than the amount of
the principal), dual compensation of loan originators from a consumer and other person or entity on a particular loan
and various loan steering activities to or from loans with certain characteristics are underway.  Pursuant to the Reform
Act, the CFPB is expected to issue further rulemakings on loan compensation matters in the coming months.

The Reform Act also amended TILA to create stringent new borrower repayment ability standards for residential
mortgage loans.  Although the Federal Reserve Board issued proposed regulations for the new standards in April
2011, such regulations must be implemented by the CFPB.  The new standards are not expected to take effect for at
least several months.  In addition, a provision of the Reform Act that has not yet been implemented by the CFPB
lowers the point and fee and APR thresholds for HOEPA loans and forbids originators of such obligations from
financing the borrower’s closing costs.

In 2008, Congress enacted the Mortgage Disclosure Improvement Act of 2008 (“MDIA”), which was initially part of the
Housing and Economic Recovery Act of 2008 and then subsequently amended as part of the Emergency Economic
Stabilization Act of 2008.  As of July 30, 2009, the MDIA requires creditors to furnish early Truth in Lending (“TIL”)
disclosures for all closed-end mortgage transactions that are secured by a consumer’s dwelling, including loans secured
by primary, secondary or vacation homes, and regardless of whether the loans are for purchase money or
non-purchase money transactions.  While the early TIL disclosure must still be given within three business days of
application, the MDIA and MDIA rule now require that the early TIL disclosure be provided at least seven business
days prior to consummation of the transaction.  Further, if the disclosed APR exceeds certain tolerances as set forth in
the Truth in Lending Act and Regulation Z, the creditor must provide corrected disclosures disclosing an accurate
APR and all changed terms no later than three business days before consummation.  Significantly, this means that
multiple early TIL disclosures may be required.

In addition, the Federal Reserve Board adopted a final rule to amend Regulation Z on July 14, 2008 (the “July
Rule”).  Notably, the July Rule, which took effect on October 1, 2009: (i) created a new category of loans called
“higher-priced mortgage loans”; (ii) instituted new protections for both this new category of “higher-priced mortgage
loans” as well as for the existing category of “high-cost mortgages” under HOEPA; (iii) enacted certain prohibited acts
and practices for all closed-end credit transactions secured by a consumer’s principal dwelling; (iv) revised the
disclosures required in advertisements for credit secured by a consumer’s dwelling and prohibited certain practices in
connection with closed-end mortgage advertising; and (v) required disclosures for closed-end mortgages secured by a
consumer’s principal dwelling to be provided earlier in the transaction and before consumers pay any fee except for a
fee for obtaining a consumer’s credit history.

Pursuant to the Reform Act, the CFPB, after having already released prototypes for public comment, is expected to
issue a proposal to combine and integrate TIL and RESPA disclosures by July 21, 2012.

On February 7, 2012, the US Financial Crimes Enforcement Network (“FinCEN”) announced the release of its final rule
on Anti-Money Laundering Program and Suspicious Activity Report Filing Requirements for Residential Mortgage
Lenders and Originators (the “AML Non-Bank Mortgage Lender Rule”), which would, for the first time, require
residential mortgage lenders (“RM Lenders”) and residential mortgage originators (“RM Originators”) to establish an
anti-money laundering program (“AML Program”), and to file a suspicious activity report (“SAR”) with
FinCEN.  Although the requirements are not applicable to entities that only service mortgages, such as FCMC, clients
of FCMC that are RM Lenders or RM Originators may require FCMC to file SAR reports.  In addition, FCMC would
become subject to the requirements of the rule if it makes or originates loans in the future.
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Home Affordable Modification Program

On September 11, 2009, FCMC voluntarily entered into an agreement to actively participate as a mortgage servicer in
the Federal government’s Home Affordable Modification Program (HAMP) for first lien mortgage loans that are not
owned or guaranteed by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac.  HAMP is a program for consenting servicing clients, with
borrower, mortgage servicer, and mortgage loan owner incentives, designed to enable eligible borrowers to avoid
foreclosure through a more affordable and sustainable loan modification made in accordance with HAMP guidelines,
procedures, directives, and requirements.  Effective April 5, 2010, HAMP was expanded to include eligibility criteria
and financial incentives for foreclosure alternatives such as deeds-in-lieu and short sales.  Pursuant to the Reform Act,
supplemental directives and guidelines were revised to require each participating mortgage servicer to provide each
borrower whose request for a mortgage modification is denied with all borrower-related and mortgage-related input
data used in any net present value analyses performed in connection with the subject mortgage.  If a borrower is not
eligible for HAMP, FCMC considers other available loss mitigation options, as appropriate, for owners of the loans
serviced.

Privacy

Title V of the federal Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (“GLBA”) obligates us to safeguard the information we maintain on our
clients’ borrowers and to inform our borrowers of our use of their non-public personal information.  In addition to the
requirements of GLBA, we are subject to compliance with state privacy laws.  Whereas under GLBA, a borrower is
required to affirmatively “opt-out” of certain of our information sharing practices, under the privacy laws of California
(to a certain extent) and Vermont, the borrower must affirmatively “opt-in” to the same.  California passed legislation
known as the California Financial Information Privacy Act and the California On-Line Privacy Protection Act.  Both
pieces of legislation became effective on July 1, 2004, and impose additional notification obligations on
us.  Regulations have been proposed by several agencies and states that may affect our obligations to safeguard
information.  If other states or Federal agencies adopt additional privacy legislation, our compliance costs could
substantially increase.

Fair Credit Reporting Act

The FCRA allows lenders to share information with affiliates and certain third parties and to provide pre-approved
offers of credit to consumers in certain instances.  However, the FCRA places certain restrictions on the use of
information shared between affiliates and with third parties, and Congress recently amended the statute to, among
other things, to provide new disclosures to consumers when risk based pricing is used in the credit decision, and to
help protect consumers from identity theft.  All of these provisions impose additional regulatory and compliance costs
on us.

As discussed above under the heading “New Areas of Regulation,” there has been significant class action activity
relating to prescreened offers of credit, which is a tool we had used for finding potential borrowers, when we were
originating loans.  Many other mortgage lenders used prescreened credit offers to obtain new borrowers.  We have not
been named as a defendant in such a class action.  However, if we were to be named in a class action alleging a
violation of the Fair Credit Reporting Act’s prescreened offer provisions, and the court were to find that the violation
was willful, we could face substantial liability that could have a material adverse affect on our financial condition and
operations.
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Home Mortgage Disclosure Act

In 2002, the Federal Reserve Board adopted changes to Regulation C promulgated under the Home Mortgage
Disclosure Act (“HMDA”).  Among other things, the new regulation requires lenders to report pricing data on loans that
they originate with annual percentage rates that exceed the yield on treasury bills with comparable maturities by three
percent.  The expanded reporting took effect in 2004 for reports filed in 2005.  A majority of our loans we originated
in 2004 and thereafter were subject to the expanded reporting requirements.

The expanded reporting does not include additional loan information such as credit risk, debt-to-income ratio,
loan-to-value (“LTV”) ratio, documentation level or other salient loan features that might impact pricing on individual
loans.  As a result, the reported information may lead to increased litigation and government scrutiny to determine if
any reported disparities between prices paid by minorities and majorities may have resulted from unlawful
discrimination.  For example, the Civil Rights Division of the New York State Attorney General’s office requested that
certain large lenders provide it with supplementary information to explain the disparities in their reported HMDA
data.

SAFE Act

The implications of the SAFE Act on individual loan officers and brokers employed by lenders are clear: these
individuals must now be licensed in states in connection with their origination and brokering activity.  However, there
has been confusion in the industry about the potential application of the state SAFE Acts to individuals, who are either
employed by a servicer or working as their agent or on their behalf, in connection with executing loan
modifications.  The SAFE Act, as implemented on the state level, impacts a wide range of individuals, including those
engaged in certain loss mitigation activities, because of the manner in which it defines a “mortgage loan
originator.”  The majority of states define “mortgage loan originator” as someone “who, for compensation or gain, or in
the expectation of compensation or gain, either: (1) takes a residential mortgage loan application; or, (2) offers or
negotiates terms of a residential mortgage loan.”

The Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) issued proposed rules under the SAFE Act on December
15, 2009.  In those rules, HUD took the informal position that individuals who perform loan modifications for
servicers meet the definition of “mortgage loan originator” for purposes of the state versions of the SAFE Act.  Several
states adopted this informal position, pending the publication of final rules from HUD or the CFPB.  Other states have
moved to either specifically include or exempt those individuals working for servicers from the definition of “mortgage
loan originator.”  On June 30, 2011, HUD issued a final rule, but did not adopt its proposed position on loan
modification activities, deferring the question to the CFPB.  The CFPB, which took over responsibilities on the SAFE
Act on July 21, 2011, re-published the HUD final rule on December 19, 2011 as an interim final rule establishing a
Regulation H for public comment by February 17, 2012, with only non-substantive technical and conforming
changes.  Significantly, the CFPB has to date not adopted the exception for loss mitigation activities for borrowers
reasonably likely to default applicable to Federally regulated institutions.  As a result, individuals who engage in loan
modification activities for state regulated servicers may potentially fall within definition of a loan originator and be
required to hold individual licenses within a particular state.  Furthermore, state SAFE Acts impose civil and criminal
penalties on both individuals and companies for failure to comply with their requirements.  This individual licensing
issue is currently in-flux, and subject to change pending a final rule from the CFPB, and a more thorough review of
the licensing policy from state regulators over the coming months.
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Telephone Consumer Protection Act and Telemarketing Consumer Fraud and Abuse Prevention Act

The Federal Communications Commission and the Federal Trade Commission adopted “do-not-call” registry
requirements, which, in part, mandate that companies such as us maintain and regularly update lists of consumers who
have chosen not to be called for marketing purposes.  These requirements also mandate that we do not call consumers
who have chosen to be on the list.  Those prohibitions do not apply to calls made to a servicer’s existing
customers.  Several states also have adopted similar laws, with which we also seek to comply.  The Telephone
Consumer Protection Act, which in part regulates the use of auto-dialers, prohibits making any call, absent an
emergency purpose or prior express consent of the called party, using any automatic telephone dialing system or an
artificial or prerecorded voice to call any telephone number assigned to a cellular telephone service.  The Federal
Communications Commission, which has adopted rules implementing the Telephone Consumer Protection Act,
clarified in 2008 that autodialed and prerecorded message calls to wireless numbers that are provided by the called
party to a creditor in connection with an existing debt are permissible as calls made with the prior express consent of
the called party.  On January 20, 2010, the Federal Communications Commission had proposed a rule that would have
required debt collectors and others not engaged in sales or telemarketing to obtain a written agreement from a
consumer with detailed conditions to be satisfied, including that the written agreement not be obtained as a condition
of purchasing any goods, before a person or entity shall be deemed to have obtained the prior express written consent
of the called party.  However, this aspect of the rule was not adopted.

Compliance, Quality Control and Quality Assurance

We maintain a variety of quality control procedures designed to detect compliance errors.  We have a stated
anti-predatory and abusive loan servicing policy that is communicated to all employees at regular training
sessions.  We track the results of internal quality assurance reviews and provide reports to the appropriate managers of
the Company.  Our servicing practices are reviewed regularly in connection with the due diligence performed by third
parties that consider outsourcing their loan servicing to us.  State regulators also review our practices and loan files
and report the results back to us.

Environmental Matters

To date, we have not incurred any environmental liabilities in connection with the owned real estate that we service
for third parties, although there can be no guarantee that we will not incur any such liabilities in the future or that there
might be discovered hazardous substances or waste, contamination, pollutants or sources thereof on any real estate
properties acquired by the Company as servicer or as legal title owner.

Employees

We recruit, hire, and retain individuals with the specific skills that complement our corporate growth and business
strategies.  As of December 31, 2011, we had 105 full-time employees.

None of our employees are represented by a union or covered by a collective bargaining agreement.  We believe our
relations with our employees are good.  However, under the Company’s current circumstances, retaining key
employees and hiring for certain critical positions have been more challenging.
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ITEM
1A.

RISK FACTORS

Risks Related to Our Business

The Company may not be able to continue as a going concern.

The consolidated Franklin Holding since September 30, 2007 has been and continues to be operating with significant
operating losses and stockholders’ deficit, and the Company will not be able to pay off the outstanding balance of debt
due to the Bank.  The consolidated Franklin Holding financial condition raises substantial doubt about its ability to
continue as a going concern.

The Plan of Reorganization for the planned pre-packaged bankruptcy filing of Franklin Credit Holding Corporation
(FCHC) may not be consented to by the Bank, confirmed or confirmation may be delayed.

Although FCHC anticipates obtaining the consent of the only eligible voting creditor, the Bank, to the filing of the
Plan of Reorganization, pursuant to an agreement with the Bank as part of the September 2010 Transaction, there can
be no assurance that the Bank will consent to or the Bankruptcy Court will confirm the Plan of Reorganization.  The
Bankruptcy Court could uphold one or more objections to the Plan of Reorganization, including an objection by the
Internal Revenue Service, or may decline to confirm the Plan of Reorganization if it found that any of the
requirements for confirmation had not been met, including that the terms of the Plan of Reorganization do not “unfairly
discriminate” and are “fair and equitable,” that confirmation is not likely to be followed by a liquidation (other than the
liquidation of FCHC which will be contemplated by the Plan) or a need for further reorganization, and that the
consideration to be received by each creditor and shareholder is not less that that which would be received if the
Company were liquidated under Chapter 7 of the Bankruptcy Code.  In the event that the Bankruptcy Court does not
confirm the Plan of Reorganization, FCHC may seek to modify the Plan of Reorganization, may seek to accomplish
an alternative Chapter 11 plan of reorganization, may elect to convert the Chapter 11 case to a Chapter 7 liquidation or
seek to dismiss its bankruptcy petition.  There can be no assurance that any alternative Chapter 11 plan would be as
favorable to creditors and stockholders of the Company as those proposed in the Plan of Reorganization.  Conversion
to a Chapter 7 liquidation could, in the view of the Company, potentially produce a less favorable and uncertain
outcome for creditors and stockholders of the Company than would the Plan of Reorganization.  There also can be no
assurance that we will not lose control over the outcome of the reorganization or liquidation process or management
of the operation of the business should the Bankruptcy Court appoint a case trustee or examiner, which could result in
a liquidation of the Company and our shareholders losing all or a substantial part of their interest in FCMC as FCHC
stockholders.

Certain adverse tax consequences could result from the spinoff of FCMC from FCHC.

Under the March 2009 Restructuring, the Company, at the request of the Bank, elected under Section 362(e) of the
Internal Revenue Code to transfer the tax basis in mortgage loans to the Bank, in the amount of approximately $1.1
billion, in exchange for assets in the Bank’s REIT, which qualifies under Section 351 of the Internal Revenue Code.  A
liquidation of the Company could trigger a taxable gain with insufficient offsetting net operating losses or assets to
pay the resulting tax liability.  There can be no assurance that the Plan of Reorganization or issuance of a note payable
to FCHC, for the benefit of the Internal Revenue Service, in consideration for the spinoff of its interest in FCMC to its
shareholders in lieu of a liquidation of the Company will be acceptable to the Internal Revenue Service.  In the event
that the Plan of Reorganization is not acceptable or otherwise not confirmable by the Bankruptcy Court, the Company
may have to amend, seek to dismiss or withdraw the petition or file a conversion to a Chapter 7 liquidation case.
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The Reorganization Plan may not be consummated.

Even if the Plan of Reorganization, which we presently anticipate filing either simultaneously with or shortly after the
commencement of a bankruptcy case, is confirmed by the Bankruptcy Court, consummation of the Plan of
Reorganization would be subject to the satisfaction of various requirements of our state mortgage regulators and/or
other conditions set forth in the Plan of Reorganization.  Despite the benefits of a free standing FCMC, and with no
other change other than indirect shareholders becoming direct shareholders of FCMC, there can be no assurance that
the regulators or the Bankruptcy Court, singularly or collectively, will approve of the spinoff of FCMC from FCHC,
require the filing of a plan to meet certain objectives set by a particular regulator or deny an application for or renewal
of a license in its administrative discretion to the extent permitted.  Any such regulatory action may adversely affect
FCMC’s business.

Historical financial information may not be comparable.

Following confirmation of a Plan of Reorganization and the transactions contemplated thereby, our financial position
and results of operations from and after the effective date of the Plan of Reorganization may not be comparable to the
financial position or results of operations reflected in our historical financial statements.

Our Restructuring Agreements with the Bank require us to observe certain covenants, and our failure to satisfy such
covenants could render us insolvent.

Our Restructuring Agreements with the Bank require us to comply with affirmative and negative covenants customary
for restructured indebtedness.  Any defaults with respect to these agreements could result in acceleration of the
amounts owed to the Bank (with FCMC and FCHC not obligated on the amounts owed under the Legacy Credit
Agreement) and a foreclosure on the assets of the Company pledged to the Bank (which no longer include equity
interests in or other assets of FCMC, except for $7.5 million in cash held by FCMC and pledged to the Bank).  Such
acceleration or foreclosure would render us insolvent.  As of December 31, 2011, the Company was not in default of
its Restructuring Agreements.

Due to the expiration of the Forbearance Agreement covering the Unrestructured Debt on September 30, 2011, the
Unrestructured Debt is due and payable.

The Unrestructured Debt became due and payable on September 30, 2011.

The March 2009 Restructuring did not include a portion of the Company’s debt (the Unrestructured Debt), which as of
December 31, 2011 totaled approximately $38.2 million.  The Unrestructured Debt, which was due and payable as of
September 30, 2011 under the Company’s 2004 master credit agreement with the Bank, was subject to a forbearance
agreement with the Bank which expired on September 30, 2011.  Although the Unrestructured Debt is due and
payable to the Bank for its lending participants, which include a related party entity (Bosco III) that has a fifty percent
beneficial ownership in the commercial loans governing the Unrestructured Debt, the Bank has not exercised any of
its available rights or remedies, including collection efforts and the right to call an event of default under the Legacy
Credit Agreement.

Should the Bank exercise any of its available rights or remedies, such action could result in the Company’s insolvency.

FCMC is not obligated to the Bank with respect to the Unrestructured Debt and any references to FCMC in the
Company’s 2004 master credit agreement governing the Unrestructured Debt were amended to refer to Franklin Credit
Asset Corporation.
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The Bank, with notice, has the right to call an event of default under the Legacy Credit Agreement, but not the
Licensing Credit Agreement, which does not include cross-default provisions that would be triggered by such an event
of default under the Legacy Credit Agreement.  The Bank’s recourse in respect of the Legacy Credit Agreement is
limited to the assets and stock of FCHC’s subsidiaries, excluding the assets and stock of FCMC (except for a
second-priority lien of the Bank on $7.5 million of cash collateral held as security under the Licensing Credit
Agreement).

Our borrowings are sensitive to changes in interest rates.

On January 25, 2011, the Bank declared an early termination of all remaining interest rate swaps due to a failure by
the Company to make payments due under the swap agreements.  The Company’s failure to make these payments was
occasioned by insufficient funds available under the Legacy Credit Agreement as a direct result of the loss of cash
flows attributable to the July and September loan sales (the Loan Sales) and the December 2010 loan sale (the
December Loan Sale) by the Bank’s Trust and the suspension of dividends on the REIT Securities for the third and
fourth quarters of 2010.  Due to the termination by the Bank of the Company’s remaining interest rate swaps in January
2011, all of our interest rate sensitive borrowings are unhedged and the Company’s interest-bearing liabilities will
continue to increase, and any increase in interest rates will result in an increase in interest expense without an
offsetting increase in income, which would adversely affect our results.

We will not be able to reduce the Legacy Debt.

We have limited sources of cash flow available to pay interest on our Legacy Debt.  As a result of the Company
voluntarily surrendering and transferring to the Bank the REIT Securities on May 23, 2011 in return for a reduction in
the indebtedness to the Bank equal to $478 million, the principal source of cash flow to meet our obligations with
respect to the approximately $808.8 million in outstanding indebtedness to the Bank remaining as of December 31,
2011 (after the surrender of the REIT Securities) was eliminated, resulting in accrued and unpaid interest being added
to the outstanding principal balance of the Legacy Debt that the Company will be unable to pay at maturity on March
31, 2012 (or upon earlier termination under the provisions of the Legacy Credit Agreement).

Due to the surrender and transfer to the Bank of the REIT Securities, our operating losses will increase.

As a result of the Company entering into the implementing agreements with the Bank in May 2011 for the voluntarily
surrender and transfer to the Bank the REIT Securities in return for a reduction in the indebtedness to the Bank equal
to $478 million, the Company’s operating losses likely will increase due to the absence of dividend income on the
preferred REIT securities.

If our lender fails to renew our available credit under the Licensing Credit Agreement for additional terms, our
revolving line of credit and letter of credit facilities will expire on September 30, 2012.

The revolving line of credit and letter of credit facilities under the Licensing Credit Agreement, as amended, expires
(if not earlier terminated under the provisions of the Licensing Credit Agreement) on September 30, 2012.  The
Licensing Credit Agreement, which is the sole source of credit for FCHC and FCMC, does not include a commitment
to renew the $1 million revolving loan commitment, or the letter of credit commitment of up to $6.5 million, which
supports various servicer and debt collector licenses of FCMC, and there is no assurance that Huntington will renew
the credit line or letters of credit at that time.

In addition, the anticipated Bankruptcy Filing of FCHC would constitute events of default under the Legacy Credit
Agreement, which is set in any event to mature on March 31, 2012, and the Licensing Credit Agreement, with the
Legacy Debt automatically due and payable but subject to the automatic stay and other provisions of the U.S.
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Bankruptcy Code.  Although FCHC and FCMC, prior to any Bankruptcy Filing, shall seek the necessary waivers and
agreements of the Bank with respect to the Legacy Credit Agreement and Licensing Credit Agreement to maintain the
line of credit and letter of credit facility of FCMC for its servicing licenses, which is supported by the $7.5 million of
cash collateral previously pledged to the Bank by FCHC and FCMC under the Legacy Credit Agreement and
Licensing Credit Agreement, there can be no assurance that FCHC and FCMC will obtain such waivers and
agreements.  In the event that such waivers and agreements are not obtained, the business of FCMC may be adversely
affected should FCHC proceed with the filing of a bankruptcy petition.
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If our lenders fail to renew our loans under the Legacy Credit Agreement for additional terms or provide us with
refinancing opportunities, our legacy indebtedness will become due and payable on March 31, 2012.

The principal sum of Legacy Debt owed to Huntington under the Legacy Credit Agreement, which totaled
approximately $808.8 million as of December 31, 2011, is due on March 31, 2012 (if not earlier under the provisions
of the Legacy Credit Agreement).  The Legacy Credit Agreement does not include a commitment to refinance this
outstanding balance.  Without an extension, renewal, modification, or amendment by the Bank of the Legacy Credit
Agreement, if the subsidiaries of FCHC (other than FCMC), which are obligated under the Legacy Credit Agreement,
are unable to repay to the Bank the remaining principal and interest due by March 31, 2012, which is expected, the
Company will be unable to repay the Legacy Debt and the Bank would have all available rights and remedies,
including a foreclosure on the assets pledged to the Bank (which no longer includes equity interests in FCMC, but
would include cash held by FCMC in the amount of $7.5 million), which could have a material impact on our business
and operations and render us insolvent.

In addition, the anticipated Bankruptcy Filing of FCHC would constitute events of default under the Legacy Credit
Agreement, which is set in any event to mature on March 31, 2012, and the Licensing Credit Agreement, with the
Legacy Debt automatically due and payable but subject to the automatic stay and other provisions of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code.  Although FCHC and FCMC shall seek the necessary waivers and agreements of the Bank with
respect to the Legacy Credit Agreement and Licensing Credit Agreement to maintain the line of credit and letter of
credit facility of FCMC for its servicing licenses, which is supported by the $7.5 million of cash collateral previously
pledged to the Bank by FCHC and FCMC under the Legacy Credit Agreement and Licensing Credit Agreement, there
can be no assurance that FCHC and FCMC will obtain such waivers and agreements.  In the event that such waivers
and agreements are not obtained, the business of FCMC may be adversely affected should FCHC proceed with the
filing of a bankruptcy petition.

The clients for whom we service loans may transfer our rights as servicer and we may be unable to add business or
take appropriate cost-saving measures to replace reduced revenues.

Under the terms of FCMC’s servicing agreements with third parties, our clients have, in general, reserved the right to
terminate our servicing of their loans without cause upon minimal notice and the payment of minimal or no
termination penalties.  In addition, with respect to one of FCMC’s significant servicing clients, Bosco I, the client’s loan
agreement with its lenders expired on May 28, 2011, without being renewed or extended.  Although Bosco I is still the
owner of the collateral and FCMC remains as the servicer of the mortgage loans, it is uncertain whether the lenders
will foreclose on the collateral or continue in the foreseeable future to permit FCMC to remain the servicer of the
mortgage loans.  In addition, should FCMC be unable to attract new business or should clients exercise their rights to
terminate a significant portion of the loans currently serviced by FCMC, FCMC may be unable to add business or take
appropriate cost-saving measures to replace the reduced revenues or avoid insolvency.  If any of our four largest
servicing clients terminate us as servicer, that would represent a loss of a significant portion of our servicing revenue
and our operations and financial condition would be adversely affected, which could result in our insolvency,
including the insolvency of FCMC.
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Our ability to fund operating expenses depends on the cash flow received from servicing loans for third parties.

The line of credit available for FCMC under the Licensing Credit Agreement is limited to $1.0 million, which expires
September 30, 2012.  If the cash flow received by FCMC from servicing loans and performing due diligence services
for third parties is insufficient to sustain the cost of operating FCMC’s business, and we have fully utilized our
licensing credit facility, our operations and financial condition would be adversely affected, which could result in our
insolvency, including the insolvency of FCMC.

A prolonged economic slowdown or a lengthy or severe recession could harm our servicing operations, particularly if
it results in a further decline in real estate values.

The risks associated with our servicing business are more acute during periods of economic slowdown or recession
because these periods may be accompanied by decreased real estate values.  Any material decline in real estate values
would increase the loan-to-value ratios on loans that we service for third parties and, therefore, weaken any collateral
coverage, increase the likelihood of a borrower with little or no equity in his or her home defaulting and increase the
possibility of a loss or reduced servicing and collection revenues if a borrower defaults.  We are also subject to
servicing risks from decreasing interest rates.  A significant decrease in interest rates could increase the rate at which
the loans that we service for third parties are prepaid and reduce FCMC’s servicing and collection income in
subsequent periods.

We may not be successful in expanding or implementing our planned business of providing specialty servicing and
other mortgage related services for other entities on a fee-paying basis.

The servicing and mortgage-related services industries are highly competitive.  Prior to 2010, FCMC did not
historically provide such services to unrelated third parties.  Additionally, the absence of a rating by a statistical rating
agency as a primary or special servicer of residential mortgage loans may make it difficult to compete or effectively
market FCMC’s services to entities that rely on such ratings as a factor in the selection of a servicer for their loans.  If
we do not succeed in expanding our business of providing such services to third parties, or prove unable to provide
such services on a profitable basis, such a failure could adversely affect our operations and financial condition.

If we do not obtain and maintain the appropriate state licenses, we will not be allowed to service mortgage loans in
affected states, which would adversely affect our operations.

The requirements imposed by state mortgage finance licensing laws vary considerably.  In addition to the requirement
for a license to engage in mortgage origination activities, many mortgage licensing laws impose a licensing obligation
to service residential mortgage loans.  Further, certain state collection agency licensing laws require entities collecting
on current, delinquent or defaulted loans for others or to acquire such loans to be licensed as well.

Under the SAFE Act of 2008, which establishes minimum standards for the licensing and registration of individuals
meeting the definition of a mortgage loan originator, the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD),
which until a transfer of authority to the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (CFPB) was delegated the authority to
ensure that every state meet the requirements of the SAFE Act, issued proposed rules on December 15, 2009.  In those
rules, HUD took the informal position that individuals who perform loan modifications for servicers meet the
definition of “mortgage loan originator” for purposes of the state versions of the SAFE Act.  Several states adopted this
informal position, pending the publication of final rules from HUD or CFPB.  Other states have moved to either
specifically include or exempt those individuals working for servicers from the definition of “mortgage loan
originator.”  On June 30, 2011, HUD issued a final rule, but did not adopt its proposed position on loan modification
activities, deferring the question to the CFPB.  The CFPB, which took over responsibilities on the SAFE Act on July
21, 2011, re-published HUD’s final rule on December 19, 2011 as an interim final rule establishing a Regulation H for
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public comment by February 17, 2012, with only non-substantive technical and conforming changes.  Significantly,
the CFPB has to date not adopted the exception for loss mitigation activities for borrowers reasonably likely to default
applicable to federally regulated institutions.  As a result, individuals who engage in loan modification activities for
state regulated servicers may potentially fall within the definition of a loan originator and be required to hold
individual licenses within a particular state.  Furthermore, state SAFE Acts impose civil and criminal penalties on both
individuals and companies for failure to comply with their requirements.  This individual licensing issue is currently
in-flux, and subject to change pending a final rule from the CFPB, and a more thorough review of the licensing policy
from state regulators over the coming months.
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As the examinations for licensing under the SAFE Act (which is required for those not employed by a Federally
regulated institution) generally cover the origination and not servicing of loans, there can be no assurance that our
staff or those we hire will be able to pass the required state and national exams and satisfy individual licensing
requirements in sufficient numbers to continue loan modifications efforts in those states where SAFE Act licensing is
required.  Any such failures may result in FCMC losing a license in any such state that requires a servicer to consider
a modification prior to foreclosure and a loss of servicing business.  In the alternative, if hiring individuals who are
already licensed under the SAFE Act is necessary, such individuals may not have adequate experience servicing or
modifying loans and we could be at a competitive disadvantage from an internal cost perspective to federally
regulated institutions, which are not subject to individual licensing requirements.

Approximately 30% of the states have enacted broader state laws that specifically require or are interpreted to require
individuals who perform loan modifications, including as part of loss mitigation, be licensed as a mortgage loan
originator.  Although FCMC has encountered difficulty in having its servicing employees pass the SAFE Act exams,
which focus primarily on loan originations, and may face regulatory action and penalties in those states in which
employee loan originator licenses to the extent required to perform loan modifications may not yet have been
obtained, fourteen (approximately 25%) of its servicing employees have passed the Federal SAFE Act exam and, in
the states requiring loan originator licenses to perform loan modifications, employees have passed a state SAFE Act
exam, with an individual license having been granted to an employee(s) in a few of those states and applications
pending in the other states.

Once licenses are obtained by a company, state regulators impose additional ongoing obligations on licensees, such as
maintaining certain minimum net worth or line of credit requirements.  In limited instances, the net worth calculation
may not include recourse on any contingent liabilities.  If the Company’s servicing subsidiary, FCMC, does not, among
other things, meet these minimum net worth or line of credit requirements, state regulators may revoke or suspend
FCMC’s licenses and prevent FCMC from continuing to service loans in such states, which would adversely affect
FCMC’s operations and financial condition and ability to attract new servicing customers.

A number of the second-lien mortgage loans that we service are subordinated to ARM or interest-only mortgages that
may be subject to monthly payment increases, which may result in delinquencies and a decrease in servicing and
collection revenues.

A number of the second-lien mortgage loans that we acquired prior to the March 2009 Restructuring, which we
continue to service through FCMC for third parties, are subordinated to an adjustable rate mortgage (ARM) held by a
third party that was originated in a period of unusually low interest rates or originated with a below market interest
rate, or to an interest-only mortgage.  A substantial majority of these ARMs bore a fixed rate for the first two or three
years of the loan, followed by annual interest and payment rate resets.  As a result, holders of ARM loans face
monthly payment increases following interest rate adjustments.  Similarly, interest-only loans typically required
principal payments to be made after the first one or two years from the date of the loan.  The decreased availability of
refinancing alternatives has impacted the run-off that typically occurs as an ARM resets or the interest-only loans
begin to require the payment of principal.  Interest rate adjustments or principal becoming payable on first-lien
mortgages may also have a direct impact on a borrower’s ability to repay any underlying second-lien mortgage loan on
a property.  As a result, delinquencies on these loans may increase and our ability to service and collect on these loans
may be adversely affected, resulting in a decrease in our servicing and collection revenues and cash flows.
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We are subject to losses from the mortgage loans we acquired and originated prior to the Restructuring due to
fraudulent and negligent acts on the part of loan applicants, mortgage brokers, sellers of loans we acquired, vendors
and our employees.

When we acquired and originated mortgage loans, including those mortgage loans transferred to the Trust as part of
the March 2009 Restructuring, which we currently service for third parties, we typically relied heavily upon
information supplied by third parties, including the information contained in the loan application, property appraisal,
title information and, employment and income stated on the loan application.  If any of this information was
intentionally or negligently misrepresented and such misrepresentation was not detected prior to the acquisition or
funding of the loan, the value of the loan may end up being significantly lower than expected or the loan may violate
various laws or regulations.  Whether a misrepresentation was made by the loan applicant, the mortgage broker,
another third party or one of our employees, we generally bear the risk of loss associated with the misrepresentation or
may face liability for such actions except when we purchased loans pursuant to contracts that include a right of return
and the seller remains sufficiently creditworthy to render such right meaningful.

Legal proceedings and regulatory investigations could be brought or initiated which could adversely affect our
financial results.

Various companies throughout the mortgage industry have been named as defendants in individual and class action
law suits and have been the subject of regulatory investigations challenging residential loan servicing and origination
practices (even as an acquirer of a loan), including, with respect to subprime loans, which we originated and acquired,
and most recently, standing to bring a foreclosure action, foreclosure processes and procedures and the verification of
information included in and notarization of affidavits filed in foreclosure, eviction and bankruptcy matters and the
purchase of force-placed insurance on behalf of homeowners for homes without insurance and costs, premiums,
rebates and commissions associated therewith.  At least some of those participants have paid significant sums to settle
lawsuits or regulatory proceedings brought against them in respect of servicing and origination practices.  There can
be no assurance that similar suits or proceedings will not be brought against us in the future, and that we will not be
subject to resulting fines, sanctions, costs, damages, penalties or claims by counterparties or third parties (or,
additionally with respect to foreclosures, the overturning of foreclosure sales or delays in the foreclosure process) that
could adversely affect our financial results, or substantial damages that could render the Company insolvent.

Given the nature of the industry in which we operate, our businesses is, and in the future may become, involved in
various legal proceedings the ultimate resolution of which is inherently unpredictable and could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Due, in part, to the heavily regulated nature of the industries in which we operate, we are, and in the future may
become, involved in various legal proceedings.  We may therefore incur legal costs and expenses in connection with
the defense of such proceedings.  In addition, the actual cost of resolving our pending and any future legal proceedings
might be substantially higher than any amounts reserved for such matters.  Depending on the remedy sought and the
outcome of such proceedings, the ultimate resolution of our pending and any future legal proceedings, could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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We are exposed to counterparty risk and there can be no assurances that we will manage or mitigate this risk
effectively.

We are exposed to counterparty risk in the event of nonperformance by counterparties to various agreements and
transactions.  The insolvency, unwillingness or inability of a significant counterparty to perform its obligations under
an agreement or transaction, including, without limitation, as a result of the rejection of an agreement or transaction by
counterparty in bankruptcy proceedings, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.  There can be no assurances that we will be effective in managing or mitigating
our counterparty risk.

The success and growth of our servicing business will depend on our ability to adapt to and implement technological
changes, and any failure to do so could result in a material adverse effect on our business.

Our mortgage loan servicing business is dependent upon our ability to effectively adapt to technological advances,
such as the ability to automate loan servicing, process borrower payments and provide customer information over the
Internet, accept electronic signatures and provide instant status updates.  The intense competition in our industry has
led to rapid technological developments, evolving industry standards and frequent releases of new products and
enhancements.  The failure to acquire new technologies or technological solutions when necessary could limit our
ability to remain competitive in our industry and our ability to increase the cost efficiencies of our servicing operation,
which would harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.  Alternatively, adapting to technological
changes in the industry to remain competitive may require us to make significant and costly changes to our loan
servicing and information systems, which could lead to an increase in operating costs.

If we do not manage the changes in our businesses effectively, our financial performance could be harmed.

As we seek to expand our specialty servicing and collections business and seek to engage in new businesses, our
future growth could require capital resources beyond what we currently possess, which would place certain pressures
on our infrastructure.  Our future profitability will similarly depend on the proper management of our wind-down of
the businesses we no longer operate.  We will need to continue to upgrade and expand our financial, operational and
managerial systems and controls, particularly our servicing systems and resources.  If we do not manage the changes
in our servicing business effectively, our expenses could increase, and FCMC’s business, liquidity and financial
condition could be significantly harmed.

The inability to attract and retain qualified employees could significantly harm our business.

We continually need to retain, attract, hire and successfully integrate qualified personnel, including certain servicing
personnel that are able to satisfy licensing requirements under the SAFE Act to perform loan modifications (in those
states where SAFE Act licensing is required for such activities), in an intensely competitive hiring environment in
order to manage and operate our business.  The market for skilled management, professional and loan servicing
personnel is highly competitive.  Competition for qualified personnel may lead to increased hiring and retention
costs.  If we are unable to attract, successfully integrate and retain a sufficient number of skilled personnel at
manageable costs, we will be unable to effectively continue to service mortgage loans, which would harm our
business, results of operations and financial condition.  Due to our operating losses and financial condition, on a
consolidated basis, we may be unable to hire additional qualified personnel and retaining key employees could
become more challenging.
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An interruption in or breach of our information systems may result in lost business and increased expenses.

We rely heavily upon communications and information systems to conduct our business.  Any failure, interruption or
breach in security of or damage to our information systems or the third-party information systems on which we rely
could cause us to be noncompliant with our servicing and collection contracts and significant Federal and state
regulations relating to the handling of customer information, particularly with respect to maintaining the
confidentiality of such information.  A failure, interruption or breach of information systems could result in the loss of
our servicing and collection contracts, regulatory action and litigation against us.  We cannot assure that such failures
or interruptions will not occur or if they do occur that they will be adequately addressed by us or the third parties on
which we rely.

We are exposed to the risk of environmental liabilities with respect to properties to which we took title.

We have historically foreclosed on defaulted mortgage loans in our portfolio, taking title to the properties underlying
those mortgages.  By taking title, we could be subject to environmental liabilities with respect to such properties and
any remaining properties that we have to reacquire.  Hazardous substances or wastes, contaminants, pollutants or
sources thereof may be discovered on these properties during our ownership or after a sale to a third
party.  Environmental defects can reduce the value of and make it more difficult to sell such properties, and we may
be held liable to a governmental entity or to third parties for property damage, personal injury, investigation, and
cleanup costs incurred by these parties in connection with environmental contamination, or may be required to
investigate or clean up hazardous or toxic substances or chemical releases at a property.  These costs could be
substantial.  If we ever become subject to significant environmental liabilities, our business, financial condition,
liquidity and results of operation could be materially and adversely affected.  Although we have not to date incurred
any environmental liabilities in connection with real estate, there can be no assurance that we will not incur any such
liabilities in the future.

A loss of our Chairman and President may adversely affect our operations.

Thomas J. Axon, our Chairman and President, is responsible for making substantially all of the most significant policy
and managerial decisions in our business operations.  These decisions are paramount to the success and future growth
of our servicing business.  Mr. Axon is also the managing member of three of our principal servicing clients, Bosco I,
Bosco II and Bosco III, and was instrumental in maintaining our relationship with Huntington and our operations
under the terms of the Restructuring Agreements and retaining the servicing of loans sold by the Bank’s Trust in the
third and fourth quarters of 2010.  A loss of the services of Mr. Axon could disrupt and adversely affect our
operations.

Risks Related to Our Financial Statements

We may become subject to liability and incur increased expenditures as a result of our having transferred substantially
all our mortgage portfolio related assets to the Bank.

Our transfer of substantially all of our loans and properties acquired through foreclosure to the Bank in March 2009
could expose us to legal action, government investigation or potential Federal income tax liabilities.  The defense of
any such actions could cause the diversion of management’s attention and resources, and we could be required to pay
damages to settle such actions or if any such actions are not resolved in our favor.  Even if resolved in our favor, such
actions could cause us to incur significant legal and other expenses.  Moreover, we may be the subject of negative
publicity and negative reactions from stockholders, creditors, existing and potential servicing clients or others with
which we do business.  The occurrence of any of the foregoing could harm our business.
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Failures in our internal controls and disclosure controls and procedures could lead to material errors in our financial
statements and cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations.

Effective internal controls are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports.  Such controls are designed to
provide reasonable, not absolute assurance that we are providing reliable financial reports.  In addition, the design of
any control system is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events.  Because of these
and other inherent limitations of control systems, there is only reasonable assurance that our controls will succeed in
achieving their goals under all potential future conditions.  If such controls fail to operate effectively, this may result
in material errors in our financial statements.  Deficiencies in our system of internal controls over financial reporting
may require remediation, which could be costly.  Failure to remediate such deficiencies or to implement required new
or improved controls could lead to material errors in our financial statements, cause us to fail to meet our reporting
obligations, and expose us to government investigation or legal action.

Risks Related to the Regulation of Our Industry

New legislation and regulations directed at curbing predatory lending and abusive servicing practices could restrict
our ability to service non-prime residential mortgage loans, which could adversely impact our earnings.

The Federal Home Ownership and Equity Protection Act, or HOEPA, identifies a category of residential mortgage
loans and subjects such loans to restrictions not applicable to other residential mortgage loans.  Loans subject to
HOEPA consist of loans on which certain points and fees or the annual percentage rate, which is based on the interest
rate and certain finance charges, exceed specified levels.  Laws, rules and regulations have been adopted at the state
and local levels that are similar to HOEPA in that they impose certain restrictions on loans that exceed certain cost
parameters.  These state and local laws generally have lower thresholds and broader prohibitions than under the
Federal law.  The restrictions include prohibitions on steering borrowers into loans with high interest rates and away
from more affordable products, selling unnecessary insurance to borrowers, flipping or repeatedly refinancing loans
and originating loans without a reasonable expectation that the borrowers will be able to repay the loans without
regard to the value of the mortgaged property.

Compliance with some of these restrictions requires lenders to make subjective judgments, such as whether a loan will
provide a “net tangible benefit” to the borrower.  These restrictions expose a lender to risks of litigation and regulatory
sanction no matter how carefully a loan is underwritten and impact the way in which a loan is underwritten.  The
remedies for violations of these laws are not based on actual harm to the consumer and can result in damages that
exceed the loan balance.  Liability for violations of HOEPA, as well as violations of many of the state and local
equivalents, would extend not only to us, but to assignees, which may include our warehouse lenders and whole-loan
buyers, regardless of whether such assignee knew of or participated in the violation.

It was our policy not to originate loans that would be subject to HOEPA or similar state and local laws and not to
purchase high-cost loans that would have violated those laws.  If we miscalculated the numerical thresholds described
above, however, we may have mistakenly originated or purchased such loans and bear the related marketplace and
legal risks and consequences.  In a number of states, for example, state and local anti-predatory lending laws and
regulations broaden the trigger test for loans subject to restrictions.  If the numerical thresholds were miscalculated,
certain variations of Tribeca’s loan product, where the lending decision may have been based entirely or primarily on
the borrower’s equity in his or her home and not, or to a lesser extent, on a determination of the borrower’s ability to
repay the loan, would violate HOEPA and many of these state and local anti-predatory lending laws.  In the past, we
sold a portion of these loans to third parties on a whole-loan, servicing-released basis.

We purchased loans that are covered by one of these laws, rules or regulations only if, in our judgment, a loan was
made in accordance with our strict legal compliance standards and without undue risk relative to litigation or to the
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Several states and municipalities have adopted legislation and ordinances establishing new consumer protections
governing loan servicing practices and foreclosure procedures.  Some of the provisions will impede or materially
delay a holder’s ability to foreclose on certain mortgaged properties.  There are proposed laws providing greater
protections to consumers, pertaining to such activities as maintenance of escrow funds, timely crediting of payments
received, limitation on ancillary income, responding to customer inquiries and requirements to conduct loss
mitigation.  On July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the Reform Act)
was signed into law.  The Reform Act, which is designed to improve accountability and transparency in the financial
system and to protect consumers from abusive financial services practices, creates various new requirements affecting
mortgage servicers, such as FCMC, including mandatory escrow accounts for certain mortgage loans; notice
requirements for consumers who waive escrow services; certain prohibitions related to mortgage servicing with
respect to force-placed hazard insurance, qualified written requests, requests to correct certain servicing errors, and
requests concerning the identity and contact information for an owner or assignee of a loan; requirements for prompt
crediting of payments, processing of payoff statements, and monthly statements with certain disclosures for adjustable
rate mortgage loans; and late fee restrictions on high-cost loans.  In addition, a new executive agency and consumer
financial regulator, the Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection (CFPB), was established in the Federal Reserve
System under the Reform Act.  On July 21, 2011, the regulation of the offering and provision of consumer financial
products or services, including mortgage servicing, under certain federal consumer financial laws, was transferred and
consolidated into the CFPB.  The CFPB will also issue regulations that will implement and enforce the new servicing
requirements noted above.  In February 2012, the CFPB announced that it is in the process of drafting new rules
regarding required disclosures on billing statements to be sent to homeowners by mortgage servicers (a prototype of
which has already been released by the CFPB), force-placed insurance, and new disclosures for certain types of
adjustable-rate mortgages.

The Federal Reserve Board approved changes to HOEPA in Regulation Z, which implements the Truth in Lending
Act, to protect consumers from unfair or deceptive home mortgage lending and advertising practices.  Effective
October 1, 2009, the amendments create protections for a new category of loans called “higher-priced mortgage
loans.”  Under these amendments, companies that service mortgage loans are required to credit consumers’ loan
payments as of the date of receipt.  Further, the HOEPA amendments expand the types of loans subject to early
disclosures.  Previously, transaction-specific early disclosures were only required for purchase money mortgage
loans.  The early disclosures now are required with all closed-end non-purchase money mortgage loans, such as
refinancings, closed-end home equity loans and reverse mortgage loans.  Under the Reform Act, HOEPA was revised
to lower APR and point and fee triggers and expand coverage to purchase money mortgages.

We cannot predict whether or in what form Congress or the various state and local legislatures may enact legislation
affecting our business.  We are evaluating the potential impact of these initiatives, if enacted, on our servicing
practices and results of operations.  As a result of these and other initiatives, we are unable to predict whether Federal,
state, or local authorities will require changes in our servicing practices in the future, including reimbursement of fees
charged to borrowers, or will impose fines.  These changes, if required, could adversely affect our profitability,
particularly if we make such changes in response to new or amended laws, regulations or ordinances in states where
we service a significant amount of mortgage loans.

The broad scope of our operations exposes us to risks of noncompliance with an increasing and inconsistent body of
complex laws and regulations at the Federal, state and local levels.

Because we service and collect on loans and have purchased and originated mortgage loans in all 50 states, we must
comply with the laws and regulations pertaining to licensing, disclosure and substantive practices, as well as judicial
and administrative decisions, of all of these jurisdictions, as well as an extensive body of Federal laws and
regulations.  The volume of new or modified laws and regulations has increased in recent years, and government
agencies enforcing these laws, as well as the courts, sometimes interpret the same law in different ways.  The laws and
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regulations of each of these jurisdictions are different, complex and, in some cases, in direct conflict with each
other.  Accordingly, it may be more difficult to identify comprehensively and to interpret accurately applicable laws
and regulations and to employ properly our policies, procedures and systems and train our personnel effectively with
respect to all of these laws and regulations, thereby potentially increasing our exposure to the risks of noncompliance
with these laws and regulations.
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Federal, state and local governmental authorities have focused on the lending and servicing practices of companies in
the non-prime mortgage lending and mortgage servicing industry, sometimes seeking to impose sanctions for practices
such as charging excessive fees, imposing interest rates higher than warranted by the credit risk of the borrower,
imposing prepayment fees, failing to adequately disclose the material terms of loans and abusive servicing and
collection practices.

Our failure to comply with this regulatory regimen can lead to: (i) civil and criminal liability, including potential
monetary penalties; (ii) loss of servicing and debt collection licenses or approved status required for continued
business operations; (iii) demands for indemnification or loan repurchases from purchasers of our loans; (iv) legal
defenses causing delay and expense; (v) adverse effects on our ability, as servicer or debt collector, to enforce loans;
(vi) the imposition of supervisory agreements and cease-and-desist orders; (vii) the borrower having the right to
rescind or cancel the loan transaction; (viii) adverse publicity; (ix) individual and class action lawsuits; (x)
administrative enforcement actions; (xi) damage to our reputation in the industry; or (xii) the inability to obtain credit
to fund our operations.

Although we have systems and procedures directed to comply with these legal requirements and believe that we are in
material compliance with applicable Federal, state and local statutes, rules and regulations, we cannot assure you that
more restrictive laws and regulations will not be adopted in the future, or that governmental bodies or courts will not
interpret existing laws or regulations in a more restrictive manner, which could render our current business practices
noncompliant or which could make compliance more difficult or expensive.  These applicable laws and regulations
are subject to administrative or judicial interpretation, but some of these laws and regulations have been enacted only
recently, or may be interpreted infrequently or only recently and inconsistently.  As a result of infrequent, sparse or
conflicting interpretations, ambiguities in these laws and regulations may leave uncertainty with respect to permitted
or restricted conduct under them.  Any ambiguity under a law to which we are subject may lead to regulatory
investigations, governmental enforcement actions or private causes of action, such as class action lawsuits, with
respect to our compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

We may be subject to fines or other penalties based upon the conduct of our independent brokers.

Mortgage brokers that we utilized prior to November 2007 to source our legacy mortgage originations, have parallel
and separate legal obligations to which they are subject.  While these laws may not explicitly hold the originating
lenders responsible for the legal violations of mortgage brokers, increasingly Federal and state agencies have sought to
impose such assignee liability.  For example, the FTC entered into a settlement agreement with a mortgage lender
where the FTC characterized a broker that had placed all of its loan production with a single lender as the “agent” of the
lender.  The FTC imposed a fine on the lender in part because, as “principal,” the lender was legally responsible for the
mortgage broker’s unfair and deceptive acts and practices.  In the past, the United States Department of Justice sought
to hold a non-prime mortgage lender responsible for the pricing practices of its mortgage brokers, alleging that the
mortgage lender was directly responsible for the total fees and charges paid by the borrower under the Fair Housing
Act even if the lender neither dictated what the mortgage broker could charge nor kept the money for its own
account.  Accordingly, we may be subject to fines or other penalties based upon the conduct of independent mortgage
brokers utilized by us in the past.

We are subject to reputation risks from negative publicity concerning the mortgage industry.

The mortgage industry in which we operate may be subject to periodic negative publicity, which could damage our
reputation and adversely impact our servicing business.
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Reputation risk, or the risk to our business, earnings and capital from negative publicity, is inherent in our
industry.  There is a perception that the borrowers may be unsophisticated and in need of consumer
protection.  Accordingly, from time to time, consumer advocate groups or the media may focus attention on our
services (both past and present), thereby subjecting our industry to the possibility of periodic negative publicity.

We may also be negatively impacted if another company in the mortgage industry or in a related industry engages in
practices resulting in increased public attention to our industry.  Negative publicity may also occur as a result of
judicial inquiries and regulatory or governmental action with respect to the mortgage industry.  Negative publicity
may result in increased regulation and legislative scrutiny of industry practices as well as increased litigation or
enforcement actions by civil and criminal authorities.  Additionally, negative publicity may increase our costs of
doing business and adversely affect our servicing operations by impeding our ability to attract and retain customers
and employees.

During the past several years, the press has widely reported certain industry related concerns, including rising
delinquencies, the tightening of credit and more recently, increasing litigation.  Some of the litigation instituted
against mortgage lenders and servicers is being brought in the form of purported class actions by individuals or by
state or Federal regulators or state attorneys general.  The judicial climate in many states is such that the outcome of
these cases is unpredictable.  If we are subject to increased litigation due to such negative publicity, it could have a
material adverse impact on our results of operations.

We are subject to significant legal and reputation risks and expenses under Federal and state laws concerning privacy,
use and security of customer information.

The Federal Gramm-Leach-Bliley financial reform legislation imposes significant privacy obligations on us in
connection with the collection, use, disposal and security of financial and other nonpublic information provided of
borrowers.  In addition, California and Vermont have enacted, and several other states are considering enacting,
privacy or customer-information-security legislation with even more stringent requirements than those set forth in the
Federal law.  Because laws and rules concerning the use and protection of customer information are continuing to
develop at the Federal and state levels, we expect to incur increased costs in our effort to be and remain in full
compliance with these requirements.  Nevertheless, despite our efforts, we will be subject to legal and reputational
risks in connection with our collection, safeguarding, disposal and use of customer information, and we cannot assure
you that we will not be subject to lawsuits or compliance actions under such state or Federal privacy requirements.  To
the extent that a variety of inconsistent state privacy rules or requirements are enacted, our compliance costs could
substantially increase.

If many of the borrowers of the loans we service become subject to the Servicemembers Civil Relief Act of 2003, our
cash flows and service fee income may be adversely affected.

Under the Servicemembers Civil Relief Act of 2003, or the Civil Relief Act, a borrower who enters active military
service after the origination of his or her mortgage loan generally may not be required to pay interest above an annual
rate of 6%, and the lender is restricted from exercising certain enforcement remedies, including foreclosure, during the
period of the borrower’s active duty status.  The Civil Relief Act also applies to a borrower who was on reserve status
and is called to active duty after origination of the mortgage loan.  The Civil Relief Act was amended on July 30, 2008
by the Housing and Economic Recovery Act of 2008 and Helping Heroes Keep Their Homes Act of 2010 to
temporarily enhance protections for servicemembers relating to mortgages and mortgage foreclosures until
December 31, 2012, by extending the protection period and stay of proceedings from 90 days to nine months and
extending the interest rate limitation on mortgages from the period of military service to the period of military service
and one year thereafter.  On October 13, 2010, the Veterans’ Benefits Act of 2010 became law, which allows for
enforcement of the Civil Relief Act by the U.S. Attorney General and provides for a private right cause of
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in the future, our cash flows and revenues may be adversely affected by compliance with this law.
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Legislative action to provide mortgage relief may negatively impact our business or increase our compliance costs.

As delinquencies, defaults and foreclosures in and of residential mortgages have increased dramatically, there are
several Federal, state and local initiatives to restrict our ability to foreclose and resell the property of a customer in
default.  Any restriction on our ability to foreclose on a loan, any requirement that we forego a portion of the amount
otherwise due on a loan or any requirement that we modify any original loan terms could negatively impact FCMC’s
servicing business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations.  These initiatives have come in the form of
proposed legislation and regulations, including those pertaining to Federal bankruptcy laws, government
investigations and calls for voluntary modifications of mortgages and a national servicing standard for servicing
loans.  Moreover, the Reform Act, state laws and regulatory requirements in certain states such as New York and
North Carolina, recent bills introduced in Congress, a settlement involving servicing and foreclosure practices entered
into between the Federal bank regulators and 14 servicers in April 2011, and a recent settlement with the five largest
mortgage servicers, state attorneys general and Federal agencies, including a new homeowners bill of rights proposed
in California by its state attorney general in response to the settlement, suggest that new national standards for
servicing and foreclosures will be implemented soon that will likely focus on, among other things, payment
processing, billing statements, disclosures, loss mitigation protocols, having a single point of contact for borrowers,
fees (including default fees, late charges and recoupment of third-party fees), force-placed insurance and insurance
escrow accounts, maintenance of real estate owned or securing loans, and the practice of foreclosing while a loan
modification application is pending.  Accordingly, our compliance costs may materially increase, which in turn may
adversely affect the results of operations of FCMC.

Several states and municipalities have adopted legislation and ordinances establishing new consumer protections
governing loan servicing practices and foreclosure procedures.  There are proposed and enacted laws providing greater
protections to consumers, pertaining to such activities as maintenance of escrow funds, timely crediting of payments
received, limitation on ancillary income, responding to customer inquiries and requirements to conduct loss
mitigation.  In addition, there are several Federal and state government initiatives, including HAMP under the
Homeowner Affordability and Stability Plan, which seek to obtain the voluntary agreement of servicers to subscribe to
a code of conduct or statement of principles or methodologies when working with borrowers facing foreclosure on
their homes.  Generally speaking, the principles call for servicers to reach out to borrowers before their loans “reset”
with higher monthly payments that might result in a default by a borrower and seek to modify loans prior to the
reset.  Applicable servicing agreements, Federal tax law and accounting standards limit the ability of a servicer to
modify a loan before the borrower has defaulted on the loan or the servicer has determined that a default by the
borrower is reasonably likely to occur.  Servicing agreements generally require the servicer to act in the best interests
of the note holders or at least not to take actions that are materially adverse to the interests of the
noteholders.  Compliance with the code or principles must conform to these other contractual, tax and accounting
standards.  As a result, servicers have to confront competing demands from consumers and those advocating on their
behalf to make home retention the overarching priority when dealing with borrowers in default, on the one hand, and
the requirements of noteholders to maximize returns on the loans, on the other.
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Risks Related to Our Securities

Thomas J. Axon effectively controls our company, substantially reducing the influence of our other stockholders.

Thomas J. Axon, our Chairman and President, beneficially owns more than 45% of our outstanding common stock,
and 20% of the stock of FCMC.  As a result, Mr. Axon will be able to influence significantly the actions that require
stockholder approval, including: the election of our directors; and, the approval of mergers, sales of assets or other
corporate transactions or matters submitted for stockholder approval.

Furthermore, the members of the board of directors as a group (including Mr. Axon) beneficially own a substantial
majority of our outstanding common stock.  As a result, our other stockholders may have little or no influence over
matters submitted for stockholder approval.  In addition, Mr. Axon’s influence and/or that of our current board
members could preclude any unsolicited acquisition of us and consequently materially adversely affect the price of
our common stock.

Our common stock is quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board, which may adversely impact the price and liquidity of the
common stock, and our ability to raise capital.

Our common stock is quoted under the stock symbol “FCMC.OB” on the “OTC Bulletin Board,” a centralized quotation
service for over-the-counter securities and is subject to the rules promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 relating to “penny stocks.”  These rules require brokers who sell securities that are subject to the rules, and who
sell to persons other than established customers and institutional accredited investors, to complete required
documentation, make suitability inquiries of investors and provide investors with information concerning the risks of
trading in the security.  These requirements could make it more difficult to buy or sell our common stock in the open
market.  In addition, this could materially adversely affect our ability to raise capital, and could also have other
negative results, including the potential loss of confidence by employees, the loss of institutional investor interest and
fewer business development opportunities.

Our organizational documents, Delaware law and our Restructuring Agreements may make it harder for us to be
acquired without the consent and cooperation of our board of directors, management and our Bank.

Several provisions of our organizational documents, Delaware law, and our Restructuring Agreements may deter or
prevent a takeover attempt, including a takeover attempt in which the potential purchaser offers to pay a per share
price greater than the current market price of our common stock.

Our classified board of directors will make it more difficult for a person seeking to obtain control of us to do so.  Also,
our supermajority voting requirements may discourage or deter a person from attempting to obtain control of us by
making it more difficult to amend the provisions of our certificate of incorporation to eliminate an anti-takeover effect
or the protections they afford minority stockholders, and will make it more difficult for a stockholder or stockholder
group to put pressure on our board of directors to amend our certificate of incorporation to facilitate a takeover
attempt.  In addition, under the terms of our certificate of incorporation, our board of directors has the authority,
without further action by the stockholders, to issue shares of preferred stock in one or more series and to fix the rights,
preferences, privileges and restrictions thereof.  The ability to issue shares of preferred stock could tend to discourage
takeover or acquisition proposals not supported by our current board of directors.

The preceding provisions of our organizational documents could discourage potential acquisition proposals, delay or
prevent a change of control and prevent changes in our management, even if such events would be in the best interests
of our stockholders.
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Under the terms of the Restructuring Agreements, we cannot enter into mergers, consolidations, sales of any
substantial portion of our assets (other than in connection with a restructuring or spinoff of FCMC), or certain material
changes to our capital structure, without the prior approval of our Bank.  In addition, under the terms of Deferred
Payment Agreement entered into with the Bank, FCMC will pay to the Bank in respect of a “qualifying transaction”
consummated during the term of the agreement an amount equal to ten percent of the aggregate value of the qualifying
transaction minus $4 million.

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate and cause our stock price to decline.

Because of the nature of our business and our Restructuring Agreements, our quarterly operating results may
fluctuate, and we are likely to incur additional operating losses.  Our results may fluctuate as a result of any of the
following: (i) the timing and amount of collections on loans that we service; (ii) the rate of delinquency, default,
foreclosure and prepayment on the loans we service; (iii) changes in interest rates; (iv) our inability to successfully
enter the new business of servicing loans for third parties; (v) further declines in the estimated value of real property
securing mortgage loans; (vi) increases in operating expenses associated with the changes in our business; (vii)
general economic and market conditions; and, (viii) the effects of state and Federal tax, monetary and fiscal policies.

Many of these factors are beyond our control, and we cannot predict their potential effects on the price of our common
stock.  We cannot assure you that the market price of our common stock will not fluctuate or further significantly
decline or become worthless in the future.

ITEM
1B.

UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable.

ITEM
2.

PROPERTIES

On March 4, 2005, we entered into a sublease agreement with Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. to sublease
approximately 33,866 square feet of space on the 25th floor at 101 Hudson Street, Jersey City, New Jersey for use as
executive and administrative offices (the “25th Floor Premises”).  Effective as of June 26, 2009, as a result of Lehman
Brothers Holdings Inc.’s rejection of its lease under bankruptcy law, the 25th Floor Premises is now leased directly
with 101 Hudson Leasing Associates.  On July 27, 2005, we entered into a lease agreement with 101 Hudson Leasing
Associates to lease approximately 6,856 square feet of space on the 37th floor at 101 Hudson Street, Jersey City, New
Jersey for use as administrative offices (the “37th Floor Premises”).  On March 30, 2007, we entered into a lease
agreement with 101 Hudson Leasing Associates to lease approximately an additional 6,269 square feet of space on the
37th floor at 101 Hudson Street, Jersey City, New Jersey for use as administrative offices (the “Expansion
Premises”).  The term of the combined lease with 101 Hudson Leasing Associates for the 25th Floor Premises, 37th
Floor Premises and Expansion Premises is through December 31, 2013, with a base rent of $1,181,000 annually,
payable in monthly installments of $98,000, until December 31, 2010, and thereafter a base rent of $1,597,000
annually, payable in monthly installments of $133,000.

At December 31, 2010, the 37th Floor Premises and the Expansion Premises were not being utilized and were
marketed for sublet.  At December 31, 2010, the remaining lease payments, net of estimated sublet payments (based
on the Company’s estimate for subleasing the space), in the amount of $258,000 were accrued and non-usable
leasehold improvements in the amount of $110,000 were written off.
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In April 2011, we entered into a sublease for the 37th Floor Premises (6,856 square feet) for a term ending December
31, 2013 with a base rent of $158,000 annually, payable in monthly installments of $13,000.  The Expansion Premises
continues to be marketed for sublet.
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ITEM
3.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are involved in routine litigation matters generally incidental to our business, which primarily consist of legal
actions related to the enforcement of our rights under mortgage loans we hold, held, service or collect for others, none
of which is individually or in the aggregate material.  In addition, because we service and collect on mortgage loans
throughout the country, and prior to November 2007 originated and acquired mortgage loans on a nationwide basis,
we must comply and were required to comply with various state and Federal lending, servicing and debt collection
laws, rules and regulations and we are routinely subject to investigations and inquiries by regulatory agencies, some of
which arise from complaints filed by borrowers, none of which to the extent pending or resolved is individually or in
the aggregate material.

ITEM
4.

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not Applicable.
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PART II

ITEM
5.

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information.  Effective with the opening of stock market trading on April 22, 2009, the Company’s common
stock has been quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board under the trading symbol “FCMC.OB.”  Our common stock was
delisted from Nasdaq as of November 3, 2008, and was quoted under the stock symbol “FCMC.PK” on the “Pink Sheets,”
a centralized quotation service for over-the-counter securities, until April 22, 2009.

The following table sets forth the bid prices for the common stock and the sales prices for the common stock on the
OTC Bulletin Board, for the periods indicated.  Trading during these periods was limited and sporadic; therefore, the
following quotes may not accurately reflect the true market value of the securities.  Prices since November 3, 2008
reflect inter-dealer prices without retail markup or markdown or commissions and may not represent actual
transactions.

High Low
Year Ended December 31, 2010:
First Quarter $ 1.00 $ 0.41
Second Quarter 0.48 0.13
Third Quarter 0.40 0.05
Fourth Quarter 0.23 0.11
Year Ended December 31, 2011:
First Quarter $ 0.19 $ 0.08
Second Quarter 0.19 0.11
Third Quarter 0.33 0.10
Fourth Quarter 0.40 0.26

Holders.  As of March 16, 2012, there were approximately 365 record holders of the Company’s common stock.

Dividend Policy.  Franklin Holding historically has not paid cash dividends on its common stock and due to operating
losses and deficit stockholders’ equity does not expect to pay a cash dividend in the future.  In addition, the
Restructuring Agreements expressly restrict payments to stockholders, without the prior written consent of the Bank,
which includes our ability to pay dividends.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Compensation Plans.  The information required by this item concerning
securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans is set forth in Item 12, “Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.”

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

None.

ITEM
6.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Not applicable because the Company is a Smaller Reporting Company.
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ITEM
7.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations includes
forward-looking statements.  We have based these forward-looking statements on our current plans, expectations and
beliefs about future events.  In light of the risks, uncertainties and assumptions discussed under Item1A. “Risk Factors”
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and other factors discussed in this section, there are risks that our actual
experience will differ materially from the expectations and beliefs reflected in the forward-looking statements in this
section and throughout this report.  For more information regarding what constitutes a forward-looking statement,
please refer to Item 1A. “Risk Factors.”

General

The following discussion of our operations and financial condition should be read in conjunction with our financial
statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.  In these discussions, most percentages and dollar
amounts have been rounded to aid presentation.  As a result, all such figures are approximations.  The following
management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is based on the amounts reported
in the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.  These Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).  In preparing the
financial statements, management is required to make various judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts.  Changes in these estimates and assumptions could have a material effect on the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Effective with the March 2009 Restructuring, the loans transferred by the Company to the Trust continued to be
included on the Company’s balance sheet in accordance with GAAP for certain periods as indicated below, and,
therefore, the revenues from such loans during such periods have been reflected in the Company’s consolidated results,
notwithstanding the fact that trust certificates representing an undivided interest in approximately 83% of the Trust
assets were transferred to Huntington in the Restructuring.  Although the transfer of the trust certificates, representing
approximately 83% of the Portfolio, to the REIT was structured in substance as a sale of financial assets, the transfer,
for accounting purposes, was treated, through September 30, 2010, as a financing under GAAP under Accounting
Standards Codification Topic 860, Transfers and Servicing (“ASC Topic 860”).  While Franklin transferred legal
ownership and the economic interests and risks relating to the underlying assets of the related trust certificates to the
Bank in exchange for preferred and common stocks of the Bank’s REIT, the transfer did not meet one of the technical
requirements of ASC Topic 860 insofar as, for accounting purposes, it could not be assured that the transferred assets
were legally isolated from the Company and put presumptively beyond the reach of the Company and its creditors,
even in a bankruptcy.

Except for and effective with the sale of loans sold by Huntington in the third and fourth quarters of 2010, the fees
received from Huntington subsequent to March 31, 2009 for servicing their loans, and the third-party costs incurred by
us in the servicing and collection of their loans and reimbursed by Huntington, for purposes of these Consolidated
Financial Statements have not been recognized as servicing fees and reimbursement of third-party servicing costs, but
as additional interest and other income earned and additional, offsetting expenses as if the Company continued to own
the loans.

During the quarters ended September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2010, the Company and FCMC, its servicing
business subsidiary, entered into a series of transactions with Huntington facilitating sales by the Bank’s Trust to third
parties of substantially all of the loans underlying the trust certificates issued by the Trust.  These transactions,
described below, were effective in July, September and December 2010, and are individually referred to as the “July
2010 Transaction” or the “July Loan Sale,” the “September 2010 Transaction” or the “September Loan Sale,” and the
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“December 2010 Transaction” or the “December Loan Sale,” respectively.
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As a result of the third and fourth quarter loan sales by the Bank’s Trust and effective as of the dates of the loan sales,
the transfer by the Company in March 2009 of 83% of trust certificates in the Trust to the Bank’s REIT that had been
accounted for as a secured financing in accordance with GAAP, are accounted for as sales of loans in accordance with
GAAP, to the extent of the loans sold by the Trust.  The sales of the loans by the Bank’s Trust also has resulted in
treating substantially all of the loans represented by the remaining 17% in trust certificates held by the Company as
sold, to the extent of the loans sold by the Trust, in accordance with GAAP.  Accordingly, the fees received from
Huntington subsequent to March 31, 2009 and through June 30, 2010 and during the quarter ended September 30,
2010 for servicing their loans up to the respective effective dates of the July Loan Sale and the September Loan Sale,
and during the quarter ended December 31, 2010 up to the respective effective date of the December Loan Sale, and
the third-party costs incurred by us in the servicing and collection of their loans and reimbursed by Huntington, for
purposes of these Consolidated Financial Statements were not recognized as servicing fees and reimbursement of
third-party servicing costs, but instead as additional interest and other income earned, with offsetting expenses in an
equal amount, as if the Company owned and self serviced the loans.

The treatment as a financing on the Company’s balance sheet did not affect the cash flows of the March 2009 transfer,
and has not affected the Company’s cash flows or its reported net income.  The treatment of the Loan Sales and the
December Loan Sale to the extent of the 83% represented by the trust certificates held by the Bank’s REIT in the
quarters ended September 30 and December 31, 2010 as a sale of financial assets also did not affect the cash flows of
the Company or its reported net income.  However, the treatment of the Loan Sales and the December Loan Sale to
the extent of the 17% represented by the trust certificates held by the Company in the quarters ended September 30
and December 31, 2010, which also were treated as sales of financial assets, did affect the Company’s cash flows and
reported net income.

The net proceeds from the Loan Sales and the December Loan Sale were distributed to the Trust certificate holders on
a pro rata basis by percentage interest.  Accordingly, approximately 17% of the net proceeds were received by the
Company and were applied to pay down the Legacy Debt owed to the Bank, as 83% of the trust certificates were held
by the Bank’s REIT, and the Company’s investment in REIT securities (which were not marketable and ultimately
surrendered on May 23, 2011) was realized only through declared and paid dividends or a redemption of the securities
by the REIT.  See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

On May 23, 2011, the Company entered into the Settlement Agreement with the Bank covering the surrender and
transfer of the Company’s investment in preferred stock and common stock of the Bank’s REIT subsidiary.  See Note
11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Executive Summary

The Company had net income attributed to common stockholders of $22.2 million for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2011, compared with a net loss of $55.3 million for the twelve months of 2011.  The Company had net
income per common share for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 of $2.77 and $2.76 on a basic and diluted
basis, respectively, compared to a loss per common share of $6.89 on both a diluted and basic basis for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2010.  The net income in the twelve months of 2011 resulted principally from the Bank’s
REIT declaring and paying dividends on March 31, 2011 for the third and fourth quarters of 2010 and for the full year
of 2011 in the aggregate amount of $63.8 million, all of which was recognized in the six months ended June 30,
2011.  In addition, the settlement of interest rate swap liabilities resulted in a gain of $14.7 million recognized in the
quarter ended June 30, 2011.

50

Edgar Filing: FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORP/DE/ - Form 10-K

79



While the Company had net income attributed to common stockholders of $22.2 million for the full year ended
December 31, 2011 due to the dividend recognized on the REIT Securities and the gain from the settlement of the
swap liability, the Company returned to net losses in the quarter ended September 30, 2011.  The Company had a net
loss attributed to common stockholders of $12.1 million and $11.9 million, respectively, for the third and fourth
quarters of 2011.

The net loss for the twelve months of 2010 was attributed principally to the Bank’s REIT not declaring and not paying
a dividend in the aggregate amount of approximately $21 million during the six months ended December 31, 2010
relating to the Company’s investment in REIT securities, net negative fair value adjustments (Fair valuation
adjustments) recognized during the year 2010 in the amount of $16.0 million on the Investment in trust certificates at
fair value (including a net loss in the amount of $9.8 million on the sales of loans by the Bank’s Trust and the Bank in
the third and fourth quarters of 2010 and other net negative fair value adjustments of $6.2 million during 2010), and
the absence of interest income on the Company’s 17% interest in trust certificates (Investment in trust certificates at
fair value) from the loans sold by the Bank and the Bank’s Trust in July and September 2010.

The Company had stockholders’ deficit of $827.7 million at December 31, 2011, or a deficit book value per common
share of $103.09.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is based on the amounts
reported in our Consolidated Financial Statements, which are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, or GAAP.  In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements,
management is required to make various judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the financial statements and
disclosures.  Changes in these estimates and assumptions could have a material effect on our Consolidated Financial
Statements.  The following is a summary of the critical accounting policies believed by management to be those that
require subjective and complex judgment that could potentially affect reported results of operations.  Management
believes that the estimates and judgments used in preparing these Consolidated Financial Statements were the most
appropriate at that time.

Noncontrolling Interest – The Company accounts for a 20% equity interest in FCMC to a related party in accordance
with Topic 810, Consolidations, applying consolidation accounting under Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51,
Consolidated Financial Statements (“ARB 51”).

Investment in REIT Securities – Investment in REIT securities, common and preferred stocks of the Bank’s REIT,
which was surrendered on May 23, 2011, was carried at cost.  The REIT Securities could not have been sold or
redeemed by the Company, and was, therefore, classified as of the date of purchase as non-marketable.  The
Company’s Investment in REIT securities was evaluated periodically for other than temporary impairment.  Due to the
surrender of the REIT Securities in May 2011, there was no Investment in REIT securities remaining at December 31,
2011.

Investment in Trust Certificates – Investment in trust certificates, representing approximately 17% of the Portfolio not
transferred to the Bank’s REIT in the March 2009 Restructuring, was classified as “available for sale,” and a fair value
adjustment at March 31, 2009 was recorded as Loss on valuation of trust certificates and notes receivable held for
sale.  The Investment in trust certificates was carried at fair market value, and the certificates were valued as of the
end of each reporting period.  Subsequent to March 31, 2009, changes in fair value were recorded in earnings as Fair
valuation adjustments.  The fair value of the trust certificates was based on an assessment of the underlying
investment, expected cash flows and other market-based information, and where observable market prices and other
data were not available for similar investments, pricing models or discounted cash flow analyses, using observable
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market data where available, were utilized to estimate fair market value.
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At December 31, 2011, there was no remaining balance in the Investment in trust certificates.  At December 31, 2010,
the Investment in trust certificates consisted solely of a small number of real estate properties acquired through
foreclosure.

Mortgage Loans and Real Estate Held for Sale – As part of the Restructuring, approximately 83% of the Portfolio was
transferred to the REIT and such loans and owned real estate (acquired through foreclosure) were classified as “held for
sale.”  As a result, a loss on the transfer was recorded as Loss on mortgage loans and real estate held for
sale.  Subsequent to March 31, 2009 and until certain periods identified below, Mortgage loans and real estate held for
sale were carried at the lower of cost or market value.  The transfer was accounted for as a secured financing in
accordance with GAAP, ASC Topic 860, because for accounting purposes the requisite level of certainty that the
transferred assets were legally isolated from the Company and put presumptively beyond the reach of the Company
and its creditors, including in a bankruptcy proceeding, was not achieved.  Accordingly, in accordance with GAAP,
except to the extent of and prior to the sale of loans by the Bank, as applicable, in July, September and December
2010, the mortgage loans and real estate remained on the Company’s balance sheet classified as Mortgage loans and
real estate held for sale securing the Nonrecourse liability in an equal amount.  The fair value of the Mortgage loans
and real estate held for sale was based on an assessment of the underlying residential 1-4 family mortgage loans and
real estate, expected cash flows and other market-based information, and where observable market prices and other
data were not available for similar loans, pricing models or discounted cash flow analyses, using observable market
data where available, were utilized to estimate market value.  Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale were valued
as of the end of each reporting period, and changes in fair value were recorded in earnings as Fair valuation
adjustments.

At December 31, 2011, there was no balance remaining of Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale due to the Loan
Sales by the Bank’s Trust of approximately 83% of the Portfolio.  At December 31, 2010, the Mortgage loans and real
estate held for sale consisted solely of real estate properties acquired through foreclosure.

Nonrecourse Liability – The Nonrecourse liability was the offset to, and was secured by, the Mortgage loans and real
estate held for sale.  The Company elected the fair value option for the Nonrecourse liability, and adjustments to fair
value were recorded as Fair valuation adjustments.  No interest expense was recorded on the Nonrecourse liability as
any payments received from the Trust on the trust certificates, comprising the Mortgage loans and real estate held for
sale, were recorded as a reduction to the balance of the Nonrecourse liability, which was adjusted to fair value each
quarter through the fair valuation adjustments line item.

At December 31, 2011, there was no Nonrecourse liability as there was no remaining balance of Mortgage loans and
real estate held for sale.

Fair Valuation Adjustments – Fair valuation adjustments include amounts subsequent to March 31, 2009 related to
adjustments in the fair value of the Investment in trust certificates at fair value and the Nonrecourse liability,
adjustments to the lower of cost or market related to Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale, and for losses on
sales of real estate owned.

Notes Receivable Held for Sale, Net – At March 31, 2009, as part of the Restructuring, Notes receivable held for sale,
net, which represent the loans and assets that collateralize the Unrestructured Debt, are classified as “held for sale” as
this portfolio, from time to time, is marketed for sale, and a lower of cost or market value was recorded as Loss on
valuation of investments in trust certificates and notes receivable held for sale.  Subsequent to March 31, 2009, the fair
value of the Notes receivable held for sale, net is based on an assessment of the underlying residential 1-4 family
mortgage loans, expected cash flows and other market-based information, and where observable market prices and
other data are not available for similar loans, pricing models or discounted cash flow analyses, using observable
market data where available, are utilized to estimate market value.  Notes receivable held for sale, net are valued as of

Edgar Filing: FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORP/DE/ - Form 10-K

82



the end of each reporting period, and changes in fair value are recorded as Fair valuation adjustments.

52

Edgar Filing: FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORP/DE/ - Form 10-K

83



Income Recognition on Investment in Trust Certificates and Mortgage Loans and Real Estate Held for Sale – Income
on the mortgage loans and real estate collateralizing the Investment in trust certificates and the Mortgage loans and
real estate held for sale is estimated based on the available information on these loans and real estate provided by the
Bank and from the loans and real estate serviced for the Trust.  The estimated income on the Mortgage loans and real
estate held for sale does not represent cash received and retained by the Company and is essentially offset through a
valuation adjustment of the Nonrecourse liability.

Derivatives – As part of the Company’s interest-rate risk management process, we entered into interest rate swap
agreements in 2008.  In accordance with Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging (“Topic 815”), as amended and
interpreted, derivative financial instruments are reported on the consolidated balance sheets at their fair value.  All of
our interest rate swaps were executed with the Bank.

In conjunction with the Restructuring, and at the request of the Bank, effective March 31, 2009, the Company
exercised its right to terminate two non-amortizing fixed-rate interest rate swaps with the Bank, with an aggregate
notional amount of $390 million.  The carrying value included in accumulated other comprehensive loss (“AOCL”)
within stockholders’ equity, which is related to the terminated hedges, at December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $0 and $8.2
million, respectively.

On January 25, 2011, the Bank declared an early termination of all remaining interest rate swaps due to a failure by
the Company to make payments due under the swap agreements with the Bank.  The Company’s failure to make these
payments was occasioned by insufficient funds available under the Legacy Credit Agreement with the Bank and its
participating banks as a direct result of the loss of cash flows attributable to the July, September and December 2010
loan sales by the Bank’s Trust and the suspension of dividends by its REIT.

On May 23, 2011, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with the Bank covering the surrender and transfer
of the Company’s investment in the REIT Securities held by the Company, which included the full satisfaction of
indebtedness relating to all of the Company’s interest rate swaps totaling approximately $14.7 million.  Accordingly,
the Company recorded a gain on the full satisfaction of indebtedness relating to all of the interest rate swaps of $14.7
million in the quarter ended June 30, 2011 consisting of an $8.2 million liability from the interest rate swap
terminations as part of the March 2009 Restructuring and a $6.5 million liability incurred from the January 2011
interest rate swap termination.

At December 31, 2011, the Company had no interest rate swaps agreements in place to potentially reduce the
Company’s exposure to future increases in interest costs on a portion of its borrowings due to increases in the
1-month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”).

Fair Value Measurements – Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, establishes a three-tier hierarchy for
fair value measurements based upon the transparency of the inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability and expands
the disclosures about instruments measured at fair value.  A financial instrument is categorized in its entirety and its
categorization within the hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.  The three levels are described below.

•   Level 1 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in
active markets.
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•   Level 2 – Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets and inputs that are observable for the asset of liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the
full term of the financial instrument.  Fair values for these instruments are estimated using pricing models, quoted
prices of securities with similar characteristics, or discounted cash flows.

•   Level 3 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.  Fair
values are initially valued based upon transaction price and are adjusted to reflect exit values as evidenced by
financing and sale transactions with third parties.

Fair values for over-the-counter interest rate contracts, which are determined from market observable inputs, including
the LIBOR curve and measures of volatility used to determine fair values, are considered Level 2 observable market
inputs.

Fair values for certain investments (Level 3 assets) are determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow
methodologies or similar techniques and at least one significant model assumption or input is unobservable.

New Accounting Pronouncements

A discussion of new accounting pronouncements that are applicable to the Company, and have been or will be
adopted by the Company, is included in Note 2 in “Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements – Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies – Recent Accounting Pronouncements.”

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company had no off balance sheet arrangements at December 31, 2011.

Results of Operations – Franklin Credit Management Corporation (FCMC)

Through FCMC, we continue to actively seek to (a) expand our servicing business to provide servicing and recovery
services to third parties, particularly specialized collection services, and (b) capitalize on our experience to provide
due diligence and various other portfolio management services to the residential mortgage markets.  Since January 1,
2009, the Company’s operating business has been conducted solely through FCMC, a specialty consumer finance
subsidiary company primarily engaged in the servicing and resolution of performing, reperforming and nonperforming
residential mortgage loans, including specialized loan recovery servicing, and in the due diligence, analysis and
pricing of residential mortgage portfolios, for third parties.

FCMC, the Company’s servicing entity within the Franklin group of companies, notwithstanding the substantial
stockholders’ deficit of Franklin Holding, has positive net worth, and since September 22, 2010, all of FCMC’s equity
has been free from the pledges to the Bank (except for a 10% interest in future monetizing transactions, minus $4
million).  In addition, FCMC, since September 22, 2010, has been free of significant restrictive covenants under the
Legacy Credit Agreement with the Bank that governs the substantial debt owed to the Bank by subsidiaries of FCHC,
but not FCMC.

At December 31, 2011, FCMC had total assets of $27.8 million and had stockholders’ equity of $14.0 million.  At
December 31, 2010, FCMC’s total assets amounted to $24.8 million and its stockholders’ equity was $15.9 million.
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Inter-company payables and receivables, non-dividend distributions made by FCMC, the Federal provision for income
taxes, and inter-company allocations were eliminated in deriving the Consolidated Financial Statements of Franklin
Holding.  Servicing fees received from the Bank during 2010 for servicing their loans up to the effective dates of the
July, September and December 2010 loan sales were eliminated in deriving the Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Company. The servicing fees received from the Bank for servicing their remaining REO properties since the May
2011 REO sale to a related-party entity (Bosco IV) were eliminated in deriving the Consolidated Financial Statements
of the Company. Servicing revenues were eliminated in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company due to
the accounting treatment for the transfer of the trust certificates as a financing under ASC Topic 860, which was
applicable essentially through September 30, 2010.

FCMC had a loss before tax of approximately $1.3 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 compared
with income before tax of approximately $461,000 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2010.  FCMC’s 2011
revenues were derived principally from servicing the portfolio of loans and assets for the third party that purchased the
loans in the July Loan Sale and three Bosco entities.  FCMC’s 2010 revenues were derived principally from servicing
the portfolio of loans and assets for the Bank’s Trust prior to the July and September 2010 Loan Sales.  The decline in
before tax income for 2011 compared with 2010 was due to reduced servicing fees from new servicing contracts
entered into in connection with the Loan Sales and the December Loan Sale at reduced contractual fees and a
reduction in the number of loans serviced from existing servicing clients, which were not been replaced with
significant new servicing contracts.  In addition, during the third and fourth quarters of 2011, FCMC charged off a
portion of a receivable due from its parent company, FCHC, in the aggregate amount of $612,000 for management
fees recognized in 2011, the collection of which has been determined to be in doubt, which was recorded as a
non-dividend distribution and charged to Stockholders’ equity.  FCMC charges its sister companies an estimated
management fee that is based on internal services rendered by its employees to those companies.

The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements, while including the results of FCMC, include the results of all its
subsidiary companies, which comprise all the remaining assets and debt obligations (the Legacy Debt) that have
resulted from the Company’s legacy business prior to 2008.

As of December 31, 2011, FCMC had four significant servicing contracts to service 1-4 family mortgage loans and
owned real estate; three with related parties (Bosco I, Bosco II and Bosco III) and one with an unrelated party.  FCMC
also had a servicing contract with certain Company entities for the loans collateralizing the Unrestructured Debt.  At
December 31, 2011 and 2010, FCMC serviced and provided recovery collection services on a total population of
approximately 30,800 and 32,400 loans, respectively.  The servicing revenues earned from servicing the Bosco
entities represented approximately 57% of the total servicing revenues earned during the twelve months ended
December 31, 2011.  While the loans serviced for Huntington represented less than 1% of the total number of loans
serviced for third parties as of December 31, 2010 (due to the July, September and December 2010 loan sales by the
Bank’s Trust), the servicing revenues earned from servicing the Huntington portfolio represented approximately 70%
of the total servicing revenues earned during the twelve months ended December 31, 2010.  See Note 18 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Effective July 1, 2010, in the July Loan Sale, the Trust as directed by the Bank, sold approximately 3,300 residential
mortgage loans to a third-party purchaser (the “Purchaser”).  Effective July 1, 2010, FCMC entered into a servicing
agreement with the Purchaser, pursuant to which FCMC would continue to provide servicing for the loans acquired by
the Purchaser in the July Loan Sale.  However, effective October 1, 2010, the servicing of approximately 25% of the
loans were transferred by the Purchaser to an affiliate of the Purchaser (as agreed in conjunction with the entry into the
servicing agreement with the Purchaser).

Under the terms of the July 2010 Transaction, FCMC paid the Bank (i) $1 million towards the Bank’s expenses of the
July Loan Sale, (ii) $1 million to pay off the outstanding debt under the Licensing Credit Agreement, and (iii) $1

Edgar Filing: FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORP/DE/ - Form 10-K

86



million to reduce the revolving line of credit from $2 million, which resulted in a release of $1 million in cash
collateral that was used to pay down debt of the Company under the Legacy Credit Agreement.
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Effective September 1, 2010, the Trust as directed by the Bank sold to a third party (Bosco II) substantially all
(approximately 20,000 residential mortgage loans) of the subordinate-lien residential mortgage loans (the September
Loan Sale) serviced by FCMC under the servicing agreement with the Trust.  FCMC entered into a servicing
agreement with Bosco II for the servicing and collection of the loans purchased by Bosco II from the Trust.

The Company and FCMC entered into a series of transactions (the September 2010 Transaction) with the Bank and
other parties on September 22, 2010.  The September 2010 Transaction enables FCMC to operate its servicing,
collections and recovery business free (i) of pledges of its stock (FCHC’s pledge of 70% of the outstanding shares of
FCMC as security for the Legacy Credit Agreement was released by the Bank, in consideration of $4 million paid by
FCMC to the Bank) and (ii) significant restrictive covenants under the Legacy Credit Agreement.

For a description of the key terms and conditions of the September 2010 Transaction that relate to FCMC, see Note 11
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In conjunction with the September 2010 Transaction, FCHC transferred to Mr. Axon an additional 10% of FCMC’s
outstanding shares of common stock.  When combined with FCMC shares already directly owned by him, Mr. Axon
(the Chairman and President of the Company) now directly owns 20% of FCMC, while the remaining 80% of FCMC
is owned by FCHC and indirectly by its public shareholders (including Mr. Axon as a principal shareholder of
FCHC).  See Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In December 2010, effective November 15, 2010, the Trust as directed by the Bank sold to a third party (Bosco III)
substantially all (approximately 4,800 residential mortgage loans) of the remaining charge-off mortgage loans not sold
in the July Loan Sale and the September Loan Sale and serviced by FCMC for the Trust.  FCMC entered into a
servicing agreement with Bosco III for the servicing and collection of the loans purchased by Bosco III from the
Trust.  See Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In May 2011, the Bank’s Trust sold thirteen of its remaining REO properties to Bosco IV, an entity controlled by Mr.
Axon, and FCMC entered into a servicing agreement with Bosco IV for the servicing of the REO properties purchased
by Bosco IV.

At December 31, 2011, FCMC serviced three remaining REO assets with an unpaid principal balance of
approximately $423,000 for the Bank’s Trust.

For a summary of FCMC’s servicing agreements with the Bosco entities, see Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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A summary of FCMC’s stand-alone financial results for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 and at
December 31, 2011 and 2010 follows:

STATEMENT OF INCOME 2011 2010
REVENUES:
Interest income                                                                   $ 16,915 $ 30,689
Servicing fees                                                                   10,700,370 16,840,074
Other revenues                                                                   2,723,247 2,816,928
Total revenues                                                                13,440,532 19,687,691

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Interest expense                                                                   - 49,653
Bank fee                                                                   - 1,000,000
Collection, general and administrative                                                                   14,423,034 17,578,185
Depreciation                                                                   315,609 598,735
Total operating expenses                                                                14,738,643 19,226,573

(LOSS)/INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES $ (1,298,111 ) $ 461,118
Provision for income taxes - 185,000
NET (LOSS)/INCOME $ (1,298,111 ) $ 276,118

BALANCE SHEET
At December

31, 2011
At December

31, 2010
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,163,426 $ 12,071,212
Restricted cash 11,529,819 7,304,521
Receivables, fixed and other assets 4,090,867 5,413,821
Total assets                                                                $ 27,784,112 $ 24,789,554

LIABILITIES:
Servicing liabilities $ 11,529,819 $ 7,304,521
Other liabilities 2,291,265 1,611,871
Total liabilities                                                                $ 13,821,084 $ 8,916,392

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 13,963,028 $ 15,873,162

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity                                                                $ 27,784,112 $ 24,789,554

SERVICING PORTFOLIO:
Number of loans serviced 30,800 32,400

Unpaid principal balance serviced $ 
 1.50

billion $ 
 1.61

billion

57

Edgar Filing: FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORP/DE/ - Form 10-K

89



The fee of $1.0 million paid to Huntington in 2010 (the “Bank fee”) was in connection with the July Loan Sale from the
Bank’s Trust pursuant to the terms of the Letter Agreement entered into with Huntington in July 2010, whereby FCMC
agreed to reimburse the Bank up to $1 million for certain costs incurred in connection with the sale of loans by the
Bank’s Trust.

Included in Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2011 and 2010 was pledged cash to the Bank of $7.5 million
under the Licensing Credit Agreement (secured by a first-priority lien) and Legacy Credit Agreement (secured by a
second-priority lien).

Results of Operations – Franklin Credit Holding Corporation (FCHC)

On March 31, 2009, Franklin Holding, and certain of its subsidiaries, including FCMC, entered into the Restructuring
Agreements with the Bank, pursuant to which the Company’s loans, pledges and guarantees with the Bank and its
participating banks were substantially restructured, and approximately 83% of the Portfolio was transferred to the
Bank’s REIT, in exchange for preferred and common stock of the Bank’s REIT (the REIT Securities).

Although the transfer of the trust certificates in the March 2009 Restructuring represented approximately 83% of the
Portfolio, and the transfer to the REIT was structured in substance as a sale of financial assets, the transfer, for
accounting purposes, was treated as a secured financing in accordance with GAAP, ASC Topic 860.  Therefore, the
mortgage loans and real estate remained on the Company’s balance sheet classified as Mortgage loans and real estate
held for sale securing a Nonrecourse liability in an equal amount.

Because the loans transferred by the Company to the Bank’s Trust had continued to be included on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet until the periods referenced below, the revenues from such loans were reflected in the
Company’s consolidated results, in accordance with GAAP, notwithstanding the fact that trust certificates representing
an undivided interest in approximately 83% of the Portfolio were transferred to Huntington in the
Restructuring.  Accordingly, except for and effective with the sale of Huntington loans sold in the third and fourth
quarters of 2010, the fees received from Huntington subsequent to March 31, 2009 for servicing their loans, and the
third-party costs incurred by us in the servicing and collection of their loans and reimbursed by Huntington, for
purposes of these Consolidated Financial Statements, were not recognized as servicing fees and reimbursement of
third-party servicing costs, but instead as additional interest and other income earned with additional offsetting
expenses in an equal amount as if the Company continued to own the loans.

As a result of the 2010 third and fourth quarter loan sales by the Trust, the transfer of approximately 83% of the trust
certificates (representing an undivided 83% interest in the loans and real estate held by the Bank’s Trust) to the Bank’s
REIT in March 2009, which was accounted for as a secured financing in accordance with GAAP, with an equal
percentage of mortgage loans and owned real estate sold to the Bank’s Trust remaining on the Company’s balance sheet
classified as Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale and securing a Nonrecourse liability in an equal amount, is as
of the effective dates of the Loan Sales and December Loan Sale substantially accounted for as a sale of loans in
accordance with GAAP, to the extent of the loans sold by the Trust.  Similarly, the Loan Sales and December Loan
Sale by the Bank’s Trust also resulted in treating substantially all of the loans represented by the remaining 17% in
trust certificates held by the Company as sold in accordance with GAAP effective with the dates of the Loan Sales and
December Loan Sale.  However, the Trust in 2010 did not sell the real estate owned inventory, which remained on the
Company’s balance sheet classified as Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale and securing a Nonrecourse liability
in an equal amount.
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As a result of the Loan Sales by the Bank’s Trust, $263.0 million of the mortgage loans that had remained on the
Company’s balance sheet as of June 30, 2010 included in Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale in the amount of
$288.7 million, and securing a Nonrecourse liability in an equal amount, were removed from the Company’s balance
sheet as of September 30, 2010.  In addition, in December 2010, the Bank’s Trust sold the remaining mortgage loans
(carried at an estimated fair value of $0 at September 30, 2010) included in Mortgage loans and real estate held for
sale (securing the Nonrecourse liability in an equal amount), but not its remaining inventory of real estate owned
properties.  At December 31, 2010, the remaining $7.5 million (estimated fair value) of Mortgage loans and real estate
held for sale, and the corresponding Nonrecourse liability of an equal amount, consisted only of real estate owned
properties.  In May 2011, the Bank’s Trust sold thirteen of its remaining REO properties to Bosco IV, a third-party
entity controlled by Mr. Axon.  As a result, at December 31, 2011, the Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale and
the corresponding Nonrecourse liability were each eliminated and amounted to $0.

As a result of the Loan Sales by the Bank’s Trust, $50.1 million of the mortgage loans that had remained on the
Company’s balance sheet as of June 30, 2010 included in the Investment in trust certificates at fair value in the amount
of $58.0 were removed from the Company’s balance sheet as of September 30, 2010.  In addition, in December 2010
the Bank’s Trust sold the remaining mortgage loans (carried at an estimated fair value of $0 at September 30, 2010)
included in the Investment in trust certificates at fair value.  At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the remaining balance
of the Investment in trust certificates at fair value (which consisted only of real estate owned properties at December
31, 2010) was $0 and $1.5 million, respectively.

The July, September and December 2010 transactions, summarized above, are individually referred to as the July
Loan Sale, the September Loan Sale, and the December Loan Sale.  For a description of the key terms and conditions
of these 2010 loan sales and related transactions with the Bank, see Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

On May 23, 2011, the Company entered into a settlement agreement (the Settlement Agreement) with the Bank for the
surrender and transfer of the Company’s investment in preferred stock and common stock of the Bank’s REIT
subsidiary (the REIT Securities) held by the Company, and the early termination of all remaining interest rate swaps,
in exchange for (i) a reduction of the outstanding balance of a portion of the Company’s of tranche A debt in the
amount of $478 million; and, (ii) full satisfaction of the Company’s indebtedness relating to the Interest Rate Swaps
totaling approximately $14.7 million.

As a result of the Settlement Agreement with the Bank, effective May 23, 2011, for the surrender and transfer of the
Company’s $477.3 million investment in the REIT Securities, in exchange for a reduction of the outstanding balance of
a portion of tranche A debt in an equal amount and full satisfaction of approximately $14.7 million of indebtedness
relating to the interest rate swaps, the Company’s balance sheet declined significantly.  The Company’s total assets
amounted to $23.2 million at December 31, 2011, compared with total assets of $518.3 million at December 31, 2010;
and, total debt (Notes payable) decreased to $846.9 million at December 31, 2011, compared with $1.34 billion at year
end 2010.  Due to the full satisfaction of approximately $14.7 million of indebtedness relating to the interest rate
swaps, Derivative liabilities, at fair value of $4.9 million and the Terminated derivative liability of $8.2 million were
eliminated during the first quarter of 2011 and the second quarter of 2011, respectively; and, at December 31, 2011,
there were no balances outstanding.
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Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2010

Overview.  The Company had net income attributed to common stockholders of $22.2 million for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2011, compared with a net loss of $55.3 million for the twelve months of 2010.  The Company
had net income per common share for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 of $2.77 and $2.76 on a basic and
diluted basis, respectively, compared to a loss per common share of $6.89 on both a diluted and basic basis for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2010.  The net income in the twelve months of 2011 resulted principally from the
Bank’s REIT declaring and paying dividends on the REIT Securities on March 31, 2011 in the aggregate amount of
$63.8 million (for the third and fourth quarters of 2010 and for the full year of 2011), all of which was recognized in
the six months ended June 30, 2011.  Dividend income recognized in the quarter ended March 31, 2011 amounted to
$31.9 million (representing the dividends paid for the third and fourth quarters of 2010 and the first quarter of 2011 by
the Bank’s REIT on March 31, 2011); and, dividend income recognized in the quarter ended June 30, 2011 amounted
to $31.9 million (from the redemption of the REIT Securities that triggered the acceleration of the deferred dividend
income at March 31, 2011 to be recognized in the three months ended June 30, 2011).  In addition, the settlement of
interest rate swap liabilities resulted in a gain of $14.7 million recognized in the quarter ended June 30, 2011.  As a
result, total revenues increased by $52.7 million to $94.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 due to the
redemption of the REIT Securities and the settlement of the swap liabilities, from revenues of $41.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2010.

While the Company had net income attributed to common stockholders of $22.2 million for the full year ended
December 31, 2011, due principally to the dividends recognized on the REIT Securities and the gain from the
settlement of the swap liabilities in the aggregate amount of $78.5 million, the Company returned to a net loss in the
quarter ended September 30, 2011.  The Company had a net loss attributed to common stockholders of $12.1 million
and $11.9 million, respectively, for the third and fourth quarters of 2011.

The net loss of $55.3 million in 2010 was principally the result of the absence of dividend income on the Company’s
Investment in REIT securities in the third and fourth quarters of 2010, a net loss of $9.8 million on the sales of loans
by the Bank’s Trust and the Bank, other negative fair valuation adjustments in the amount of $6.2 million incurred
during the year 2010 due to estimated lower fair values of the Company’s Investment in trust certificates at fair value,
and lower interest income on the Investment in trust certificates at fair value (the 17% of the Portfolio held by the
Company) principally due to the July Loan Sale and the September Loan Sale.

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2010, in the July Loan Sale and the September Loan Sale (the Loan
Sales) the Bank’s Trust sold substantially all of the loans represented by the trust certificates (the 83% held by the
Bank’s REIT and the 17% held by the Company), and in the December Loan Sale, the Bank sold its 50% participation
interest in the loans securing the Unrestructured Debt, to Bosco III.  The Company recorded the Loan Sales as a sale
of financial assets in accordance with ASC Topic 860, effective July 1, 2010 and September 1, 2010, and recognized a
net loss of $9.8 million on the Investment in trust certificates at fair value from the Loan Sales representing its 17%
pro rata portion of the aggregate loans sold during the three months ended September 30, 2010, which is reported in
the consolidated statement of operations as Fair valuation adjustments.  The sale of loans and real estate assets
representing the 83% pro rata portion did not affect the Company’s reported net loss for the year ended December 31,
2010 since the Company’s loss on the Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale was offset by adjustments to the
Nonrecourse liability of an equal amount in accordance with ASC Topic 860.
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As a result of the Loan Sales by the Bank’s Trust, the aggregate balance of Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale
and the Investment in trust certificates at fair value were substantially reduced.  Approximately $9.0 million
(estimated fair value) of real estate owned properties were not sold by the Trust, and, in accordance with GAAP,
continue to be carried on the Company’s balance sheet at estimated fair values.  At December 31, 2010, the remaining
balance of Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale, and the corresponding Nonrecourse liability of an equal
amount, was $7.5 million and the remaining balance of the Company’s Investment in trust certificates at fair value was
$1.5 million.  At December 31, 2010, the remaining balance of Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale and the
Investment in trust certificates at fair value included only the estimated fair values of the remaining real estate
properties not sold by the Bank’s Trust.

Our total debt outstanding decreased to $846.9 million at December 31, 2011 from $1.341 billion at December 31,
2010.  Interest expense decreased by $15.6 million, or 22%, including the cost of the interest rate swaps, during the
twelve months of 2011 compared with the same period in 2010.  Interest expense on borrowed funds, excluding the
cost of the interest rate swaps, however, increased by $5.6 million during the twelve months ended December 31,
2011.  At December 31, 2011, the weighted average interest rate of borrowed funds, excluding the cost of interest rate
swaps, was 5.62%.  Collection, general and administrative expenses decreased by $11.4 million, or approximately
42%, to $15.5 million during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, from $26.9 million for the same period in
2010, due principally to reduced third-party servicing costs incurred for servicing the Portfolio (due to the accounting
treatment of the July Loan Sale and September Loan Sale as a sale of financial assets in the third quarter of 2010) and
generally reduced operating costs throughout the Company.  Stockholders’ deficit decreased to $827.7 million (a
deficit book value per common share of $103.09) at December 31, 2011, from stockholders’ deficit of $852.9 million
at December 31, 2010 (a deficit book value per common share of $106.23).

Revenues.  Revenues increased by $52.7 million to $94.4 million during the twelve months of 2011, from $41.7
million during the same period in 2010.  Revenues include interest income, dividend income, gain on settlement of
REIT Securities, gain on settlement of swap liability, fair valuation adjustments, servicing fees, and other income.

Interest income decreased by $26.5 million, or 97%, to $717,000 during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011,
as compared to $27.2 million for the same twelve months in 2010.  The decrease in interest income reflected the
impact of the Loan Sales by the Bank’s Trust and the Bank in the third quarter of 2010 and the resultant elimination of
mortgage loans and real estate properties underlying the Company’s Investment in trust certificates at fair value and
Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale.

Dividend income from the Company’s investment in the REIT Securities increased by $42.5 million, or 200%, to $63.8
million during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, as compared to $21.3 million during the twelve months
ended December 31, 2010.  The increase was the result of the payment of dividends by the Bank’s REIT on March 31,
2011 in the aggregate amount of $63.8 million for the last two quarters of 2010 and for the full year of 2011, all of
which was recognized in the six months ended June 30, 2011.  The recognition of three quarters of dividend income in
the quarter ended June 30, 2011 from the Company’s Investment in REIT securities was due to the redemption of the
REIT Securities by the Bank in May 2011.  The recognition of three quarters of dividend income in the quarter ended
March 31, 2011 from the Company’s Investment in REIT securities was due to the recognition of the dividends paid
for the third and fourth quarters of 2010 and the first quarter of 2011 on March 31, 2011.  Dividends on the Company’s
Investment in REIT securities were not declared by the Bank’s REIT for the third and fourth quarters of 2010.
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Gain on settlement of REIT securities amounted to $684,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011.  The gain was the
result of the Settlement Agreement entered into with the Bank in May 2011 covering the surrender and transfer of the
Company’s investment in the REIT Securities.  The Investment in REIT securities was valued at $478.0 million by the
Bank and the Company carried its Investment in the REIT securities at $477.3 million.  There were no similar gains in
the comparable 2010 period.

Gain on settlement of a swap liability amounted to $14.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011.  The gain
was the result of the settlement of the outstanding swap liabilities with the Bank in May 2011 whereby the Company
was released from the outstanding obligations.  There were no similar gains in the comparable 2010 period.

Fair valuation adjustments amounted to a net gain of $1.5 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011
compared with a net loss of $16.0 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2010.  Included in the Fair
valuation adjustments in the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 was a recovery of $2.0 million, adjustments to
the Nonrecourse liability for offsets to REO gains of approximately negative $1.0 million, a net decrease of $900,000
in the valuation of the Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale that was offset by a $900,000 net gain on the
Nonrecourse liability, a gain on REO sold in the amount of $223,000 and a valuation gain on Notes receivable held
for sale of $350,000.  The recovery of $2.0 million was for holdback funds from the sale of loans by the Trust and the
Bank in the third quarter of 2010 that was released by the Bank in the quarters ended June 30, 2011 and December 31,
2011.

Fair valuation adjustments amounted to a net loss of $16.0 million for the twelve months ended December 31,
2010.  The Company recognized a negative fair value adjustment in the quarter ended September 30, 2010 of $2.2
million on loans sold by the trust in the Loan Sales, and also recognized a negative fair value adjustment of $7.6
million in the quarter ended June 30, 2010 based on the estimated pricing of the loans expected to be sold by the trust
in the July Loan Sale.  Also, included in the Fair valuation adjustments in the twelve months ended December 31,
2010 were a net gain on REO sold in the amount of $5.5 million, a valuation gain on trust certificates of $4.6 million,
and various other net negative adjustments of approximately $16.3 million.  The other net negative adjustments of
approximately $16.3 million principally included expenses recognized on the Nonrecourse liability equal to the
interest income and fees received of approximately $9.2 million and fair value adjustments to the Nonrecourse
liability for offsets to REO gains of approximately a negative $8.9 million and various positive adjustments
approximating $1.8 million.

Servicing fees (principally third-party subservicing fees, other third-party servicing-related miscellaneous fees, late
charges and prepayment penalties) increased by $3.9 million, or 53%, to $11.1 million for the year ended December
31, 2011 from $7.3 million during the year ended December 31, 2010.  This increase was principally the result of the
recognition of servicing fees earned under two new servicing agreements with third parties entered into by the
Company in the third quarter of 2010 as a result of the Loan Sales, compared with the non-recognition of servicing
and collection fees earned from servicing the loans for the Bank’s Trust prior to the effective dates of the July Loan
Sale and the September Loan Sale (due to the required accounting treatment of the Company’s investment in Mortgage
loans and real estate held for sale as a secured financing in accordance with GAAP, ASC Topic 860, prior to the
effective dates of the Loan Sales), which contributed $4.9 million in net servicing fees in the twelve months ended
December 31, 2011, net servicing fees of $337,000 from various other third-party servicing and collection agreements
and an increase of $106,000 in the servicing fees recognized on the portfolio of loans serviced for Bosco I.  These
revenue increases were somewhat offset by reduced late charges and other ancillary servicing fees collected from
delinquent borrowers in the amount of $1.0 million and decreased recoveries of outside foreclosure attorney costs
collected from delinquent borrowers in the amount of $470,000, as these revenues in the first nine months of 2010
were accounted for as if the Company’s owned the Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale and serviced the owned
mortgage loans and real estate properties underlying the Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale (due to the
required accounting treatment of the Company’s investment in Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale a secured
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financing in accordance with GAAP, ASC Topic 860).
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Other revenues (principally due diligence and face to face fees received from third parties) decreased by $168,000, or
8%, to $1.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 from $2.1 million during the year ended December 31,
2010.  The revenue decrease was the result of decreased property inspection fees (door knock or face to face property
visits) of $65,000, lower due diligence fees of $96,000, and a decrease in other miscellaneous income of
approximately $189,000.  More than offsetting these revenue declines was an insurance premium rebate in the amount
of $309,000 received in the three months ended March 31, 2011 and an increase in grants received from the state of
New Jersey in the amount of $112,000 related to the relocation of the Company’s operations to New Jersey in
2005.  However, in the twelve months ended December 31, 2010, the Company received a tax refund in the amount of
$240,000, while no such refund was received in 2011.

Operating Expenses.  Operating expenses decreased by $24.9 million, or 26%, to $72.4 million during the twelve
months of 2011 from $97.3 million during the same period in 2010.  Total operating expenses include interest
expense, collection, general and administrative expenses, amortization of deferred financing costs and depreciation
expense.

Interest expense decreased by $15.6 million, or 22%, to $53.8 million during the twelve months ended December 31,
2011 from $69.4 million during the twelve months ended December 31, 2010.  This decrease was principally the
result of a lower average volume of borrowed funds outstanding during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011
as compared to the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 and the elimination of interest rate swaps (due to the
early termination of the interest rate swap agreements with the Bank).  Interest expense on borrowed funds, excluding
the cost of the interest swaps, decreased by $5.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 due to a lower average
volume of borrowed funds outstanding as a direct result of the paydown of borrowed funds (tranche A debt) from the
proceeds received from the redemption of the REIT Securities.  This decrease was partially offset by an increase in
interest expense on the Company’s tranche C debt, the outstanding balance of which increased from $162.9 million at
December 31, 2010 to $189.5 million at December 31, 2011, as a result of the addition of accrued and unpaid interest
at a fixed interest rate of 15%.  The average cost of borrowed funds, including interest rate swaps, during the twelve
months ended December 31, 2011 was 5.32%, compared to 5.11% during the twelve months ended December 31,
2010, principally reflecting the interest cost of the Company’s increasing balance of tranche C debt at 15%.  The
average cost of borrowed funds, excluding the costs of interest rate swaps, during the twelve months ended December
31, 2011 was 4.99% compared to 4.13% during the twelve months ended December 31, 2010, principally reflecting
the interest cost of the Company’s increasing balance of tranche C debt at 15%.

The remaining balance of the Company’s interest rate swaps was terminated by the Bank in January 2011, and in May
2011, the Company’s interest rate swap indebtedness was fully satisfied as part of the May 2011 Settlement Agreement
with the Bank.  The Company previously had in place fixed-rate interest rate swaps (cash flow hedges) in order to
limit the negative effect of a rise in short-term interest rates by effectively stabilizing the future interest payments on a
portion of its variable-rate debt.  During the year ended December 31, 2011, the net impact of the Company’s cash
flow hedges was an increase of $3.3 million to interest expense, inclusive of $3.1 million of amortization of the
AOCL balance and reclassified from AOCL into earnings, and the cost of the hedges in the amount of
$194,000.  During the year ended December 31, 2010, the net impact of the Company’s cash flow hedges was an
increase of $11.0 million to interest expense, inclusive of $7.2 million of amortization of the AOCL balance and
reclassified from AOCL into earnings, and the cost of the hedges in the amount of $9.3 million, which was somewhat
offset by an increase of $5.5 million in the fair value of the existing swaps.  At year-end 2011, the weighted average
interest rate of our borrowed funds was 5.62%, compared with 4.20%, exclusive of the effect of the interest rate
swaps, at year-end 2010.
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Collection, general and administrative expenses decreased by $11.4 million, or 42%, to $15.5 million during the
twelve months ended December 31, 2011, from $26.9 million during the twelve months ended December 31,
2010.  For the purpose of comparing collection, general and administrative expenses incurred by the Company on a
recurring basis, (i) third-party servicing expenses, which since the March 2009 Restructuring through principally the
effective dates of the Loan Sales in the third quarter of 2010 were reimbursed by the Bank, in the aggregate amount of
$6.1 million and (ii) restructuring costs of $1.0 million, incurred in connection with the July 2010 Transaction during
the quarter ended September 30, 2010, are excluded from the year-to-year change analysis.  These third-party
servicing expenses were, however, included in the consolidated statements of operations due to the treatment for
accounting purposes of the transfer of the trust certificates, representing ownership in approximately 83% of the
Portfolio transferred to the REIT, as a financing in accordance with GAAP and, as a result the mortgage loans and real
estate remained on the Company’s balance sheets.  Therefore, the third-party costs incurred by us in the servicing and
collection of the Bank’s loans and reimbursed by the Bank, for purposes of these Consolidated Financial Statements,
were not treated as reimbursed third-party servicing costs but as additional collection, general and administrative
expenses as if the Company had owned and self-serviced the mortgage loans, with an offsetting amount included in
Fair valuation adjustments, which had no impact on the Company’s consolidated statement of operations.  Those
third-party servicing costs did not substantially affect the consolidated statement of operations in the twelve months
ended December 31, 2011, compared with the same period in 2010, as a result of the third and fourth quarter 2010
loan sales by the Trust.  The transfer of approximately 83% of the trust certificates to the Bank’s REIT in March 2009
was as of the effective dates of the Loan Sales and December Loan Sale substantially accounted for as a sale of loans
in accordance with GAAP, to the extent of the loans sold by the Trust.  Similarly, the Loan Sales and December Loan
Sale by the Bank’s Trust also resulted in treating substantially all of the loans represented by the remaining 17% in
trust certificates held by the Company as sold in accordance with GAAP effective with the dates of the Loan Sales and
December Loan Sale.

Exclusive of these items described above, collection, general and administrative expenses decreased by $4.4 million,
or 22%, in the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, from $19.8 million during the twelve months ended
December 31, 2010.  Salaries and employee benefits expenses decreased by $2.8 million, or 26%, to $7.9 million
during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, from $10.8 million during the twelve months ended December
31, 2010, due to reductions in staff throughout the Company.  The number of servicing employees decreased to 70 at
December 31, 2011, from 80 employees at December 31, 2010.  The Company ended the twelve months ended
December 31, 2011 with 105 employees, compared with 112 employees at December 31, 2010.  The Company also
experienced a decrease in corporate legal expenditures of $288,000, or 36%, from $795,000 in the same twelve-month
period last year, principally due to the recovery of unused legal expenses that were previously accrued related to the
Restructuring in 2009 and generally reduced legal expenditures.  Professional fees decreased by $511,000, or 28%, to
$1.3 million from $1.8 million, principally due to generally reduced outside audit and tax fees, compared to the same
period last year.  Contract underwriter and property inspection costs decreased by $55,000 during the full year 2011,
to $595,000 from $651,000 in the prior year, principally due to a decrease in the volume of due diligence services
provided to third parties.  Various other general and administrative expenses decreased by approximately $661,000
during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 principally as a result of lower information technology costs,
reduced travel and promotional expenses, lower corporate insurance costs and generally reduced operating costs
throughout the company.

Amortization of deferred financing costs increased by $2.5 million, from $364,000 during the twelve months of 2010,
to $2.8 million during the twelve months of 2011.  This increase was the result of the $478 million paydown of the
Company’s Legacy Debt with the proceeds from the redemption of the REIT Securities in May 2011.

Depreciation expenses decreased by $283,000, or 47%, to $316,000 in the twelve months of 2011, compared with
$599,000 for the year ended December 31, 2010.  This decrease during 2011 was principally due to fully depreciated
assets during the past two years.
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Pre-tax income during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 increased by $77.5 million to net income of $22.2
million, from a pre-tax loss of $55.5 million during the twelve months ended December 31, 2010, for the reasons set
forth above.

The Company recorded a current Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Financial Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN
48”) state income tax provision of $251,000 and reversed a prior year’s provision in the same amount for a net effect of
$0 for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to a Federal tax benefit of $262,000 recorded in 2010.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

General

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had one limited source of external funding, a $1 million credit line, to meet
liquidity requirements, in addition to the cash flow provided from servicing loans and performing due diligence and
other services for third parties.  Due principally to (i) the Bank’s REIT declaring and paying dividends on the REIT
Securities for the third and fourth quarters of 2010 and for the full year of 2011 on March 31, 2011 in the aggregate
amount of $63.8 million, the Company paid down tranche A debt during the quarter ended March 31, 2011 by the net
amount of $55.4 million and (ii) the Company paying down tranche A debt by approximately $478.0 million in the
quarter ended June 30, 2011 due to the surrender of the REIT Securities in May 2011, the outstanding principal
balance of the tranche A debt at December 31, 2011 was $176.0 million.  None of the dividends received or proceeds
from the surrender of the REIT Securities were applied by the Bank to pay interest due on the Legacy Debt (including
on tranche A debt), which was added to the debt balance outstanding.  See “Borrowings.”

As a result of the Company voluntarily surrendering and transferring to the Bank the REIT Securities, the Company’s
principal remaining source of cash flow to meet its obligations with respect to its outstanding Total Debt remaining
after the surrender of the REIT Securities was principally eliminated.  The Company, effective as of September 30,
2011, is left without what had been essentially the remaining principal cash-flow generating asset available to service
the outstanding principal balance of the Legacy Debt.  Therefore, accrued and unpaid interest will be added to the
outstanding principal balance of the Legacy Debt, and the Company will be unable to pay the principal balance of the
Legacy Debt at the maturity of the Legacy Credit Agreement on March 31, 2012 (or upon earlier termination under
the provisions of the Legacy Credit Agreement).  During the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, approximately
$49.2 million was added to the outstanding balance of Legacy Debt due to interest accrued and unpaid, of which
approximately $11.6 million was added in the quarter ended December 31, 2011.  See “Borrowings” and Note 11 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company is required to submit all payments it receives from the remaining cash flow from its investment in
Notes receivable held for sale, net, to a lockbox, which is controlled by the Bank.  Substantially all amounts submitted
to the lockbox are used to pay interest and principal on the outstanding balance of the Unrestructured Debt under the
Forbearance Agreement with the Bank.  See “Borrowings.”

Short-term Investments.  The Company’s investment policy is structured to provide an adequate level of liquidity in
order to meet normal working capital needs, while taking minimal credit risk.  At December 31, 2011, principally all
of the Company’s unrestricted cash (including FCMC’s $7.5 million of pledged cash) was held in operating accounts or
invested in money market accounts at the Bank.

65

Edgar Filing: FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORP/DE/ - Form 10-K

99



Cost of Funds.  As of December 31, 2011, we had total borrowings of $846.9 million, of which $808.8 million was
subject to the Legacy Credit Agreement and $38.2 million of Unrestructured Debt.  Substantially all of the debt was
incurred in connection with the purchase and origination of loans prior to November 2007, and as of December 31,
2011 is secured principally by the remaining balance of Notes receivable held for sale (securing the Unrestructured
Debt), pledged cash in the amount of $7.5 million and certain other assets, including 100% of the equity interests in all
direct and indirect subsidiaries of Franklin Holding, but not FCMC.  The assets of our servicing subsidiary, FCMC
(other than $7.5 million of cash collateral on which the Bank has a first lien under the Licensing Credit Agreement
and second-priority lien under the Legacy Credit Agreement), are not pledged as collateral for the Legacy Debt or the
Unrestructured Debt.

At December 31, 2011, the interest rates on our term debt (Notes payable) were as follows:

In accordance
with the terms

of the
Restructuring
Agreements

Under the
terms of the
Forbearance
Agreements
and Credit
Agreement
excluded
from the

Restructuring
Agreements

FHLB 30-day LIBOR advance rate plus 2.60% $ - $ 15,462,304
FHLB 30-day LIBOR advance rate plus 2.75% - 22,697,714
1-month LIBOR plus 2.25% (Tranche A) 176,003,557 -
1-month LIBOR plus 2.75% (Tranche B) 443,268,352 -
15.00% (Tranche C)                                                             189,507,282 -

$ 808,779,191 $ 38,160,018

At December 31, 2011, the weighted average interest rate on term debt (the Legacy Debt) was 5.62%.

Terms of the Restructured Indebtedness under the Legacy Credit Agreement.  The following table summarizes the
principal economic terms of the Company’s indebtedness under the Legacy Credit Agreement and the Forbearance
Agreement.

Outstanding
Principal Amount
at March 31, 2009 –

Franklin
Asset/Tribeca

Outstanding
Principal Amount
at December 31,

2011 –
Franklin

Asset/Tribeca

Applicable
Interest
Margin
Over

LIBOR
(basis
points)

  Required
Monthly
Principal
Amortization

Tranche A                          $ 838,000,000 $ 176,000,000 225 None
Tranche B                          $ 407,000,000 $ 443,000,000 275 None
Tranche C                          $ 125,000,000 $ 190,000,000 N/A (1) None

Unrestructured Debt $ 41,000,000 $ 38,000,000 (2) None
__________________
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(1)  The applicable interest rate is fixed at 15% per annum.  Interest will be paid in kind during the term of the
Restructuring.

(2)  Interest margin over FHLB 30-day LIBOR advance rate plus 2.60%-2.75%.
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The interest rate under the terms of the Restructuring Agreements for tranche A and tranche B indebtedness that is the
basis, or index, for the Company’s interest cost is 1-month LIBOR plus applicable margins.  In accordance with the
terms of the Restructuring Agreements, interest due and unpaid on tranche A (upon election by the Bank), tranche B
and tranche C debt is accrued and added to the debt balance.  During the quarter ended December 31, 2011,
approximately $11.6 million was added to the outstanding balance of Legacy Debt due to interest accrued and unpaid,
of which approximately $1.1 million was added to tranche A debt.  During the year ended December 31, 2011,
approximately $49.2 million was added to the outstanding balance of Legacy Debt due to interest accrued and unpaid,
of which approximately $9.5 million was added to tranche A debt.

Cash Flow from Operating, Investing and Financing Activities

Liquidity represents our ability to obtain adequate funding to meet our financial obligations.  As a result of the
Company voluntarily surrendering and transferring to the Bank the REIT Securities, the Company’s principal
remaining sources of cash flow for liquidity purposes, with the exception of cash flows provided from servicing loans
and performing due diligence and other services for third parties, essentially has been eliminated.

At December 31, 2011, we had cash and cash equivalents of $12.4 million compared with $12.6 million at December
31, 2010.  Restricted cash of $955,000 at December 31, 2011 and $2.4 million at December 31, 2010 was restricted
under the Legacy Credit Agreement and lockbox facility with the Bank.

Changes in several of the cash flows for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 noted in the explanations that
follow were the result of the March 2009 Restructuring and the resultant changed asset classifications from notes
receivable and originated loans held for investment to Investment in trust certificates at fair value and Mortgage loans
and real estate held for sale.

Net cash provided by operating activities as reported was $62.9 million during the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared with net cash provided of $65.0 million during the year ended December 31, 2010.  Although the transfer of
the trust certificates, representing approximately 83% of the Portfolio, to the Bank’s REIT was structured in substance
as a sale of financial assets, the transfer, for accounting purposes, was treated as a secured financing in accordance
with ASC Topic 860 until the effective dates of the Loan Sales in the quarter ended September 30, 2010 and the
December Loan Sale in December 2010.  Therefore, the mortgage loans and real estate assets, until the effective dates
of the Loan Sales in the quarter ended September 30, 2010 and the December Loan Sale in December 2010, remained
on the Company’s balance sheets classified as Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale securing a Nonrecourse
liability in an equal amount.  The treatment as a financing on the Company’s balance sheet, however, did not affect the
cash flows of the transfer and has not affected the Company’s cash flows or its reported net income.  Excluding
reported activities related to Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale and the offsetting Nonrecourse liability, the
increase in cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to the Bank’s REIT declaring and paying dividends
on the REIT Securities (for the third and fourth quarters of 2010 and for the full year 2011) on March 31, 2011 in the
amount of $63.8 million, which resulted in net income attributed to common stockholders of $22.2 million in the
twelve months ended December 31, 2011, and from the non-payment of interest on the Legacy Debt (Paid in kind
interest) of $49.2 million, which was offset somewhat by a $14.7 million settlement of the Company’s interest rate
swap agreements with the Bank.

Net cash provided by investing activities was $480.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to cash
provided of $1.0 million in the year ended December 31, 2010.  The increase in cash provided by investing activities
during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 was due primarily to the Settlement Agreement entered into with
the Bank in May 2011 covering the surrender and transfer of the REIT Securities to the Bank in the amount of $478.0
million.
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Net cash used in financing activities increased to approximately $543.3 million during the twelve months ended
December 31, 2011, compared to $69.3 million used during the twelve months ended December 31, 2010.  The
increase in cash used in financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2011 was principally due to the
increase in the paydown of debt (Notes payable) from the $478.0 million REIT Securities settlement and dividends
paid by the Bank’s REIT for the third and fourth quarters of 2010 and for the full year of 2011 on March 31, 2011 in
the aggregate amount of $63.8 million.
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Borrowings

Substantially all of the Company’s debt was incurred in connection with the purchase and origination of residential 1-4
family mortgage loans prior to December 2007.  These borrowings are shown in the Company’s Consolidated
Financial Statements as Notes payable (also referred herein as term debt or Total Debt).  The Company ceased to
acquire and originate loans in November 2007, and under the terms of the Restructuring Agreements, the Company
cannot originate or acquire mortgage loans or other assets without the prior consent of the Bank.  In 2008, the
Company changed its business model to become a provider to third parties of specialized loan servicing and recovery
collection services, due diligence and certain other services to the residential mortgage loan industry, and has operated
these activities through FCMC.

At December 31, 2011, the Company had total borrowings, Notes payable and Financing agreements, of $846.9
million under the Restructuring Agreements (the Total Debt), of which $808.8 million was subject to the Company’s
debt restructured in the March 2009 Restructuring (the Legacy Debt, which matures on March 31, 2012) and $38.2
million as Unrestructured Debt that is owing and due in full as of September 31, 2011.  During the quarter ended
December 31, 2011, approximately $11.6 million was added to the outstanding balance of Legacy Debt due to interest
accrued and unpaid, of which approximately $1.1 million was added to tranche A debt.  During the twelve months
ended December 31, 2011, approximately $49.2 million was added to the outstanding balance of Legacy Debt due to
interest accrued and unpaid, of which approximately $9.5 million was added to tranche A debt.  See Note 11 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Legacy Credit Agreement expires on March 31, 2012.

As result of the Company voluntarily surrendering and transferring to the Bank the REIT Securities, the Company’s
principal remaining sources of cash flow for liquidity purposes, with the exception of cash flows provided from
servicing loans and performing due diligence and other services for third parties, essentially has been eliminated.  As
of December 31, 2011, the Company had one limited source of external funding, a $1 million credit line, to meet
liquidity requirements.

The Company (FCHC and FCMC only) has available credit under a revolving loan facility of $1 million and a $6.5
million letter of credit facility with the Bank, and cash collateral securing the revolving loan and letter of credit
facilities of $7.5 million.  The Licensing Credit Agreement expires on September 30, 2012.

At December 31, 2011, neither FCHC nor FCMC had any debt outstanding (short-term borrowings) under the
revolving line under the Licensing Credit Agreement.

Restructuring Agreements with Lead Lending Bank

Forbearance Agreements with Lead Lending Bank

Prior to the March 31, 2009 Restructuring Agreements that we entered into with Huntington, our indebtedness was
governed by forbearance agreements and prior credit agreements with Huntington.  Effective as of March 31, 2009, all
of our borrowings, with the exception of the Unrestructured Debt in the current amount of $38.2 million, are governed
by credit agreements entered into as part of the Restructuring Agreements.  The Unrestructured Debt, which was
subject to a forbearance agreement entered into with the Bank in December 2007 and subsequent amendments thereto
until September 30, 2011, became due and payable in full, and remains unpaid, under the Company’s defaulted 2004
master credit agreement with Huntington.
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Due to the previously existing defaults under the 2004 master credit agreement and expiration of the forbearance
period with respect to the Bank’s rights and remedies under that credit agreement, the Bank, with notice, has the right
to call an event of default under the Legacy Credit Agreement but not the Licensing Credit Agreement, which does
not include cross-default provisions that would be triggered by such an event of default under the Legacy Credit
Agreement.  The Bank’s recourse in respect of the Legacy Credit Agreement is limited to the assets and stock of
FCHC’s subsidiaries, excluding the assets and stock of FCMC (except for a second-priority lien of the Bank on $7.5
million of cash collateral held as security under the Licensing Credit Agreement).  The Bank has not exercised the
rights and remedies available to it with respect to the Unrestructured Debt.

FCMC is not obligated to the Bank with respect to the Unrestructured Debt and any references to FCMC in the
Company’s 2004 master credit agreement governing the Unrestructured Debt were amended to refer to Franklin Credit
Asset Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Franklin Holding.

The Bank, which holds legal title to the commercial loans governing the Unrestructured Debt, has through
participation agreements transferred 100% of the beneficial interest in the commercial loans to two parties, each
holding a 50% beneficial interest in the commercial loans.  One of the participants is Bosco III, a related party in
which 50% of the membership interest is held by Thomas J. Axon, the Company’s Chairman and President.

March 2009 Restructuring

On March 31, 2009, Franklin Holding, and certain of its direct and indirect subsidiaries, including Franklin Credit
Management Corporation and Tribeca Lending Corp., entered into a series of agreements (collectively, the
Restructuring Agreements) with the Bank, successor by merger to Sky Bank, pursuant to which the Company’s loans,
pledges and guarantees with the Bank and its participating banks were substantially restructured, and approximately
83% of the Portfolio was transferred to Huntington Capital Financing, LLC (the REIT), a real estate investment trust
wholly-owned by the Bank.

The Restructuring did not include a portion of the Company’s debt (the Unrestructured Debt), which became due and
payable in full as of September 30, 2011, and remains unpaid, is now due under the Company’s defaulted 2004 master
credit agreement with Huntington.

The Company’s forbearance agreements that had been entered into with the Bank were, except for the Unrestructured
Debt, replaced effective March 31, 2009 by the Restructuring Agreements.

For a description of the Restructuring Agreements, see Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Interest Rate Swaps

At December 31, 2011, the Company had no interest rate swaps outstanding.

On January 25, 2011, the Bank declared an early termination of all remaining interest rate swaps due to a failure by
the Company to make payments due under the swap agreements with the Bank.  The Company’s failure to make these
payments was occasioned by insufficient funds available under the Legacy Credit Agreement with the Bank and its
participating banks as a direct result of the loss of cash flows attributable to the July, September and December 2010
loan sales by the Bank’s Trust and the suspension of dividends by its REIT.
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On May 23, 2011, the Company entered into the Settlement Agreement with the Bank covering the surrender and
transfer of the Company’s investment in the REIT Securities held by the Company, which included the full satisfaction
of indebtedness relating to all of the Company’s interest rate swaps totaling approximately $14.7 million, consisting of
an $8.2 million liability from the interest rate swap terminations as part of the March 2009 Restructuring and a $6.5
million liability incurred from the January 2011 interest rate swap termination.  See Note 11 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Safe Harbor Statement

Statements contained herein and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not historical fact may be
forward-looking statements regarding the business, operations and financial condition of Franklin Credit Holding
Corporation (“Franklin Holding,” and together with its consolidated subsidiaries, the “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our” unless
otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires) within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”).  This
information may involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause our actual
results, performance or achievements to be materially different from our future results, performance or achievements
expressed or implied by any forward-looking statements.  Forward-looking statements, which involve assumptions
and describe our future plans, strategies and expectations, and other statements that are not historical facts, are
generally identifiable by use of the words “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “believe,” “intend,” “plan,”
“potential” or “project” or the negative of these words or other variations on these words or comparable
terminology.  These forward-looking statements are based on assumptions that may be incorrect, and there can be no
assurance that these projections included in these forward-looking statements will come to pass.  Our actual results
could differ materially from those expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements as a result of various
factors.  These factors include, but are not limited to: (i) outcomes, developments and court rulings in the anticipated
voluntary bankruptcy proceedings for FCHC; (ii) a plan of reorganization under Chapter 11 will not be consented to
by the Bank, confirmed or confirmation will be delayed; (iii) adverse tax consequences that could result from the
spinoff of FCMC from FCHC; (iv) a plan of reorganization will not be consummated; (v) if a plan of reorganization
under Chapter 11 is not confirmed, the Company may have to liquidate pursuant to Chapter 7; (vi) unanticipated
changes in the U.S. economy, including changes in business conditions such as interest rates, changes in the level of
growth in the finance and housing markets, such as continued home price deterioration and economic downturns or
other adverse events in certain states; (vii) the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern; (viii) the Company’s
relations with its lenders and such lenders’ willingness to waive any defaults under the Company’s agreements with
such lenders; (ix) the Company’s ability to obtain renewals of its loans or alternative refinancing opportunities; (x) the
availability of or ability to retain as clients third parties holding distressed mortgage debt for servicing by the
Company on a fee-paying basis; (xi) changes in the statutes or regulations applicable to the Company’s business or in
the interpretation and enforcement thereof by the relevant authorities; (xii) the status of the Company’s regulatory
compliance and regulatory audits; (xiii) the risk that legal proceedings could be brought against the Company which
could adversely affect its financial results; (xiv) the Company’s ability to adapt to and implement technological
change; (xv) the Company’s ability to attract and retain qualified employees; (xvi) our failure to reduce quickly
overhead and infrastructure costs in response to a reduction in revenue; and, (xvii) other risks detailed from time to
time in the Company’s SEC reports and filings.  Additional factors that would cause actual results to differ materially
from those projected or suggested in any forward-looking statements are contained in the Company’s filings with the
SEC, including, but not limited to, those factors discussed under the captions “Risk Factors,” “Interest Rate Risk” and “Real
Estate Risk” in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, which the Company
urges investors to consider.  The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly release the revisions to such
forward-looking statements that may be made to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the
occurrences of unanticipated events, except as otherwise required by securities, and other applicable laws.  Readers
are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date
hereof.  The Company undertakes no obligation to release publicly the results on any events or circumstances after the
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ITEM
7A.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to various types of market risk in the normal course of business, including the impact of interest rate
changes, real estate, delinquency and default risks of the loans that we service for third parties, the remaining loans
and real properties we hold at December 31, 2011, and changes in corporate tax rates.  A material change in these
rates or risks could adversely affect our operating results and cash flows.

Impact of Inflation

The Company measures its financial condition and operating results in historical dollars without considering changes
in the purchasing power of money over time due to inflation, although the impact of inflation is reflected in increases
in the costs of our operations.  Substantially all of the Company’s assets and liabilities are monetary in nature, and
therefore, interest rates have a greater impact on our performance than the general effects of inflation.  Because a
substantial portion of the Company’s borrowings are sensitive to changes in short-term interest rates, any increase in
inflation, which often gives rise to increases in interest rates, would materially impact the Company’s financial
performance.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate fluctuations can adversely affect our operating results and present a variety of risks, including the risk of a
repricing of interest-sensitive borrowings, and variances in the yield curve.

Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors, including governmental monetary policies and domestic and
international economic and political conditions.  Conditions such as inflation, recession, unemployment, money
supply and other factors beyond our control may also affect interest rates.  Fluctuations in market interest rates are
neither predictable nor controllable and an increase in market interest rates will have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

The Company’s operating results, essentially as of April 1, 2011, depend on its net revenues from servicing loans and
performing due diligence and other services for third parties and the interest paid on its borrowings.  As a result of the
Settlement Agreement entered into with the Bank in May 2011, and effective March 31, 2011, covering the surrender
and transfer of the REIT Securities, the Company has no significant interest-earning assets remaining available to
provide interest income to service its remaining balance of interest-bearing borrowed funds.  Our borrowings are
based principally on a variable rate (1-month LIBOR), which creates a total mismatch between interest earned on our
remaining assets and the interest paid on our borrowings.  Consequently, changes in interest rates, particularly
short-term interest rates, will significantly impact our net interest expense and, therefore, net losses in the future.  We
have used from time to time interest rate derivatives, essentially interest rate swaps, to hedge our interest rate exposure
by converting a portion of our highly interest-sensitive borrowings from variable-rate payments to fixed-rate
payments.  However, effective as of January 5, 2011, with the termination by the Bank of the remaining $390 million
balance of interest rate swaps intended to hedge a portion of the interest rate risk, all of the our interest rate sensitive
borrowings are unhedged.  Therefore, as of December 31, 2011, a 1% instantaneous and sustained increase in 1-month
LIBOR would have the effect of increasing quarterly interest expense by approximately $1.6 million, pre-tax, which
would negatively impact our quarterly after-tax loss.  See “Borrowings” and Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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Real Estate Risk

Residential property values are subject to volatility and may be affected adversely by a number of factors, including,
but not limited to, national, regional and local economic conditions, which may be adversely affected by industry
slowdowns and other factors; local real estate conditions (such as the supply of housing or the rapid increase or
decrease in home values).  Decreases in property values reduce the value of the collateral and the potential proceeds
available to borrowers to repay their mortgage loans, which could cause a decrease in collections on the loans we
service for third parties and, therefore, a reduction in servicing revenues.

ITEM
8.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements required by this Item are included herein, beginning on page F-2 of this report.

ITEM
9.

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM
9A.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that information
required to be disclosed by the Company in reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is (i) recorded,
processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and (ii)
accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including the Chairman and Principal Executive
Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the Controller, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding disclosure.

As of December 31, 2011, the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Company’s
management, including the Company’s Chairman and Principal Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the
Controller, evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined in
Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Exchange Act.  Based on that evaluation, the Company’s Principal Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of December 31, 2011, the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f).  Internal control over financial reporting is a
process designed by, or under the supervision of, our Principal Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the
Controller and affected by our board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements.  Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to risk that controls
may become inadequate due to changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies and procedures
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With the participation of the Principal Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the Controller, our
management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our system of internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2011 based on the framework set forth in “Internal Control – Integrated Framework” issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.  Based on this evaluation, our management
has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2011.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2011, there have been no changes in the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to affect, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm
regarding internal control over financial reporting.  Management’s report was not subject to the attestation by our
registered public accounting firm pursuant to the rules of the SEC that permit us to provide only management’s report
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM
9B.

OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART III

ITEM
10.

DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct (the “Code”) that applies to all of its officers,
directors and employees (including the Company’s Principal Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the
Controller).  The Code is available on the Company’s website at www.franklincredit.com through the Franklin Credit
Holding Corporation Investor Relations link.  In the event that there are any amendments to or waivers from any
provision of the Code that require disclosure under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K, the Company intends to satisfy these
disclosure requirements by posting such information on its website, as permitted by Item 5.05(c) of Form 8-K.

The other information required under this Item is contained in the Company’s definitive proxy statement, which will be
filed within 120 days of December 31, 2011, the Company’s most recent fiscal year, and is incorporated herein by
reference.  If such proxy statement is not filed on or before April 30, 2012, the information called for by this Item will
be filed as part of an amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K on or before such date, in accordance with
General Instruction G(3).

ITEM
11.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required under this Item is contained in the Company’s definitive proxy statement, which will be filed
within 120 days of December 31, 2011, the Company’s most recent fiscal year, and is incorporated herein by
reference.  If such proxy statement is not filed on or before April 30, 2012, the information called for by this Item will
be filed as part of an amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K on or before such date, in accordance with
General Instruction G(3).

ITEM
12.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table shows compensation plans (including individual compensation arrangements) under which equity
securities are authorized for issuance, as of December 31, 2011.

Plan Category

Number of
securities to be

issued upon
exercise of
outstanding

options,
warrants and

rights

Weighted
average

exercise price
of outstanding

options,
warrants and

rights

Number of
securities
remaining

available for
future issuance
under equity

compensation
plans

(excluding
securities

reflected in
column (a))

(a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 230,000 $ 3.58 520,000
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders - - -
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Total 230,000 $ 3.58 520,000

The other information required under this Item is contained in the Company’s definitive proxy statement, which will be
filed within 120 days of December 31, 2011, the Company’s most recent fiscal year, and is incorporated herein by
reference.  If such proxy statement is not filed on or before April 30, 2012, the information called for by this Item will
be filed as part of an amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K on or before such date, in accordance with
General Instruction G(3).
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ITEM
13.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Information required under this Item is contained in the Company’s definitive proxy statement, which will be filed
within 120 days of December 31, 2011, the Company’s most recent fiscal year, and is incorporated herein by
reference.  If such proxy statement is not filed on or before April 30, 2012, the information called for by this Item will
be filed as part of an amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K on or before such date, in accordance with
General Instruction G(3).

ITEM
14.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information required under this Item is contained in the Company’s definitive proxy statement, which will be filed
within 120 days of December 31, 2011, the Company’s most recent fiscal year, and is incorporated herein by
reference.  If such proxy statement is not filed on or before April 30, 2012, the information called for by this Item will
be filed as part of an amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K on or before such date, in accordance with
General Instruction G(3).
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PART IV

ITEM
15.

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following documents are filed as part of Form 10-K:

(1) Financial Statements.

The financial statements required by Item 8 are included herein, beginning on page F-2 of this report.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules.

The financial statement schedules required by Item 8 are included in the financial statements (or are either not
applicable or not significant).

(3) Exhibits.

Exhibit
Number

3.1 First Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“Commission”) on December 24, 2008.

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 24, 2008.

10.1 Master Credit and Security Agreement, dated as of October 13, 2004, between the Registrant and Sky
Bank (the “Master Credit Agreement”).  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-125681), filed with the Commission on June 9, 2005
(the “Registration Statement”).

10.2 Amendment to the Master Credit Agreement, dated as of December 30, 2004 between the Registrant and
Sky Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, filed with the Commission on April 8, 2005 (the “2004 10-K”).

10.3 1996 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-122677), filed with the Commission on February 10,
2005.

10.4 Employment Agreement, effective as of March 28, 2005, between the Registrant and Paul D.
Colasono.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended March 31, 2005, filed with the Commission on May 16, 2005 (the “First Quarter
10-Q”). (†)

10.5 Lease, dated July 27, 2005, between the Registrant and 101 Hudson Leasing Associates.  Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on
July 29, 2005.

10.6 Franklin Credit Management Corporation 2006 Stock Incentive Plan.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
99.1 of the Registrant’s Revised Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A, filed with the Commission
on May 3, 2006.
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10.7 Limited Waiver, dated as of November 15, 2007, between The Huntington National Bank, successor by
merger to Sky Bank (“Huntington”), the Company and each subsidiary of the Company listed on the signature
pages thereof.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the Commission on November 15, 2007.

10.8 Limited Waiver, dated as of November 15, 2007, between Huntington, Tribeca and each subsidiary of the
Company listed on the signature pages thereof.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on November 15, 2007.

10.9 Security Agreement, dated as of November 15, 2007, by the Company and each of the entities listed on the
signature pages thereof in favor of Huntington.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on November 15, 2007.

10.10 Forbearance Agreement and Amendment to Credit Agreements, dated December 28, 2007, by and among
the borrowers listed on Schedule 1 thereof, Franklin Credit Management Corporation and The Huntington
National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the Commission on January 4, 2008.

10.11 Tranche A Note, dated December 28, 2007, by the borrowers listed on Schedule 1 to the Forbearance
Agreement, in favor of The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on January 4, 2008.

10.12 Form of Tranche B Note, dated December 28, 2007, by the borrowers listed on Schedule 1 to the
Forbearance Agreement, in favor of The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on January 4, 2008.

10.13 Tranche C Note, dated December 28, 2007, by the borrowers listed on Schedule 1 to the Forbearance
Agreement, in favor of The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on January 4, 2008.

10.14 Tranche D Note, dated December 28, 2007, by the borrowers listed on Schedule 1 to the Forbearance
Agreement, in favor of The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on January 4, 2008.

10.15 Letter Agreement, dated January 3, 2008, by and among the borrowers listed on Schedule 1 to the
Forbearance Agreement, Franklin Credit Management Corporation and The Huntington National
Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with
the Commission on January 4, 2008.

10.16 Tribeca Forbearance Agreement and Amendment to Credit Agreements, dated December 28, 2007, by and
among the borrowers listed on Schedule 1 thereof, including without limitation Tribeca Lending Corp. and
Franklin Credit Management Corporation, and The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on January 4, 2008.

10.17 Tranche A Note, dated December 28, 2007, by the borrowers listed on Schedule 1 to the Tribeca
Forbearance Agreement, in favor of The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.8 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on January 4, 2008.

77

Edgar Filing: FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORP/DE/ - Form 10-K

118



10.18 Form of Tranche B Note, dated December 28, 2007, by the borrowers listed on Schedule 1 to the Tribeca
Forbearance Agreement, in favor of The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.9 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on January 4, 2008.

10.19 Guaranty, dated as of December 28, 2007, by Franklin Credit Management Corporation in favor of The
Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on January 4, 2008.

10.20 Guaranty, dated as of December 28, 2007, by Franklin Credit Management Corporation in favor of The
Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on January 4, 2008.

10.21 Security Agreement, dated as of December 28, 2007, by Tribeca Lending Corp. and each of the entities
listed on the signature pages thereof, in favor of The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.12 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on January 4,
2008.

10.22 ISDA Master (Swap) Agreement between the Registrant and the Huntington National Bank, dated as of
February 27, 2008 and the Schedule thereto.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, filed with the Commission on
April 2, 2007.

10.23 Joinder and Amendment No. 1 to Forbearance Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2008, by and among the
borrowers listed on Schedule 1 thereto, Franklin Credit Management Corporation and The Huntington
National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.55 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2008, filed with the Commission on May 15, 2008.

10.24 Second Amended and Restated Tranche D Note, dated March 31, 2008, by the borrowers listed on Schedule
1 to the Forbearance Agreement, in favor of The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.56 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31,
2008, filed with the Commission on May 15, 2008.

10.25 Joinder and Amendment No. 1 to Tribeca Forbearance Agreement, dated March 31, 2008, by and among the
borrowers listed on Schedule 1 thereof, including without limitation Tribeca Lending Corp. and Franklin
Credit Management Corporation, and The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.57 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2008,
filed with the Commission on May 15, 2008.

10.26 Participation Agreement, dated March 31, 2008, by and between The Huntington National Bank, BOS
(USA) Inc., and Tribeca Lending Corp. and its subsidiaries.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.58 to
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 10-Q, dated as of March 31, 2008.

10.27 Second Amended and Restated Tranche A Note, dated March 31, 2008, by the borrowers listed on
Schedule 1 to the Forbearance Agreement, in favor of The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.59 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
March 31, 2008, filed with the Commission on May 15, 2008.
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10.28 Confirmation Letters, dated February 27, 2008, to the ISDA Master (Swap) Agreement between Franklin
Credit Management Corporation and The Huntington National Bank, dated as of February 27,
2008.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.64 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 2008, filed with the Commission on August 19, 2008.

10.29 Confirmation Letters, dated April 30, 2008, to the ISDA Master (Swap) Agreement between Franklin Credit
Management Corporation and The Huntington National Bank, dated as of February 27, 2008.  Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.65 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report, on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 2008, filed with the Commission on August 19, 2008.

10.30 Loan Servicing Agreement, dated May 28, 2008, by and between Franklin Credit Management Corporation
and Bosco Credit LLC (portions of this exhibit have been omitted and separately filed with the Commission
with a request for confidential treatment).  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.66 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2008, filed with the Commission on
August 19, 2008.

10.31 Amendment No. 2 to Forbearance Agreement, dated August 15, 2008, between the borrowers listed on
Schedule 1 thereof, Franklin Credit Management Corporation and The Huntington National
Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.67 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 2008, filed with the Commission on August 19, 2008.

10.32 Amendment No. 2 to Tribeca Forbearance Agreement, dated August 15, 2008, between the borrowers listed
on Schedule 1 thereof, including without limitation Tribeca Lending Corp., Franklin Credit Management
Corporation and The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.68 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2008, filed with the
Commission on August 19, 2008.

10.33 Pledge, Assignment and Security Agreement, dated August 15, 2008, by Franklin Credit Management
Corporation in favor of The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.69 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2008, filed with the
Commission on August 19, 2008.

10.34 Form of Acknowledgement.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 24, 2008.

10.35 Master Trust Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2008, by and among Franklin Credit Management
Corporation, Tribeca Lending Corp., Deutsche Bank National Trust Company, and Deutsche Bank National
Trust Company Delaware.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 24, 2008.

10.36 First Amended and Restated Forbearance Agreement and Amendment to Credit Agreements, dated as of
December 19, 2008, by and among the borrowers listed on Schedule 1 thereto, Franklin Credit Management
Corporation, Franklin Credit Asset Corporation, Franklin Credit Holding Corporation and The Huntington
National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the Commission on December 24, 2008.
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10.37 First Amended and Restated Tribeca Forbearance Agreement and Amendment to Credit Agreements, dated
as of December 19, 2008, by and among the borrowers listed on Schedule 1 thereto, Tribeca Lending Corp.,
Franklin Credit Management Corporation, Franklin Credit Holding Corporation and The Huntington
National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the Commission on December 24, 2008.

10.38 Guaranty, dated as of December 19, 2008, by and between Franklin Credit Holding Corporation and The
Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 24, 2008.

10.39 Guaranty, dated as of December 19, 2008, by and between Franklin Credit Holding Corporation and The
Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 24, 2008.

10.40 Guaranty, dated as of December 19, 2008, by and between Franklin Credit Trust Series I and The
Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 24, 2008.

10.41 Guaranty, dated as of December 19, 2008, by and between Franklin Credit Trust Series I and The
Huntington National Bank Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 24, 2008.

10.42 Guaranty, dated as of December 19, 2008, by and between Tribeca Lending Trust Series I and The
Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 24, 2008.

10.43 Guaranty, dated as of December 19, 2008, by and between Tribeca Lending Trust Series I and The
Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 24, 2008.

10.44 Joinder Agreement No. 3 (Franklin), dated as of December 19, 2008, by Franklin Credit Asset Corporation,
Franklin Credit Holding Corporation and The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.11 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 24,
2008.

10.45 Joinder Agreement No. 3 (Tribeca), dated as of December 19, 2008, by Tribeca Lending Corp., Franklin
Credit Asset Corporation, Franklin Credit Holding Corporation and The Huntington National
Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with
the Commission on December 24, 2008.

10.46 Pledge Amendment (Franklin), dated as of December 19, 2008, by and among Franklin Credit Management
Corporation, the parties listed on Schedule A thereto, Franklin Credit Asset Corporation, Franklin Credit
Holding Corporation and The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 24, 2008.

10.47 Pledge Amendment (Tribeca), dated as of December 19, 2008, by and among Tribeca Lending Corp., the
parties listed on Schedule A thereto, Franklin Credit Asset Corporation, Franklin Credit Holding
Corporation and The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 24, 2008.
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10.48 Pledge Amendment (Franklin Trust Certificate), dated as of December 19, 2008, by and among Franklin
Credit Management Corporation, the parties listed on Schedule A thereto, Franklin Credit Asset
Corporation, Franklin Credit Holding Corporation and The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on
December 24, 2008.

10.49 Security Agreement, dated as of December 19, 2008, by and between Franklin Credit Trust Series I and The
Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 24, 2008.

10.50 Security Agreement, dated as of December 19, 2008, by and between Tribeca Lending Trust Series I and
The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 24, 2008.

10.51 Assignment Agreement, dated as of December 19, 2008, by and among Franklin Credit Management
Corporation, Franklin Credit Holding Corporation and The Huntington National Bank Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on
December 24, 2008.

10.52 Guaranty, dated as of December 19, 2008, by and between Tribeca Lending Corporation and The
Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 24, 2008.

10.53 Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated as of December 30, 2008, by and between Franklin Credit
Management Corporation and Paul Colasono.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.90 to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on January 5, 2009.

10.54 First Amendment to Loan Servicing Agreement, dated as of February 27, 2009, by and between Franklin
Credit Management Corporation and Bosco Credit, LLC.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.89 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31, 2008, filed with the
Commission on April 10, 2009.

10.55 Trust Agreement by and among Franklin Credit Asset Corporation, Franklin Credit Management
Corporation, Tribeca Lending Corp. and each of their respective subsidiaries, as Depositors, and The
Huntington National Bank, as Certificate Trustee, and Wilmington Trust Company, as Owner Trustee, dated
March 31, 2009.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the Commission on April 6, 2009.

10.56 Transfer and Assignment Agreement by and among Franklin Mortgage Asset Trust 2009-A, Franklin Credit
Asset Corporation, Franklin Credit Management Corporation, Tribeca Lending Corp. and each of their
respective subsidiaries dated March 31, 2009.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on April 6, 2009.

10.57 Contribution Agreement by and among Franklin Asset, LLC and Franklin Asset Merger Sub, LLC dated
March 31, 2009.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the Commission on April 6, 2009.

10.58 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Huntington Capital Financing, LLC, HCFFL, LLC, Franklin
Asset, LLC, Franklin Credit Holding Corporation, Franklin Credit Asset Corporation, Tribeca Lending
Corp. and each of their respective subsidiaries dated March 31, 2009.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.4 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on April 6, 2009.
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10.59 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (Legacy) by and among Franklin Credit Asset Corporation,
Tribeca Lending Corp. and the Other Borrowers Party hereto as Borrowers, the Financial Institutions Party
hereto as Lenders, and the Huntington National Bank, as Administrative Agent, dated March 31,
2009.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with
the Commission on April 6, 2009.

10.60 The Limited Recourse Guarantee, dated as of March 31, 2009, made by Franklin Credit Holding
Corporation in favor of The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on April 6, 2009.

10.61 The Limited Recourse Guarantee, dated as of March 31, 2009, made by Franklin Credit Management
Corporation in favor The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on April 6, 2009.

10.62 The Amended and Restated Security Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2009, by and among the Borrowers
and The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, dated as of April 6, 2009.

10.63 The Amended and Restated Pledge Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2009, by and between Franklin Credit
Holding Corporation and The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on April 6, 2009.

10.64 The Amended and Restated Pledge, Assignment and Security Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2009, by
and between Franklin Credit Management Corporation and The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on
April 6, 2009.

10.65 The Investment Property Security Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2009, by and between Franklin Credit
Management Corporation and The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on April 6, 2009.

10.66 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (Licensing) by and among Franklin Credit Management
Corporation and Franklin Credit Holding Corporation as Borrowers, the Financial Institutions Party hereto
as Lenders, and the Huntington National Bank, as Administrative Agent, dated March 31,
2009.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with
the Commission on April 6, 2009.

10.67 The Amended and Restated Security Agreement (Licensing), dated as of March 31, 2009, by and between
Franklin Credit Management Corporation and The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.13 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on April 6, 2009.

10.68 Servicing Agreement by and among Franklin Mortgage Asset Trust 2009-A and Franklin Credit
Management Corporation dated March 31, 2009 (portions of this exhibit have been omitted and separately
filed with the Commission with a request for confidential treatment).  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.14 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on April 6, 2009.
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10.69 Amendment No. 1 to First Amended and Restated Forbearance Agreement and Amendment to Credit
Agreements, dated as of April 20, 2009, by and among Franklin Credit Holding Corporation, Franklin Credit
Management Corporation, Franklin Credit Asset Corporation, Flow 2006 F Corp., FCMC 2006 M Corp.,
FCMC 2006 K Corp. and The Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on April 22, 2009.

10.70 Amendment No. 2 to First Amended and Restated Forbearance Agreement and Amendment to Credit
Agreements, dated as of August 10, 2009, by and among the Registrant, Franklin Credit Asset Corporation,
Flow 2006 F Corp., FCMC 2006 M Corp., FCMC 2006 K Corp. and The Huntington National
Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.100 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 2009, filed with the Commission on August 14, 2009.

10.71 Second Amendment to Loan Servicing Agreement, dated October 29, 2009, by and between Franklin Credit
Management Corporation and Bosco Credit LLC (portions of this exhibit have been omitted and separately
filed with the Commission with a request for confidential treatment).  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.102 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30,
2009, filed with the Commission on November 16, 2009.

10.72 Amendment No. 3 to First Amended and Restated Forbearance Agreement and Amendment to Credit
Agreements, effective as of September 30, 2009, by and among the Registrant, Franklin Credit Asset
Corporation, Flow 2006 F Corp., FCMC 2006 M Corp., FCMC 2006 K Corp. and The Huntington National
Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.103 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended September 30, 2009, filed with the Commission on November 16, 2009.

10.73 Amendment No. 4 to First Amended and Restated Forbearance Agreement and Amendment to Credit
Agreements, effective as of March 26, 2010, by and among the Registrant, Franklin Credit Asset
Corporation, Flow 2006 F Corp., FCMC 2006 M Corp., FCMC 2006 K Corp. and The Huntington National
Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.76 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
annual period ended December 31, 2009, filed with the Commission on March 31, 2010.

10.74 Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (Licensing) by and among Franklin Credit
Management Corporation and Franklin Credit Holding Corporation as Borrowers, the Financial Institutions
Party hereto as Lenders, and the Huntington National Bank, as Administrative Agent, dated March 26,
2010.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.77 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
annual period ended December 31, 2009, filed with the Commission on March 31, 2010.

10.75 Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and Replacement of Schedule to Amended
and Restated Security Agreement by and among Franklin Credit Asset Corporation, Tribeca Lending Corp.,
Franklin Asset, LLC and the Other Borrowers Party thereto as Borrowers, the Financial Institutions Party
thereto as Lenders, and the Huntington National Bank, as Administrative Agent, dated June 11,
2010.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 2010, filed with the Commission on August 16, 2010.

10.76 Amendment No. 5 to First Amended and Restated Forbearance Agreement and Amendment to Credit
Agreements, effective as of June 28, 2010, by and among the Registrant, Franklin Credit Asset Corporation,
Flow 2006 F Corp., FCMC 2006 M Corp., FCMC 2006 K Corp. and The Huntington National
Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with
the Commission on June 28, 2010.
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10.77 Letter Agreement, dated July 16, 2010, by and among The Huntington National Bank, Franklin Mortgage
Asset Trust 2009-A, the Registrant, Franklin Credit Management Corporation and, solely for the purposes of
paragraph 5 thereof, Thomas J. Axon.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on July 22, 2010.

10.78 Amendment No. 2 to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (Licensing), dated as of July 20, 2010,
by and among Franklin Credit Management Corporation, the Registrant, the Financial Institutions Party
thereto as Lenders, and The Huntington National Bank (as Administrative Agent and Issuing Bank) and an
affiliate of the Bank, Huntington Finance, LLC as Lender and Risk Participant.  Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on July 22, 2010.

10.79 Loan Servicing Agreement, entered into on July 20, 2010 but dated and effective July 1, 2010, by and
among Vantium Capital Markets, L.P., Vantium REO Capital Markets, L.P. and FCMC (portions of this
exhibit have been omitted and separately filed with the Commission with a request for confidential
treatment).  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Amended Current Report on
Form 8-K/A, filed with the Commission on September 20, 2010.

10.80 Amended and Restated Servicing Agreement, entered into on August 1, 2010, by and between Franklin
Mortgage Asset Trust 2009-A, as Owner, and Franklin Credit Management Corporation, as Servicer
(portions of this exhibit have been omitted and separately filed with the Commission with a request for
confidential treatment).  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Amended Current
Report on Form 8-K/A, filed with the Commission on September 20, 2010.

10.81 Letter Agreement, dated September 16, 2010, by and among The Huntington National Bank, Franklin
Mortgage Asset Trust 2009-A, the Registrant, Franklin Credit Management Corporation, Bosco Credit II,
LLC and Thomas J. Axon.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on September 23, 2010.

10.82 Restructure Agreement, dated September 22, 2010, by and among The Huntington National Bank, Franklin
Mortgage Asset Trust 2009-A, the Registrant, Franklin Credit Management Corporation, Bosco Credit II,
LLC and Thomas J. Axon.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on September 23, 2010.

10.83 First Amendment to Limited Recourse Guaranty, dated September 22, 2010, by and between the Registrant
and The Huntington National Bank, as Administrative Agent.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on September 23, 2010.

10.84 Letter from The Huntington National Bank to the Registrant and Franklin Credit Management Corporation
regarding the EBITDA Payment.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on September 23, 2010.

10.85 Promissory Note of Franklin Credit Management Corporation, dated September 22, 2010.  Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on
September 23, 2010.
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10.86 Amendment No. 2 to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by and among Franklin Credit Asset
Corporation, Tribeca Lending Corp., Franklin Asset, LLC and the Other Borrowers Party thereto as
Borrowers, the Financial Institutions Party thereto as Lenders, and The Huntington National Bank, as
Administrative Agent, dated September 22, 2010.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on September 23, 2010.

10.87 Amendment No. 3 to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (Licensing), dated September 22, 2010,
by and among Franklin Credit Management Corporation, the Registrant, the Financial Institutions Party
thereto as Lenders, and The Huntington National Bank, as Administrative Agent.  Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on September 23,
2010.

10.88 Release, Cancellation and Discharge of Limited Recourse Guaranty of Franklin Credit Management
Corporation dated September 22, 2010.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on September 23, 2010.

10.89 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Pledge Agreement, dated September 22, 2010, by and between
the Registrant and The Huntington National Bank, as Administrative Agent.  Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on September 23,
2010.

10.90 Amendment Number One to Servicing Agreement, entered into on September 22, 2010, by and between
Franklin Mortgage Asset Trust 2009-A and Franklin Credit Management Corporation.  Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on
September 23, 2010.

10.91 Loan Servicing Agreement, entered into on September 22, 2010, effective September 1, 2010 by and
between Franklin Credit Management Corporation and Bosco Credit II, LLC (portions of this exhibit have
been omitted and separately filed with the Commission with a request for confidential
treatment).  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Registrant’s Amended Current Report on
Form 8-K/A, filed with the Commission on September 23, 2010.

10.92 Deferred Payment Agreement, dated September 22, 2010, by and among The Huntington National Bank, as
Administrative Agent under the Legacy Credit Agreement, Franklin Credit Management Corporation and
Thomas J. Axon.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the Commission on October 1, 2010.

10.93 Amendment No. 6 to First Amended and Restated Forbearance Agreement and Amendment to Credit
Agreements, effective as of September 30, 2010, by and among the Registrant, Franklin Credit Asset
Corporation, Flow 2006 F Corp., FCMC 2006 M Corp., FCMC 2006 K Corp. and The Huntington National
Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with
the Commission on November 23, 2010.

10.94 Amendment No. 7 to First Amended and Restated Forbearance Agreement and Amendment to Credit
Agreements, dated January 7, 2011 and effective as of December 31, 2010, by and among the Registrant,
Franklin Credit Asset Corporation, Flow 2006 F Corp., FCMC 2006 M Corp., FCMC 2006 K Corp. and The
Huntington National Bank.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on January 11, 2011.
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10.95 Limited Waiver, dated as of March 28, 2011, by and among The Huntington National Bank, as
Administrative Agent, the Registrant and Franklin Credit Management Corporation, under the Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement (Licensing) dated as of March 31, 2009, as amended.  Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.100 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31,
2010, filed with the Commission on March 30, 2011.

10.96 Settlement Term Sheet, dated May 11, 2011, by and among The Huntington National Bank, the Registrant,
Franklin Credit Asset Corporation, Franklin Asset, LLC, each other Borrower listed on the signature pages
to the Legacy Credit Agreement or any schedule thereto, and Franklin Credit Management
Corporation.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended March 31, 2011, filed with the Commission on May 12, 2011.

10.97 Settlement Agreement, dated May 23, 2011, by and among The Huntington National Bank, the Registrant,
Franklin Credit Asset Corporation, Franklin Asset, LLC, each other Borrower listed on the signature pages
to the Legacy Credit Agreement or any schedule thereto, and Franklin Credit Management
Corporation.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
with the Commission on May 27, 2011.

10.98 Amendment No. 3 to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by and among Franklin Credit Asset
Corporation, Tribeca Lending Corp., Franklin Asset, LLC and the Other Borrowers Party thereto as
Borrowers, the Financial Institutions Party thereto as Lenders, and The Huntington National Bank, as
Administrative Agent, dated May 23, 2011.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on May 27, 2011.

10.99 Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Pledge Agreement, dated May 23, 2011, by and between the
Registrant and The Huntington National Bank, as Administrative Agent.  Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on May 27, 2011.

10.100 Release, Cancellation and Discharge of Limited Recourse Guaranty of Registrant dated May 23,
2011.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with
the Commission on May 27, 2011.

10.101 Amendment No. 4 to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (Licensing), dated May 23, 2011, by and
among Franklin Credit Management Corporation, the Registrant, the Financial Institutions Party thereto as
Lenders, and The Huntington National Bank, as Administrative Agent.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.5 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on May 27, 2011.

10.102 Terms Agreement, dated February 8, 2012, by and between Franklin Credit Management Corporation and
Bosco Credit II Trust Series 2010-1 (portions of this exhibit have been omitted and separately filed with the
Commission with a request for confidential treatment).  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on February 10, 2012.

10.103 Loan Servicing Agreement, dated and made effective as of November 19, 2010, by and between Bosco
Credit II Trust Series 2010-1 and Franklin Credit Management Corporation.  Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on February 10,
2012.

16.1 Letter of Deloitte & Touche LLP, dated September 2, 2009 regarding change in certifying
accountant.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
with the Commission on September 4, 2009.
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21.1* Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

23.1* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

31.1* Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer of the Registrant in accordance with Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2* Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer of the Registrant in accordance with Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1* Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer of the Registrant in accordance with Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2* Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer of the Registrant in accordance with Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
__________________

* Filed herewith.
(†) Management contracts and compensation plans and arrangements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

March 23, 2012 FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORPORATION

By: /s/ THOMAS J. AXON
Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacity and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ THOMAS J. AXON
Thomas J. Axon President and Chairman of the Board March 23, 2012

(Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ PAUL D. COLASONO
Paul D. Colasono Executive Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer
March 23, 2012

(Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ KIMBERLEY SHAW
Kimberley Shaw Senior Vice President and Treasurer  March 23, 2012

 (Controller)
/s/ MICHAEL BERTASH
Michael Bertash Director March 23, 2012

/s/ FRANK EVANS
Frank Evans Director March 23, 2012

/s/ STEVEN LEFKOWITZ
Steven Lefkowitz Director March 23, 2012

/s/ ALLAN R. LYONS
Allan R. Lyons Director March 23, 2012
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Franklin Credit Holding Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Franklin Credit Holding Corporation and
Subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
changes in stockholders’ deficit, comprehensive loss, and cash flows for the years then ended.  These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting.  Our audit included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Franklin Credit Holding Corporation and Subsidiaries, as of December 31, 2011 and
2010, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 have been
prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern.  As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Company’s recurring losses from operations and stockholders’ deficit raise substantial doubt
about its ability to continue as a going concern.  Management’s plans concerning these matters are also discussed in
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.  The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments
that might result from this uncertainty.

/s/ Marcum LLP

Marcum llp
New York, NY
March 23, 2012
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FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

2011 2010
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,378,992 $ 12,640,619
Restricted cash 954,537 2,407,194
Investment in REIT securities - 477,316,409
Investment in trust certificates at fair value - 1,505,978
Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale - 7,500,863
Notes receivable held for sale, net 2,430,199 2,857,312
Accrued interest receivable 22,076 28,245
Deferred financing costs, net 4,112,823 6,923,169
Other receivables 1,721,552 3,463,029
Building, furniture and equipment, net 769,873 1,038,152
Other assets 834,278 2,633,072
Total assets $ 23,224,330 $ 518,314,042

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT)

Liabilities:
Notes payable, net of debt discount of $103,152 at
December 31, 2011 and $181,616 at December 31,
2010 $ 846,836,057 $ 1,340,838,509
Nonrecourse liability - 7,500,863
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,385,390 9,454,136
Derivative liabilities, at fair value - 4,922,375
Income tax payable 735,277 274,266
Terminated derivative liability - 8,200,000
Total liabilities 850,956,724 1,371,190,149

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders’ (Deficit):
Preferred stock, $.001 par value; authorized 3,000,000;
issued – none - -
Common stock and additional paid-in capital, $.01 par
value, 22,000,000 authorized shares;
    issued 8,034,795 and outstanding 8,028,795 at
December 31, 2011 and at December 31, 2010 20,732,236 20,588,782
Noncontrolling interest in subsidiary 2,792,605 3,174,632
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) - (3,140,312 )
Retained (deficit) (851,257,235) (873,499,209 )
Total stockholders’ (deficit) (827,732,394) (852,876,107 )

Total liabilities and stockholders’ (deficit) $ 23,224,330 $ 518,314,042
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See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

2011 2010
REVENUES:
Interest income $ 717,270 $ 27,167,218
Dividend income 63,775,796 21,258,599
Gain on settlement of REIT securities 683,591 -
Gain on settlement of swap liability 14,662,661 -
Fair valuation adjustments 1,482,033 (16,039,196)
Servicing fees 11,147,091 7,273,324
Other income 1,918,914 2,086,697
Total revenues 94,387,356 41,746,642

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Interest expense 53,813,148 69,426,256
Collection, general and administrative 15,465,901 26,892,286
Amortization of deferred financing costs 2,810,346 364,367
Depreciation 315,609 598,735
Total expenses 72,405,004 97,281,644

Income/(loss) before provision for income taxes 21,982,352 (55,535,002)
Income tax (benefit) - (262,447 )
Net income/(loss) 21,982,352 (55,272,555)
Net (loss)/income attributed to noncontrolling interest (259,622 ) 976
Net income/(loss) attributed to common stockholders $ 22,241,974 $ (55,273,531)

NET INCOME/(LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE:
Basic $ 2.77 $ (6.89 )
Diluted $ 2.76 $ (6.89 )

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES
Outstanding, basic 8,028,539 8,020,016
Outstanding, diluted 8,046,884 8,020,016

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

Accumulated
Common Stock and NoncontrollingOther Retained
Additional Paid-in Capital Interest Comprehensive (Deficit)/

Shares Amount
in

Subsidiary Loss Earnings Total
BALANCE,
JANUARY 1,
2010 8,011,795 $ 22,067,763 $ 1,657,275 $ (12,310,764) $ (818,225,678) $ (806,811,404)

Stock-based
compensation 17,000 37,400 - - - 37,400
Additional 10%
transfer of
noncontrolling
interest in
subsidiary - (1,516,381 ) 1,516,381 - - -
Net income
attributed to
noncontrolling
interest - - 976 - - 976
Amortization –
unrealized loss on
derivatives - - - 9,170,452 - 9,170,452
Net (loss)
attributed to
common
shareholders - - - - (55,273,531 ) (55,273,531 )

BALANCE,
DECEMBER 31,
2010 8,028,795 20,588,782 3,174,632 (3,140,312 ) (873,499,209) (852,876,107)

Stock-based
compensation - 21,049 - - - 21,049
Non-dividend
distribution - 122,405 (122,405 ) - - -
Net (loss)
attributed to
noncontrolling
interest - - (259,622 ) - - (259,622 )
Amortization –
unrealized loss on
derivatives - - - 3,140,312 - 3,140,312

- - - - 22,241,974 22,241,974
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Net income
attributed to
common
shareholders

BALANCE,
DECEMBER 31,
2011 8,028,795 $ 20,732,236 $ 2,792,605 $ - $ (851,257,235) $ (827,732,394)

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the total comprehensive income amounted to $25.3 million, which was
comprised of the net income of $22.2 million and amortization of the unrealized loss on derivatives of $3.1
million.  For the year ended December 31, 2010, the total comprehensive loss amounted to $46.1 million, which was
comprised of the net loss of $55.3 million and amortization of the unrealized loss on derivatives of $9.2 million.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

2011 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income/(loss) attributed to common shareholders $ 22,241,974 $ (55,273,531 )
Adjustments to reconcile net income/(loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Gain on settlement of swap liability (14,662,661 ) -
Gain on settlement of REIT securities (683,591 ) -
Depreciation 315,609 598,735
Fair valuation adjustments (1,482,033 ) 16,039,196
Principal collections on mortgage loans and real estate
held for sale, net - 16,915,671
Paid in kind interest 49,214,212 41,940,128
Proceeds from the sale of investment in trust certificates 1,479,215 44,740,727
Proceeds from the sale of mortgage loans and real estate
held for sale 5,832,720 240,035,930
Reductions of nonrecourse liability, net (4,598,902 ) (250,073,999)
Amortization of deferred financing costs 2,810,346 364,367
Amortization of debt discount 78,464 9,895
Stock-based compensation 21,049 37,400
Noncontrolling interest in subsidiary (259,622 ) 976
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accrued interest receivable 6,169 13,092
Other receivables 1,741,477 (229,353 )
Income tax receivable - 5,592,370
Other assets 1,798,794 (1,940,342 )
Taxes payable 461,011 274,266
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other (4,528,460 ) 4,987,357
Derivative liabilities and accumulated other
comprehensive (loss) 3,140,312 948,236
Net cash provided by operating activities 62,926,083 64,981,121

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Decrease in restricted cash 1,452,657 204,446
Proceeds from the settlement of REIT securities 478,000,000 -
Principal collections on notes receivable 702,091 910,243
Purchase of building, furniture and fixtures (47,330 ) (107,469 )
Net cash provided by investing activities 480,107,418 1,007,220

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

2011 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal payments of notes payable (543,295,128) (62,310,837)
Repayment of notes payable - (6,000,000 )
Principal payments of short-term borrowings - (1,000,000 )
Net cash used in financing activities (543,295,128) (69,310,837)

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (261,627 ) (3,322,496 )
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF
YEAR 12,640,619 15,963,115
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 12,378,992 $ 12,640,619

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION
Cash payments for interest $ 6,012,120 $ 19,512,721
Cash payments for taxes $ 198,160 $ 371,611

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

1.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND BUSINESS

As used herein, references to the “Company,” “Franklin Holding,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Franklin Credit Holding
Corporation (“FCHC”), collectively with its subsidiaries (including Franklin Credit Management Corporation);
references to “FCMC” refer to Franklin Credit Management Corporation, the Company’s servicing business subsidiary;
references to the “Legacy Credit Agreement” refer to the Legacy Credit Agreement between certain subsidiaries of
FCHC (but not FCMC), on the one hand, and The Huntington National Bank (“Huntington” or the “Bank”) and its
participating lenders, on the other hand, dated as of March 31, 2009, as amended, which covers the debt incurred by
the Company prior to December 2007; references to the “Licensing Credit Agreement” refer to the Licensing Credit
Agreement between FCHC, FCMC and the Bank, dated March 31, 2009, as amended, which extends a line of credit
and letter of credit facility to FCMC and FCHC; references to the “Legacy Debt” refer to the indebtedness owed to the
Bank and its participating lenders under the Legacy Credit Agreement; references to the “Unrestructured Debt” refer to
the indebtedness owed to the Bank under the Company’s 2004 master credit agreement with the Bank and previously
subject to the original terms of the forbearance agreements entered into with the Bank in December 2007 and
subsequent amendments thereto until the expiration pursuant to their terms on September 30, 2011; and references to
the “Total Debt” refer to the aggregate Legacy Debt and Unrestructured Debt, which is the total indebtedness owed to
the Bank and its participating lenders under all agreements to which the Company and/or its subsidiaries is a party
(referred to in the Consolidated Financial Statements as “Notes payable”).  References to “Bosco I,” “Bosco II,” “Bosco III”
and “Bosco IV” refer to Bosco Credit, LLC, Bosco Credit II, LLC, Bosco Credit III, LLC and Bosco Credit IV, LLC,
respectively, each of which is a related-party entity.

Anticipated Bankruptcy Filing of FCHC and Separation of FCMC from FCHC

Subject to the final approval of the Bank, the Bank agreed as part of certain implementing agreements regarding a
transaction in September 2010 (the “September 2010 Transaction”) (as described in Note 11 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements) to a spinoff of the ownership of FCMC.  Within the next several weeks simultaneously with or
shortly after the commencement of a potential bankruptcy case, we anticipate beginning the process of spinning off
FCMC through the filing of a voluntary petition for bankruptcy relief (the “Bankruptcy Filing”) and pre-packaged plan
of reorganization (the “Plan of Reorganization”) under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in the U.S. Bankruptcy
Court for the District of New Jersey (the “Bankruptcy Court”), subject to having first obtained the consent of the only
eligible voting creditor, the Bank, which we anticipate receiving and otherwise satisfying the requirements of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code.  Neither FCMC nor any other subsidiaries of FCHC intend to file for bankruptcy.  It is anticipated
that following the Bankruptcy Filing, FCHC will continue to operate in the ordinary course of business as a
“debtor-in-possession” under the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court and in accordance with the applicable provisions
of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code and the orders of the Bankruptcy Court.  FCHC will not request the appointment of a
case trustee or examiner.  Vendors of FCHC will be paid for goods furnished and services provided in the ordinary
course of business during the pendency of the bankruptcy.  FCHC has incurred and we anticipate will continue to
incur significant costs, primarily professional fees, associated with the Bankruptcy Filing.  Following a successful
consummation of the Plan of Reorganization, a liquidation of FCHC is not immediately contemplated.
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As a result of the Bankruptcy Filing, FCHC will be required to file various documents with, and provide certain
information to, the Bankruptcy Court, including statements of financial affairs, schedules of assets and liabilities, and
monthly operating reports in forms prescribed by the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, as well as certain financial information
on an unconsolidated basis.  Such materials will be prepared according to requirements of Federal bankruptcy
law.  While these documents and the information contained therein provide then-current information required under
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, they are nonetheless unconsolidated, unaudited, and prepared in a format different from
that used in FCHC’s Consolidated Financial Statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and filed under the securities laws.  Accordingly, FCHC believes
that the substance and format will not allow meaningful comparison with its regular publicly-disclosed Consolidated
Financial Statements.  Moreover, the materials to be filed with the Bankruptcy Court will not be prepared for the
purpose of providing a basis for an investment decision relating to FCHC’s securities, or for comparison with other
financial information filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).

The Bankruptcy Filing would constitute events of default under the Legacy Credit Agreement, which in any event is
set to mature on March 31, 2012, and the Licensing Credit Agreement, with the Legacy Debt automatically due and
payable but subject to the automatic stay and other provisions of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code.  Therefore, prior to the
Bankruptcy Filing, FCHC intends to seek from the Bank (i) an agreement to delete FCHC as a party and any
references to FCHC under the Licensing Credit Agreement, with FCHC to have no further rights or obligations as a
borrower thereunder, (ii) a waiver of any defaults under the Licensing Credit Agreement relating to the Bankruptcy
Filing and (iii) a forbearance from the Bank on initiating collection proceedings or exercising its rights and remedies
with respect to the cash collateral of $7.5 million pledged to the Bank under the Legacy Credit Agreement and
Licensing Credit Agreement, until at least September 30, 2012.  Because neither FCHC nor FCMC is an obligor or
guarantor under the Legacy Credit Agreement, FCHC and FCMC are not liable to the Bank for the indebtedness under
the Legacy Credit Agreement, except for the $7.5 million pledged by FCHC and FCMC to the Bank as described
above.

There can be no assurance, however, that (i) FCHC will obtain the consent of the Bank to the Plan of Reorganization
or that the Plan of Reorganization filed with the Bankruptcy Filing to spin off FCMC from FCHC will be confirmed
by the Bankruptcy Court or that there might not be tax, shareholder, legal, regulatory, accounting or other matters that
could prevent the spinoff of FCMC from FCHC or (ii) that FCHC and FCMC will obtain the necessary waivers and
agreements of the Bank with respect to the Legacy Credit Agreement and Licensing Credit Agreement to maintain the
line of credit and letter of credit facility of FCMC for its servicing licenses, which is supported by the $7.5 million of
cash collateral previously pledged to the Bank by FCHC and FCMC, should FCHC proceed with the bankruptcy
petition.

The primary objective of the Plan of Reorganization is to spin off FCHC’s 80% interest in FCMC to its shareholders in
consideration for FCMC agreeing to pay FCHC the amount equal to the estimated fair market value of FCMC, as
determined by an independent advisory firm, over a period not to exceed a certain number of years, which has not yet
been determined.
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Settlement Agreement with the Bank, Surrender of the Company’s Investment in Preferred and Common Stock of the
Bank’s REIT and Termination of Interest Rate Swap Agreements

On May 23, 2011, the Company entered into a settlement agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) with the Bank, a
subsidiary of the Bank’s parent, and the Bank’s lending participants covering the surrender and transfer of the
Company’s investment in preferred stock and common stock of the Bank’s REIT subsidiary (the “REIT Securities”) held
by the Company, (and pledged as collateral under the Legacy Credit Agreement), and the early termination of all
remaining interest rate swaps, in exchange for, among other things:

•  a waiver of the alleged default under the Company’s Legacy Credit Agreement that the Company had failed to make
certain payments required under certain interest rate hedge agreements (the “Interest Rate Swaps”) with the Bank (the
“Specified Default”);

•  a reduction of the outstanding balance of the Bank’s portion of tranche A debt in the amount of $478 million; and,

•  full satisfaction of indebtedness relating to the Interest Rate Swaps totaling approximately $14.7 million.

For a description of the Settlement Agreement with the Bank, see Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Expired Forbearance Agreement with the Bank

Prior to the agreements entered into with the Bank in connection with the March 31, 2009 restructuring (the
“Restructuring Agreements”), our indebtedness was governed by forbearance agreements and prior credit agreements
with the Bank.  Effective as of March 31, 2009, all of our borrowings, with the exception of the current amount of
$38.2 million (referred to as the Unrestructured Debt), are governed by credit agreements entered into as part of the
Restructuring Agreements.  The Unrestructured Debt was due and payable as of September 30, 2011 under the
Company’s 2004 master credit agreement with the Bank.  See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Due to the previously existing defaults under the 2004 master credit agreement and expiration of the forbearance
period with respect to the Bank’s rights and remedies under that credit agreement, the Bank, with notice, has the right
to call an event of default under the Legacy Credit Agreement with the Bank and its participating banks, dated as of
March 31, 2009, as amended, but not the Licensing Credit Agreement between FCHC, FCMC and the Bank, dated
March 31, 2009, as amended, which does not include cross-default provisions that would be triggered by such an
event of default under the Legacy Credit Agreement.  The Bank’s recourse in respect of the Legacy Credit Agreement
is limited to the assets and stock of FCHC’s subsidiaries, excluding the assets and stock of FCMC (except for a
second-priority lien of the Bank on $7.5 million of cash collateral held as security under the Licensing Credit
Agreement).  The Bank has not exercised the rights and remedies available to it with respect to the Unrestructured
Debt.  See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

FCMC is not obligated to the Bank with respect to the Unrestructured Debt.

The Bank, which holds legal title to the commercial loans governing the Unrestructured Debt, has through
participation agreements transferred 100% of the beneficial interest in the commercial loans to two parties, each
holding a 50% beneficial interest in the commercial loans.  One of the participants is Bosco III, a related party in
which 50% of the membership interests are held by Thomas J. Axon, the Company’s Chairman and President.  See
Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Description of the Company’s Business

As a result of the Company’s surrender and transfer of its Investment in REIT securities to the Bank in May 2011, the
business activity of Franklin Holding predominately consists of specialized mortgage loan collections and recovery
servicing of residential mortgage loan portfolios for third-party investors.  The Company’s specialized mortgage loan
collections and recovery servicing business has been conducted since the corporate reorganization in December 2008
(see below) through FCMC, a subsidiary corporation of FCHC, which is directly owned 80% by FCHC and 20% by
Thomas J. Axon, the Chairman and President of the Company and FCMC.

Except for the mortgage servicing business conducted through FCMC, the business activities of Franklin Holding and
its subsidiary companies following the December 2008 holding company formation and corporate reorganization and
2009 debt restructuring (the “Restructuring” or “March 2009 Restructuring”) principally consisted of making payments on
the Legacy Debt and the Unrestructured Debt, in accordance with the credit agreement with the Bank (the Legacy
Credit Agreement).  Payments made on the Legacy Debt generally were limited to the cash flows received from a trust
owned by the Bank (the “Bank’s Trust” or “Trust”) and from the dividends received from the investment in preferred stock
of a REIT of the Bank (the “Bank’s REIT”).  However, since the September 2010 Transaction with the Bank, and until
May 23, 2011 when the Company entered into the Settlement Agreement covering the surrender and transfer of the
Company’s Investment in REIT Securities (pledged as collateral under the Legacy Credit Agreement) with the Bank,
payments made on the Legacy Debt generally were limited principally to the cash flows received from dividends
received from the investment in preferred stock of the Bank’s REIT (the REIT Securities).  As a result of the
Company’s surrender and transfer of the REIT Securities to the Bank, the Company, as of May 2011, is left without
what had been essentially the remaining principal cash-flow generating asset available to service the outstanding
principal balance of the Legacy Debt, and the Company will be unable to pay the remaining principal balance of the
Legacy Debt at the maturity of the Legacy Credit Agreement on March 31, 2012 (or upon earlier termination under
the provisions of the Legacy Credit Agreement).  See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company’s remaining cash flows available to service the outstanding principal balance of the Company’s
Unrestructured Debt are solely from the Notes receivable held for sale, net, which at December 31, 2011 amounted to
$2.4 million (50% of which is available to service the Unrestructured Debt).  See Notes 11 and 18 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In December 2008, the Company engaged in a series of transactions (the “Reorganization”) in which the Company
adopted a holding company form of organizational structure, with Franklin Holding serving as the new
public-company parent.  Under the Reorganization, Franklin Credit Holding Corporation became the successor issuer
to FCMC, and FCMC ceased to have portfolios of loans and real estate properties and the related indebtedness to the
Bank under the Legacy Credit Agreement and became the Company’s servicing business subsidiary.

Effective March 31, 2009, Franklin Holding, and its consolidated subsidiaries, including FCMC, entered into the
Restructuring Agreements with the Bank pursuant to which (i) the Company’s loans, pledges and guarantees under the
Legacy Credit Agreement with the Bank and its participating banks were substantially restructured, (ii) substantially
all of the Company’s portfolio of subprime mortgage loans and owned real estate was transferred to a trust of the
Bank’s (with the loans and owned real estate transferred to the Bank’s trust collectively referred to herein as the
“Portfolio”) in exchange for trust certificates, with certain trust certificates, representing an undivided interest in
approximately 83% of the Portfolio, transferred in turn by the Company to a real estate investment trust wholly-owned
by the Bank’s Trust, (iii) FCMC and Franklin Holding entered into a new credit facility with the Bank (the Licensing
Credit Agreement), and (iv) FCMC entered into a servicing agreement (the “Legacy Servicing Agreement”) with the
Bank’s Trust (the preceding, collectively referred to herein as the Restructuring or the March 2009 Restructuring).
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The Restructuring did not include the Unrestructured Debt portion of the Company’s debt, which became due and
payable in full as of September 30, 2011, and as of December 31, 2011, remained unpaid and totaled approximately
$38.2 million.

Although the transfer of the trust certificates in the March 2009 Restructuring represented approximately 83% of the
Portfolio, and the transfer to the Bank’s REIT was structured in substance as a sale of financial assets, the transfer, for
accounting purposes, was treated as a secured financing under GAAP in accordance with Accounting Standards
Codification Topic 860, Transfers and Servicing (“ASC Topic 860”).  Therefore, the mortgage loans and real estate
remained on the Company’s balance sheet classified as Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale securing a
Nonrecourse liability in an equal amount.

Because the loans transferred by the Company to the Trust had continued to be included on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet until the periods referenced below, the revenues from such loans were reflected in the
Company’s consolidated results, in accordance with GAAP, notwithstanding the fact that trust certificates representing
an undivided interest in approximately 83% of the Portfolio were transferred to Huntington in the
Restructuring.  Accordingly, except for and effective with the sales of loans by the Bank in the third and fourth
quarters of 2010, the fees received from the Bank subsequent to March 31, 2009 for servicing their loans, and the
third-party costs incurred by us in the servicing and collection of their loans and reimbursed by the Bank, for purposes
of these Consolidated Financial Statements were not recognized as servicing fees and reimbursement of third-party
servicing costs, but instead as additional interest and other income earned with additional offsetting expenses in an
equal amount as if the Company continued to own the loans.

As a result of the 2010 third and fourth quarter loan sales by the Trust (the “Loan Sales” refer to the third quarter loan
sales in July and September, and the “December Loan Sale” refers to the fourth quarter loan sale), the transfer of
approximately 83% of the trust certificates (representing an undivided 83% interest in the loans and real estate held by
the Bank’s Trust) to the Bank’s REIT in March 2009, which was accounted for as a secured financing in accordance
with GAAP, with an equal percentage of mortgage loans and owned real estate sold to the Bank’s Trust remaining on
the Company’s balance sheet classified as Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale and securing a Nonrecourse
liability in an equal amount, is as of the effective dates of the Loan Sales and December Loan Sale substantially
accounted for as a sale of loans in accordance with GAAP, to the extent of the loans sold by the Trust.  Similarly, the
Loan Sales and December Loan Sale by the Bank’s Trust also resulted in treating substantially all of the loans
represented by the remaining 17% in trust certificates held by the Company as sold in accordance with GAAP
effective with the dates of the Loan Sales and December Loan Sale.  However, the Trust in 2010 did not sell the real
estate owned inventory, which remained on the Company’s balance sheet classified as Mortgage loans and real estate
held for sale and securing a Nonrecourse liability in an equal amount.

The treatment as a financing on the Company’s balance sheet did not affect the cash flows of the March 2009 transfer,
the Company’s cash flows or its reported net income.  The treatment of the Loan Sales and the December Loan Sale to
the extent of the 83% represented by the trust certificates held by the Bank’s REIT in the quarters ended September 30
and December 31, 2010 as a sale of financial assets also did not affect the cash flows of the Company or its reported
net income.  However, the treatment of the Loan Sales and the December Loan Sale to the extent of the 17%
represented by the trust certificates held by the Company in the quarters ended September 30 and December 31, 2010,
which also were treated as sales of financial assets, did affect the Company’s cash flows and reported net income.

See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a description of the above.

F-11

Edgar Filing: FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORP/DE/ - Form 10-K

147



Going Concern

The Company since September 30, 2007 has been and continues to be operating with significant operating losses and
stockholders’ deficit.  At December 31, 2011, the Company’s outstanding indebtedness (the Total Debt), was
approximately $846.9 million, which consisted of approximately $808.8 million of Legacy Debt due to the Bank and
approximately $38.2 million of Unrestructured Debt, with substantially no remaining income-generating assets (other
than FCMC, which but for cash collateral of $7.5 million held by FCMC and subject to liens of the Bank, is not liable
for the Total Debt); and, consequently, the Company will not be able to pay off the outstanding balance of the Total
Debt.  Further, due to the September 30, 2011 expiration of a forbearance agreement, under which the Bank had
agreed not to exercise certain rights available to it due to the defaults under the 2004 master credit agreement
governing the Unrestructured Debt, the Bank is entitled to declare the Unrestructured Debt, and with notice, the
remaining Legacy Debt under the Legacy Credit Agreement (which, in any event is set to mature on March 31, 2012)
immediately due and payable.  (The Total Debt is not an obligation of FCMC.)  Without the continued cooperation
and assistance from the Bank, the consolidated Franklin Holding’s ability to continue as a viable business is in
substantial doubt, and it may not be able to continue as a going concern.  Franklin Holding’s financial statements for
the years ended December 30, 2011 and 2010 are prepared assuming the Company continues as a going concern and
do not include any adjustment that might result from its inability to continue as a going concern.

Subject to the consent of the Bank, the Company anticipates petitioning the Bankruptcy Court through a Bankruptcy
Filing and Plan of Reorganization, to be filed within the next several weeks, for permission to break out and spin off
its separate mortgage servicing subsidiary, FCMC, from Franklin Holding’s consolidated group as a separate
publicly-owned company owned 80% by FCHC shareholders in consideration for FCMC agreeing to pay FCHC the
amount equal to the estimated fair market value of FCMC over a period of years, which has not yet been determined.

The Company had net income attributed to common stockholders of $22.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2011 as a result of (i) dividend income recognized during the three months ended June 30, 2011 due to the surrender
and transfer of the Company’s Investment in REIT securities, (ii) dividend income recognized during the three months
ended March 31, 2011 representing the dividends declared and paid in the first quarter of 2011 for the third and fourth
quarters of 2010 and the first quarter of 2011, and (iii) a gain recognized during the three months ended June 30, 2011
on the settlement of the Company’s swap liability as a result of the full satisfaction of indebtedness relating to the
termination of the Company’s interest rate swaps.  Excluding the $31.9 million of dividend income recognized during
the three months ended June 30, 2011, the $31.9 million of dividend income recognized during the three months
ended March 31, 2011, and the gain on the settlement of the swap liability totaling approximately $14.7 million
recognized during the three months ended June 30, 2011, the Company would have recorded a net loss before taxes of
approximately $56.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011.  For the year ended December 31, 2010, the
Company had a net loss of $55.5 million.  The Company had income per common share for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2011 of $2.77 and $2.76 on a basic and diluted basis, respectively, compared to a net loss per common
share of $6.89 on both a diluted and basic basis for the twelve months ended December 31, 2010.  At December 31,
2011, the Company’s stockholders’ deficit was $827.7 million.  At December 31, 2010, the Company’s stockholders’
deficit was $852.9 million.
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Licenses to Service Loans

By letter dated April 12, 2010, the New York State Banking Department (which is now a part of the New York State
Department of Financial Services) had notified FCMC that in connection with its review of FCMC’s financial
statements and mortgage servicing volume, its application for registration as a mortgage servicer in that state, which
FCMC had filed during the transitional period allowed by the state for registration of mortgage servicers doing
business in New York State on June 30, 2009, could not be accepted for processing until FCMC addressed its
“Adjusted Net Worth” (as defined by the New York State Banking Department), which the Banking Department had
determined to be below the minimum Adjusted Net Worth requirement for mortgage servicers of at least 1% of the
outstanding principal balance of aggregate mortgage loans serviced (whether or not in New York), but in any event
not less than $250,000; and, (ii) a ratio of Adjusted Net Worth to the outstanding principal balance of New York
mortgage loans serviced of at least 5%.

On September 9, 2010, the New York State Banking Department found the capital plan submitted by FCMC on May
12, 2010 (to address how FCMC would achieve compliance with regulatory net worth requirements that were adopted
in New York State in 2009 for mortgage servicers) to be satisfactory and accepted for processing the application of
FCMC to continue to service residential mortgage loans in that state and granted a twelve-month waiver of otherwise
applicable net worth requirements.  The capital plan was to remain effective and enforceable until FCMC regained full
compliance with net worth and financial responsibility requirements.

On August 24, 2011 (as filed for publication in the state register on September 14, 2011), new regulations were
adopted that lowered minimum Adjusted Net Worth requirements to a minimum of at least $250,000 plus ¼ of 1% of
the outstanding principal balance of aggregate mortgage loans serviced (whether or not in New York), provided, that,
if such person is solely a third-party servicer (as defined in the regulations) with respect to certain mortgage loans and
owns other mortgage loans or the servicing rights thereto, it shall maintain net worth of at least $250,000 plus ¼ of
1% of the outstanding principal balance of the non-third-party servicer loans and ¼ of 1% of the outstanding principal
amount of the New York mortgage loans for which it is a third-party servicer.  As FCMC is in compliance with such
requirements, its capital plan is no longer in effect.  However, its application to be a registered mortgage servicer is
still pending with the New York State Department of Financial Services.

The Company’s common stock is quoted under the stock symbol “FCMC.OB” on the OTC Bulletin Board.

Basis of Presentation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned and
majority-owned subsidiaries.  All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.  These Consolidated Financial Statements include all normal and recurring adjustments that
management believes necessary for a fair presentation.  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  The Company’s estimates and assumptions
primarily arise from uncertainties and changes associated with interest rates, credit exposure and fair market values of
its investment in Notes receivable held for sale.  Although management is not currently aware of any factors that
would significantly change its estimates and assumptions in the near term, future changes in market trends, market
values and interest rates and other conditions may occur that could cause actual results to differ materially.
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Subsequent to March 31, 2009, the date of the March 2009 Restructuring, the Company’s only principal business
activity is servicing portfolios of loans for third parties, which because of the accounting treatment of the
Restructuring has not been reflected in the Consolidated Financial Statements until the effective dates of the Loan
Sales and the December Loan Sale.

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reclassification – During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company changed the presentation of its
Consolidated Statements of Operations in order to more clearly present the income from providing specialized
servicing and collection services for third parties by separating Servicing fees and other income into two
classifications, Servicing fees and Other income.  As a result, the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year
ended December 31, 2010 has been changed to conform to the current presentation.

Noncontrolling Interest – The Company accounts for a 20% equity interest in FCMC to a related party in accordance
with ASC Topic 810, Consolidations, applying consolidation accounting under Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51,
Consolidated Financial Statements (“ARB 51”).

Net Income/(Loss) Per Share – Basic net income/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing net income/(loss) attributed
to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.  The
effects of warrants, restricted stock units and stock options are excluded from the computation of diluted net income
per common share in periods in which the effect would be antidilutive.  Dilutive net income/(loss) per share is
calculated by dividing net income/(loss) attributed to common stockholders by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding and the weighted average number of dilutive stock options.  There were 24,000 stock
options that were dilutive and used in the calculation of dilutive net income per share for the year ended December 31,
2011.  There were no dilutive stock options for the year ended December 31, 2010.  For the years ended December 31,
2011 and 2010, 206,000 and 229,000 stock options, respectively, were not included in the computation of net
income/(loss) per share because they were antidilutive.

Cash and Cash Equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents includes cash held at banks, including cash collateral held as
security under both the Licensing Credit Agreement and Legacy Credit Agreement in the amount of $7.5 million, and
certificates of deposit with original maturities of three months or less (when purchased), with the exception of
restricted cash, which is reported separately on the Company’s balance sheets.  The Company maintains accounts at
banks, which at times may exceed federally insured limits.  The Company has not experienced and does not expect to
incur any losses from such concentrations.

Restricted Cash – Restricted cash includes interest and principal collections received on the Company’s portfolio of
Notes receivable held for sale that is being held in reserve by the Bank, substantially all of which is required to pay
down the Legacy Debt obligations with the Bank.

Investment in REIT Securities – Investment in REIT securities includes preferred and common stocks of the Bank’s
REIT.  The Investment in REIT securities, which could not be sold or redeemed by the Company, was classified at the
date of purchase as non-marketable and carried at cost, and periodically assessed for other than temporary
impairment.  The investment in common stock of the REIT of approximately $4.9 million was carried at cost at
December 31, 2010.  The Company owned 4,724 shares of REIT preferred stock and 154 shares of common stock of
the REIT at December 31, 2010.  Due to the surrender of the REIT Securities in May 2011, there was no investment in
REIT securities at December 31, 2011.
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Investment in Trust Certificates – Investment in trust certificates, representing approximately 17% of the Portfolio not
transferred to the Bank’s REIT in the March 2009 Restructuring, was classified as “available for sale.”  The Investment
in trust certificates was carried at fair market value, and the certificates were valued as of the end of each reporting
period.  Changes in fair value were recorded in earnings as Fair valuation adjustments.  The fair value of the trust
certificates was based on an assessment of the underlying investment, expected cash flows and other market-based
information, and where observable market prices and other data were not available for similar investments, pricing
models or discounted cash flow analyses, using observable market data where available, were utilized to estimate fair
market value.  At December 31, 2011, there was no remaining balance in the Investment in trust certificates.  At
December 31, 2010, the Investment in trust certificates consisted solely of a small number of real estate properties
acquired through foreclosure.

Mortgage Loans and Real Estate Held for Sale – As part of the Restructuring, approximately 83% of the Portfolio was
transferred to the REIT and such loans and owned real estate (acquired through foreclosure) were classified as “held for
sale.”  Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale were carried at the lower of cost or market value.  The transfer was
accounted for as a secured financing in accordance with GAAP, ASC Topic 860, because for accounting purposes the
requisite level of certainty that the transferred assets were legally isolated from the Company and put presumptively
beyond the reach of the Company and its creditors, including in a bankruptcy proceeding, was not
achieved.  Accordingly, in accordance with GAAP, except to the extent of and prior to the sale of loans by the Bank,
as applicable, in July, September and December 2010, the mortgage loans and real estate remained on the Company’s
balance sheet classified as Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale securing the Nonrecourse liability in an equal
amount.  The fair value of the Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale was based on an assessment of the
underlying residential 1-4 family mortgage loans and real estate, expected cash flows and other market-based
information, and where observable market prices and other data are not available for similar loans, pricing models or
discounted cash flow analyses, using observable market data where available, were utilized to estimate market
value.  Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale were valued as of the end of each reporting period, and changes in
fair value were recorded in earnings as Fair valuation adjustments.

At December 31, 2011, there was no balance remaining of Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale due to the Loan
Sales by the Bank’s Trust of approximately 83% of the Portfolio.  At December 31, 2010, the Mortgage loans and real
estate held for sale consisted solely of real estate properties acquired through foreclosure.

Nonrecourse Liability – The nonrecourse liability was the offset to, and was secured by, the Mortgage loans and real
estate held for sale.  The Company elected the fair value option for the nonrecourse liability, and adjustments to fair
value were recorded as Fair valuation adjustments.  No interest expense was recorded on the Nonrecourse liability as
any payments received from the Trust on the trust certificates, for the underlying Mortgage loans and real estate held
for sale, were recorded as a reduction to the balance of the Nonrecourse liability, which was adjusted to fair value each
quarter through the Fair valuation adjustments line item.  At December 31, 2011, there was no balance remaining of
Nonrecourse liability as there was no remaining balance of Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale.
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Fair Valuation Adjustments – Fair valuation adjustments include amounts subsequent to March 31, 2009 related to
adjustments in the fair value of the Investment in trust certificates and the Nonrecourse liability, and adjustments to
the lower of cost or market related to Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale, and for losses on sales of real estate
owned.

Notes Receivable Held for Sale, Net – At March 31, 2009, as part of the March 2009 Restructuring, Notes receivable
held for sale, net, which represent the loans and assets that collateralize the Unrestructured Debt, are classified as “held
for sale” as this portfolio is from time to time actively marketed for sale.  The fair value of the Notes receivable held
for sale, net is based on an assessment of the underlying residential 1-4 family mortgage loans, expected cash flows
and other market-based information, and where observable market prices and other data are not available for similar
loans, pricing models or discounted cash flow analyses, using observable market data where available, are utilized to
estimate market value.  Notes receivable held for sale, net are valued as of the end of each reporting period, and
changes in fair value are recorded as Fair valuation adjustments.

Income Recognition on Investment in Trust Certificates and Mortgage Loans and Real Estate Held for Sale – Income
on the mortgage loans and real estate collateralizing the Investment in trust certificates and the Mortgage loans and
real estate held for sale is estimated based on the available information on these loans and real estate provided by the
Bank and from the loans serviced for the Trust.  The estimated income on the Mortgage loans and real estate held for
sale does not represent cash received and retained by the Company and is essentially offset through a valuation
adjustment of the Nonrecourse liability.

Derivatives – In accordance with ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging (“Topic 815”), as amended and interpreted,
derivative financial instruments are reported on the consolidated balance sheets at their fair value.

The Company’s management of interest-rate risk predominantly included the use of plain-vanilla interest rate swaps to
synthetically convert a portion of its London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”)-based variable-rate debt to fixed-rate
debt.  In accordance with ASC Topic 815, derivative contracts hedging the risks associated with expected future cash
flows are designated as cash flow hedges.  The Company formally documented at the inception of its hedges all
relationships between hedging instruments and the related hedged items, as well as its interest risk management
objectives and strategies for undertaking various accounting hedges.  Additionally, we used regression analysis at the
inception of the hedge and for each reporting period thereafter to assess the derivative’s hedge effectiveness in
offsetting changes in the cash flows of the hedged items.  The Company discontinued hedge accounting if it was
determined that a derivative was not expected to be or had ceased to be highly effective as a hedge, and then reflected
changes in the fair value of the derivative in earnings.  All of the Company’s interest rate swaps had qualified for cash
flow hedge accounting, and were so designated.

In conjunction with the Restructuring, and at the request of the Bank, effective March 31, 2009, the Company
exercised its right to terminate two non-amortizing fixed-rate interest rate swaps with the Bank, with an aggregate
notional amount of $390 million.  The total termination fee for cancellation of the swaps was $8.2 million, which was
payable only to the extent cash became available under the waterfall provisions of the Legacy Credit Agreement, and
only after the first $837.9 million of debt (the amount designated as tranche A debt as of March 31, 2009) owed to the
Bank has been paid in full.  The carrying value included in Accumulated other comprehensive loss (“AOCL”) within
stockholders’ deficit related to the terminated hedges was amortized to earnings over time.  The carrying value of
AOCL at December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $0 and $8.2 million, respectively.  See Note 8 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, in our case the swaps, were recorded in
AOCL within stockholders’ equity to the extent that the hedges were effective.  Any hedge ineffectiveness was
recorded in current period earnings as a part of interest expense.  If a derivative instrument in a cash flow hedge was
terminated, the hedge designation was removed, or the hedge accounting criteria were no longer met, the Company
discontinued the hedge relationship.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company removed the hedge designations for its cash flow hedges.  As a result, the
Company continued to carry the December 31, 2008 balance related to those hedges in AOCL, provided it did not
become probable that the forecasted cash flows would not occur.  The balance in AOCL was amortized to earnings as
part of interest expense in the same period or periods during which the hedged forecasted transaction affected
earnings.

On January 25, 2011, the Bank declared an early termination of all remaining interest rate swaps due to a failure by
the Company to make payments due under the swap agreements with the Bank.  The Company’s failure to make these
payments was occasioned by insufficient funds available under the Legacy Credit Agreement with the Bank and its
participating banks as a direct result of the loss of cash flows attributable to the July, September and December 2010
loan sales by the Bank’s Trust and the suspension of dividends by its REIT.

On May 23, 2011, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with the Bank covering the full satisfaction of
indebtedness relating to all of the Company’s interest rate swaps totaling approximately $14.7 million.  Accordingly, in
the quarter ended June 30, 2011, the Company recorded a gain on the full satisfaction of indebtedness relating to all of
the interest rate swaps of $14.7 million consisting of the $8.2 million liability from the interest rate swap terminations
as part of the March 2009 Restructuring and the $6.5 million liability incurred from the January 2011 interest rate
swap termination.

At December 31, 2011, the Company had no interest rate swaps agreements in place.

Fair Value Measurements – ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, establishes a three-tier
hierarchy for fair value measurements based upon the transparency of the inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability
and expands the disclosures about instruments measured at fair value.  A financial instrument is categorized in its
entirety and its categorization within the hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair
value measurement.

Fair values for over-the-counter interest rate contracts are determined from market observable inputs, including the
LIBOR curve and measures of volatility, and used to determine fair values, are considered Level 2 observable market
inputs.  Fair values for certain investments (Level 3 assets) are determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow
methodologies or similar techniques and at least one significant model assumption or input is unobservable.

Building, Furniture and Equipment – Building, furniture and equipment, including leasehold improvements, is recorded
at cost net of accumulated depreciation and amortization.  Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 3 to 40 years.  Amortization of leasehold improvements
is computed using the straight-line method over the lives of the related leases or useful lives of the related assets,
whichever is shorter.  Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.
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Deferred Financing Costs – Deferred financing costs, which include origination fees incurred in connection with
obtaining term loan financing from our banks prior to November 2007 (the Legacy Debt), are deferred and are
amortized over the term of Legacy Debt as the debt is paid down.

Income Taxes – Income taxes are accounted for under ASC Topic 740, Accounting for Income Taxes (“Topic 740”),
which requires an asset and liability approach in accounting for income taxes.  This method provides for deferred
income tax assets or liabilities based on the temporary difference between the income tax basis of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amount in the Consolidated Financial Statements.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled.  Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when management
determines that it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the benefit of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized in future years.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates
on the date of the enactment of the changes.

Servicing Fees – Servicing fees consist of fees for servicing loans and providing collection and recovery services for
third parties, ancillary fees from servicing loans for third parties, such as, late charges, prepayment penalties, and other
miscellaneous servicing-related income.  Servicing fees are recognized principally on an accrual basis.

Other Income – Other income consists of due diligence and other fees, such as property site visits for loans in various
stages of delinquency and foreclosure, for services provided to third parties, and miscellaneous fees and other revenue
not directly related to the servicing of loans and real estate properties.  Revenues included in Other income are
recognized principally on an accrual basis.

Dividend Income – Dividend income consisted of payments received from the Investment in REIT securities, which the
Company received in exchange for the trust certificates that were transferred to the Bank’s REIT on March 31,
2009.  Dividend income was recognized on an accrual basis.  Due to the surrender of the REIT Securities in May
2011, there was no investment in REIT securities at December 31, 2011.  See Notes 5 and 11 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments – ASC Topic 825, Financial Instruments (“Topic 825”) requires disclosure of fair
value information of financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the balance sheets, for which it is practicable
to estimate that value.  In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using
present value or other valuation techniques.  Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used,
including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows.  In that regard, the derived fair value estimates cannot
be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in many cases, could not be realized in immediate
settlement of the instruments.  Topic 825 excludes certain financial instruments and all non-financial assets and
liabilities from its disclosure requirements.  Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts do not represent the
underlying value of the Company.
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The methods and assumptions used by the Company in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments at
December 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

a.  Cash, Restricted Cash, Accrued Interest Receivable, Other Receivables and Accounts Payable and Accrued
Expenses – The carrying values reported in the consolidated balance sheets are a reasonable estimate of fair value.

b.  Investment in Trust Certificates, Mortgage Loans and Real Estate Held for Sale, and Notes Receivable Held for
Sale – These investments are carried at estimated fair values.

c.  Investment in REIT Securities – The book value of the Investment in REIT securities approximated the fair value
for these non-marketable securities (based on the approximate value of the underlying assets of the REIT).

d.  Long-term Debt (Notes Payable) – At December 31, 2011, the fair value of long-term debt was estimated to be
equal to the Notes receivable held for sale and pledged cash of $7.5 million (in aggregate, the collateral for the
long-term debt), which approximated $9.9 million.  The fair value of long-term debt was estimated to be equal to
the fair value of the REIT securities, Investment in trust certificates, Notes receivable held for sale and pledged
cash of $7.5 million (in aggregate, the collateral for the long-term debt), which approximated $497 million at
December 31, 2010.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans – The Company maintains share-based payment arrangements under which
employees are awarded grants of restricted stock, non-qualified stock options, incentive stock options and other forms
of stock-based payment arrangements.  Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition
provisions of ASC Topic 718 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, (“Topic 718”) using the modified-prospective
transition method.  Under this transition method, compensation cost recognized beginning January 1, 2006 includes
compensation cost for all share-based payment arrangements issued, but not yet vested as of December 31, 2005,
based on the grant date fair value and expense attribution methodology determined in accordance with the original
provisions of Topic 718.  Compensation cost for all share-based payment arrangements granted subsequent to
December 31, 2005, is based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of Topic 718.  In
addition, the effect of forfeitures on restricted stock (if any), is estimated when recognizing compensation cost.  Prior
to adoption of Topic 718, the Company presented all tax benefits of deductions resulting from the exercise of stock
options as operating cash flows in the Statement of Cash Flows.  Topic 718 requires the cash flows resulting from the
tax benefits of tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized for those options (excess tax benefits) to
be classified as financing cash flows.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements – In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued
Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-12 (“ASU 2011-12”), Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the
Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in ASU 2011-05.  ASU
2011-12 defers the requirement that companies present reclassification adjustments for each component of AOCI in
both net income and OCI on the face of the financial statements.  All other requirements in ASU No. 2011-05 are not
affected by ASU No. 2011-12, including the requirement to report comprehensive income either in a single
continuous financial statement or in two separate but consecutive financial statements.  The adoption of this standard
is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position and results of operations.
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In June 2011, the FASB ASU No. 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive
Income.  This guidance improves the comparability, consistency and transparency of financial reporting and increases
the prominence of items reported in other comprehensive income.  The guidance provided by this update becomes
effective for interim and annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2011.  Since this ASU will only change
the format of financial statements, it is expected that the adoption of this ASU will not have a material effect on a
Company’s consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to Achieve
Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs.  This updated accounting
guidance establishes common requirements for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value
measurements in accordance with GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).  This guidance
includes amendments that clarify the intent about the application of existing fair value measurements and disclosures,
while other amendments change a principle or requirement for fair value measurements or disclosures.  This guidance
is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011.  The adoption of this standard is not
expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-02, Receivables (Topic 310): A Creditor’s Determination of Whether a
Restructuring Is a Troubled Debt Restructuring.  The ASU clarifies which loan modifications constitute troubled debt
restructurings.  It is intended to assist creditors in determining whether a modification of the terms of a receivable
meets the criteria to be considered a troubled debt restructuring, both for purposes of recording an impairment loss and
for disclosure of troubled debt restructurings.  In evaluating whether a restructuring constitutes a troubled debt
restructuring, a creditor must separately conclude that both of the following exist: (a) the restructuring constitutes a
concession; and (b) the debtor is experiencing financial difficulties.  The amendments to Topic 310 clarify the
guidance on a creditor’s evaluation of whether it has granted a concession and whether a debtor is experiencing
financial difficulties.  The new guidance is effective for interim and annual periods beginning on or after June 15,
2011, and applies retrospectively to restructurings occurring on or after the beginning of the fiscal year of
adoption.  The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial position and results of operations.

On July 21, 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-20, Disclosures About the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables
and the Allowance for Credit Losses, which amends ASC 310, Receivables, by requiring more robust and
disaggregated disclosures about the credit quality of an entity’s financing receivables and its allowance for credit
losses.  The objective of enhancing these disclosures is to improve financial statement users’ understanding of (1) the
nature of an entity’s credit risk associated with its financing receivables and (2) the entity’s assessment of that risk in
estimating its allowance for credit losses as well as changes in the allowance and the reasons for those changes.

The new and amended disclosures that relate to information as of the end of a reporting period will be effective for the
first interim or annual reporting periods ending on or after December 15, 2010.  That is, for calendar year-end public
entities, like the Company, most of the new and amended disclosures in the ASU were effective for the 2010 year-end
reporting season.  However, the disclosures that include information for activity that occurs during a reporting period
will be effective for the first interim or annual periods beginning after December 15, 2010.  Those disclosures include
(1) the activity in the allowance for credit losses for each period and (2) disclosures about modifications of financing
receivables.  For calendar year-end public entities, like the Company, those disclosures would be effective for the first
quarter of 2011.  The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
position and results of operations.
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3.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company had $12.4 million and $12.6 million, respectively, in cash and cash
equivalents.  Included in Cash and cash equivalents both at December 31, 2011 and 2010 was pledged cash to the
Bank of $7.5 million under the Licensing Credit Agreement (secured by a first-priority lien) and the Legacy Credit
Agreement (secured by a second-priority lien).

4.  RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash in the amount of $955,000 and $2.4 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, represents
principal and interest collections received on the Company’s portfolio of notes receivable and loans held for
investment prior to the 2009 Restructuring that is being held in reserve by the Bank, substantially all of which is
required to pay down the Legacy Debt obligations with the Bank.

5.  INVESTMENT IN PREFERRED AND COMMON STOCK (HUNTINGTON REIT SECURITIES)

Due to the surrender of the REIT Securities in May 2011, there was no investment in REIT securities at December 31,
2011.  The Company’s investment in REIT Securities, which included preferred and common stocks of the Bank’s
REIT at December 31, 2010, consisted of 4,724 shares of Class C preferred stock and 154 shares of common stock.

On July 23, 2010, the Company was notified by the Bank that due to losses recognized by the new combined REIT
from a writedown of the carrying value of the mortgage loans owned by the Trust, the board of directors of the new
combined REIT decided not to declare any preferred dividends for the third and fourth calendar quarters of 2010.  As
a result, during the quarters ended September 30 and December 31, 2010, the Company did not receive or accrue
dividends on its investment in preferred stock of the Bank’s REIT, which had amounted to approximately $10.6
million in recent prior quarterly periods.

In February 2011, the Company was advised that the REIT board in February declared dividends on the REIT
Securities for the two quarterly periods ended September 30 and December 31, 2010, and also declared a dividend for
the full year of 2011.  On March 31, 2011, the Company received the declared dividends on the REIT Securities in the
amount of $63.8 million, of which $31.9 million was recognized as Dividend income in the three months ended March
31, 2011, representing dividends paid for the last two quarters of 2010 and the first quarter of 2011.  The dividends
paid on March 31, 2011 for the subsequent three quarterly periods ending December 31, 2011 in the amount of $31.9
million, which were deferred, were recognized as Dividend income in the three months ended June 30, 2011 due to
the surrender of the REIT Securities to the Bank on May 23, 2011.  See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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6.  INVESTMENT IN TRUST CERTIFICATES AT FAIR VALUE, MORTGAGE LOANS AND REAL ESTATE
HELD FOR SALE, AND NOTES RECEIVABLE HELD FOR SALE

Investment in Trust certificates, carried at estimated fair value, as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 consisted
principally of the trust certificates not transferred to the Bank’s REIT as of the March 2009 Restructuring (representing
approximately 17% of the Company’s loans and real estate assets as of March 31, 2009):

2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year                                                  $ 1,505,978 $ 69,355,735

Loan sales, at fair value (308,157 ) (50,051,396)
Fair value adjustments, loan sales - (9,816,831 )
Trust distributions - (9,093,786 )
Transfers (out) (1,171,058) (3,456,861 )
Other fair value adjustments, net (26,763 ) 4,569,117

Balance, end of year                                                  $ - $ 1,505,978

The Bank’s Trust sold in the third quarter ended September 30, 2010, in the Loan Sales, approximately $50.1 million
of the loans and real estate owned assets underlying the Company’s Investment in trust certificates.  The Company
recognized a loss (a fair value adjustment) in the amount of $9.8 million on the loans sold by the Bank’s Trust in the
sales of loans in July and September of 2010 (the “July Loan Sale,” together with the “September Loan Sale,” the “Loan
Sales”).  The Bank’s Trust sold, in the December Loan Sale, the remaining loans and certain real estate owned assets
underlying the Company’s Investment in trust certificates that were not sold in the Loan Sales, and recognized a
recovery (a fair value adjustment) of less than $50,000 (included in Other fair value adjustments) on the loans sold by
the Bank’s Trust.  The Other fair value adjustments also include a gain on the distributions from the Trust of $4.6
million.

At December 31, 2011, there was no remaining balance of the Investment in trust certificates.  Prior to December 31,
2011, the balance represented the estimated fair value of the Company’s pro rata share of the remaining real estate
owned properties underlying the Investment in trust certificates that were not sold by the Bank’s Trust in the third and
fourth quarter loan sales and in the May 2011 sale of essentially most of the remaining real estate owned properties
underlying the Investment in trust certificates.  Since May 2011, and until year-end 2011, the Investment in trust
certificates represented a small number of real estate owned (“REO”) properties that remained in the Trust.
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Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale, carried at lower of cost or estimated fair value, as December 31, 2010
consisted principally of the trust certificates transferred to the Bank’s REIT as of the Restructuring (representing
approximately 83% of the Portfolio as of March 31, 2009):

2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year                                                  $ 7,500,863 $ 345,441,865

Loan sales, at fair value (1,534,846) (263,049,681)
Fair value adjustments, loan sales - (37,826,111 )
REO sales (5,066,230) (17,194,661 )
Principal payments - (16,915,671 )
Loans written off - (23,016 )
Other fair value adjustments, net (899,787 ) (2,931,862 )

Balance, end of year                                                  $ - $ 7,500,863

The Bank’s Trust sold in the third quarter ended September 30, 2010 (the Loan Sales), approximately $263.0 million in
loans attributable to trust certificates held by the Bank’s REIT, which were reflected on the Company’s balance sheet as
Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale.  The Bank’s Trust sold in the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2010
(the December Loan Sale), the remaining loans attributable to trust certificates held by the Bank’s REIT that were not
sold in the Loan Sales.  The Company, with respect to the Loan Sales, recognized a negative fair value adjustment in
the amount of $37.8 million, which was offset by a corresponding positive fair value adjustment in the amount of
$37.8 million on the Nonrecourse liability; and, a net gain of less than $50,000 (a fair value adjustment) was
recognized on the loans sold by the Bank’s Trust in the December Loan Sale.  The Other fair value adjustments include
a net decline of approximately $2.9 million in the estimated market value of the pro rata percentage of loans and REO
underlying the Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale.  At December 31, 2011, there was no balance remaining
of Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale due to the Loan Sales by the Bank’s Trust of approximately 83% of the
Portfolio.

The December 31, 2010 balance represented the estimated fair value of the undivided 83% interest in the real estate
properties that were not sold by the Bank’s Trust.

Notes receivable held for sale, carried at lower of cost or estimated fair value, as of December 31, 2011 and 2010
consist principally of the Company’s loans securing the Unrestructured Debt:

2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year $ 2,857,312 $ 3,575,323

Principal payments (702,091 ) (910,243 )
Loans written off (74,887 ) (17,357 )
Fair value adjustments, net 349,865 209,589

Balance, end of year                                                  $ 2,430,199 $ 2,857,312

In the December Loan Sale, the Bank also sold its 50% participation interest in the commercial loans securing the
Unrestructured Debt, which did not affect the Company’s reported net loss for the three months ended December 31,
2010 since the Bank has only sold a participation interest in its commercial loan representing the Unrestructured
Debt.  Therefore, the Company’s investments in the loans securing the Unrestructured Debt, (shown on the Company’s
balance sheets as Notes receivable held for sale, net) were not treated as a sale of financial assets in accordance with
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7.  FAIR VALUATION ADJUSTMENTS

Fair valuation adjustments include amounts subsequent to March 31, 2009 related to adjustments in the fair value of
the Investment in trust certificates, the Nonrecourse liability, and adjustments to the lower of cost or market related to
Mortgage loans and real estate held for sale, and for losses on sales of real estate owned properties (REO).

The following table sets forth the activity affecting the Fair valuation adjustments during the twelve months ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Valuation gain on REO sales $ 223,264 $ 5,451,463
Valuation (loss) on mortgage loans and REO (899,787 ) (40,757,974)
Valuation gain on nonrecourse liability 899,787 40,757,974
Valuation (loss) on sales of trust certificates - (9,816,831 )
Valuation gain on trust certificates - 4,569,117
Valuation gain on notes receivable 349,865 209,588
Other adjustments 908,904 (16,452,533)

Gain/(loss) on valuation $ 1,482,033 $ (16,039,196)

Other adjustments during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 include estimated fair market value declines to
REO of approximately $1.0 million, adjustments to the loans comprising the Notes receivable held for sale of
approximately $98,000 and various other net positive adjustments approximating $2.0 million.  During the quarter
ended December 31, 2011, the remaining carrying value of the Investment in trust certificates in the amount of
approximately $27,000 was written off.

Other adjustments during the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 include estimated fair market value declines to
REO of approximately $8.9 million, offsets to the interest and other income recorded on the mortgage loans of
approximately $9.3 million and various other net positive adjustments approximating $1.7 million.

8.  DERIVATIVES

In conjunction with the March 2009 Restructuring, and at the request of the Bank, effective March 31, 2009, the
Company exercised its right to terminate two non-amortizing fixed-rate interest rate swaps with the Bank, with an
aggregate notional amount of $390 million.  The total termination fee for cancellation of the swaps was $8.2 million,
which prior to a release granted under the settlement agreement with the Bank on May 23, 2011, was payable only to
the extent cash became available under the waterfall provisions of the Legacy Credit Agreement, and only after the
outstanding balance of tranche A debt, owed to the Bank would have been paid in full.  The carrying value included in
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (AOCL) within stockholders’ equity related to the terminated hedges was
amortized to earnings over time.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company removed the hedge designations for its cash flow hedges.  As a result, the
Company continued to carry the December 31, 2008 balance related to these hedges in AOCL unless it became
probable that the forecasted cash flows would not occur.  The balance in AOCL was amortized to earnings as part of
interest expense in the same period or periods during which the hedged forecasted transaction affected earnings.
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At December 31, 2011, the Company had no interest rate swaps agreements in place.

Interest rate swaps increased interest expense for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 by $3.3
million.  Interest rate swaps increased interest expense for the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 by $13.3
million.  The estimated fair value of the swaps at December 31, 2010 was negative $4.9 million.

The net changes in the fair value of the Company’s derivatives, which are reflected in derivative liabilities, at fair
value, for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year $ (4,922,375) $ (13,144,591)

Cash settlements 4,922,375 12,352,189
Fair value adjustments - (4,129,973 )

Balance, end of year $ - $ (4,922,375 )

On January 25, 2011, the Bank declared an early termination of all remaining interest rate swaps due to a failure by
the Company to make payments due under the swap agreements with the Bank.  The Company’s failure to make these
payments was occasioned by insufficient funds available under the Legacy Credit Agreement with the Bank and its
participating banks as a direct result of the loss of cash flows attributable to the July, September and December 2010
loan sales by the Bank’s Trust and the suspension of dividends by its REIT.

On May 23, 2011, the Company entered into the Settlement Agreement with the Bank covering the full satisfaction of
indebtedness relating to all of the Company’s interest rate swaps totaling approximately $14.7 million.  Accordingly, in
the quarter ended June 30, 2011, the Company recorded a gain on the full satisfaction of indebtedness relating to all of
the interest rate swaps of $14.7 million consisting of the $8.2 million liability from the interest rate swap terminations
as part of the March 2009 Restructuring and the $6.5 million liability incurred from the January 2011 interest rate
swap termination.  See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

9.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, establishes a three-tier hierarchy for fair value
measurements based upon the transparency of the inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability and expands the
disclosures about instruments measured at fair value.  A financial instrument is categorized in its entirety and its
categorization within the hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.  The three levels are described below.

•Level 1 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active
markets.

•Level 2 – Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets
and inputs that are observable for the asset of liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of
the financial instrument.  Fair values for these instruments are estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of
securities with similar characteristics, or discounted cash flows.

•Level 3 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.  Fair
values are initially valued based upon transaction price and are adjusted to reflect exit values as evidenced by
financing and sale transactions with third parties.
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Fair values for certain investments (Level 3 assets) are determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow
methodologies or similar techniques and at least one significant model assumption or input is unobservable.

The changes in items classified as Level 3 during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 are as follows:

Investments Liabilities
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,505,978 $ (7,500,863)

Total recognized unrealized (losses)/gains (26,763 ) 899,787
Transfers in/(out) (1,479,215) 1,534,846
Trust distributions/payments - 5,066,230

Balance, end of year $ - $ -

The unrealized losses recognized in earnings during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, which were related
to the Investment in trust certificates, amounted to approximately $27,000.

10.  BUILDING, FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT, NET

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, building, furniture and equipment, net consisted of the following:

2011 2010
Building and improvements $ 2,180,827 $ 2,159,567
Furniture and equipment 1,707,925 1,681,855

3,888,752 3,841,422

Less accumulated depreciation    (3,118,879) (2,803,270)
$ 769,873 $ 1,038,152

At December 31, 2010, a certain portion of the Company’s office space was not being utilized and was marketed for
sublet.  At December 31, 2010, the remaining lease payments, net of the estimated sublet payments (based on the
Company’s estimate for subleasing the space), in the amount of $258,000 were accrued and non-usable leasehold
improvements in the amount of $110,000 were written off.

In April 2011, we entered into a sublease for approximately half of the under utilized office space (6,856 square feet)
for a term ending December 31, 2013 with a base rent of $158,000 annually, payable in monthly installments of
$13,000.  The remaining approximately 6,269 square feet of under-utilized office space continues to be marketed for
sublet.
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11.  NOTES PAYABLE

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had total borrowings, which consisted of Notes payable, of $846.9 million
under the Restructuring Agreements, of which $808.8 million (the Legacy Debt) was subject to the Company’s debt
restructured in the March 2009 Restructuring (the Legacy Credit Agreement) and $38.2 million remained under a
credit facility excluded from the Restructuring Agreements (referred to as the Unrestructured Debt).  Substantially all
of the debt under these facilities was incurred in connection with the Company’s purchase and origination of residential
1-4 family mortgage loans prior to December 2007.  We ceased to acquire and originate loans in November
2007.  The borrowings incurred under the Legacy Credit Agreement are shown in the Company’s Consolidated
Financial Statements as Notes payable (referred to as term loans, term debt or Total Debt herein).

The Legacy Credit Agreement expires on March 31, 2012.  Since the Company at December 31, 2011 is left
essentially without cash-flow generating assets available to service the outstanding principal balance of the Legacy
Debt, the Company will be unable to pay the principal balance of the Legacy Debt at the maturity of the Legacy
Credit Agreement on March 31, 2012, or the Unrestructured Debt that became due and payable in full as of September
30, 2011 and remains unpaid.

Due principally to the Bank’s REIT declaring and paying dividends for the third and fourth quarters of 2010 and for
the full year of 2011 on March 31, 2011 in the aggregate amount of $63.8 million, and the Settlement Agreement with
the Bank, a subsidiary of the Bank’s parent and the Bank’s lending participants covering the surrender and transfer of
the Company’s investment in preferred stock and common stock of the Bank’s REIT subsidiary (the REIT Securities),
the Company paid down tranche A debt during the year ended December 31, 2011 by the net amount of
approximately $533.0 million.  None of the dividends received or proceeds from the surrender of the REIT Securities
were applied by the Bank to pay interest due on the Legacy Debt (including on tranche A debt), which was added to
the debt balance outstanding.  During the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, approximately $49.2 million was
added to the outstanding balance of Legacy Debt due to interest accrued and unpaid.

As a result principally of the voluntary surrender and transfer to the Bank of the REIT Securities and the loan sales by
the Bank’s Trust in the quarters ended September 30 and December 31, 2010, the Company’s remaining available
sources of cash flow to be applied to pay interest and principal on the Legacy Debt are from its Investment in trust
certificates at fair value (which at December 31, 2011, was supported by a very small pool of real estate owned
properties held by the Trust) and 50% of the loans and real estate owned properties that comprise the Notes receivable
held for sale, net.  The loans and real estate owned properties that comprise the Notes receivable held for sale
collateralize the Unrestructured Debt
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Restructuring Agreements with Lead Lending Bank

Settlement Agreement with the Bank, Surrender of the Company’s Investment in Preferred and Common Stock of the
Bank’s REIT and Termination of Interest Rate Swap Agreements.  On May 23, 2011, the Company entered into a
settlement agreement (the Settlement Agreement) with the Bank, a subsidiary of the Bank’s parent, and the Bank’s
lending participants covering the surrender and transfer of the Company’s investment in preferred stock and common
stock of the Bank’s REIT subsidiary (the REIT Securities) held by the Company, (and pledged as collateral under the
Legacy Credit Agreement), and the early termination of all remaining interest rate swaps, in exchange for:

•     a waiver of the alleged default under the Company’s Legacy Credit Agreement that the Company had failed to
make certain payments required under certain interest rate hedge agreements (the Interest Rate Swaps) with the
Bank (the Specified Default);

•     a reduction of the outstanding balance of the Bank’s portion of tranche A debt in the amount of $478 million;

•     full satisfaction of indebtedness relating to the Interest Rate Swaps totaling approximately $14.7 million;

•     an amendment to the Legacy Credit Agreement and associated pledge agreement (as described below);

•     a discharge of the limited recourse guarantee of Franklin Holding under the Legacy Credit Agreement;

•   an amendment to the credit facility of Franklin Holding and its mortgage servicing subsidiary, Franklin Credit
Management Corporation (FCMC), dated as of March 2009, as amended (the Licensing Credit Agreement) (as
described below); and,

•     a comprehensive release of claims by the Company in favor of the Bank and its lending participants.

As a result of the full satisfaction of indebtedness relating to the Interest Rate Swaps, the Company recognized a gain
on the settlement of the swap liability totaling approximately $14.7 million in the three months ended June 30, 2011.

Contemporaneously with the execution of the Settlement Agreement, the Company entered into the agreements
described below.

Legacy Credit Agreement.  The Legacy Credit Agreement was amended to (i) delete Franklin Holding as a guarantor,
(ii) waive the Specified Default, and (iii) permit the transfer to Franklin Holding of assets, amounting principally to
approximately $370,000 in cash, of an inactive limited purpose wholly-owned subsidiary, and the subsequent
dissolution of that subsidiary.

The pledge agreement between Franklin Holding and the Bank dated March 31, 2009, as amended, which was entered
into in connection with the Legacy Credit Agreement (the “Pledge Agreement”), was further amended to release the
equity interest in the limited purpose wholly-owned subsidiary that had been pledged by Franklin Holding to the
Bank.  However, Franklin Holding remains a pledgor, other than with respect to the interests of the limited purpose
wholly-owned subsidiary, under the Pledge Agreement (which includes a pledge of 100% of the equity interests in all
direct and indirect subsidiaries of Franklin Holding other than FCMC).
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The limited recourse guarantee between Franklin Holding and the Bank dated March 31, 2009, which was entered into
in connection with the Legacy Credit Agreement, was released, cancelled and discharged.

Licensing Credit Agreement.  The term of the Licensing Credit Agreement among Franklin Holding, FCMC and the
Bank and its participating lenders, dated March 31, 2009, as amended, which provides for a $1 million line of credit
and $6.5 million letter of credit facility, was extended to September 30, 2012, and the financial covenant that Franklin
Holding and FCMC maintain a minimum amount of net income before taxes was deleted.

Expired Forbearance Agreement with the Bank.  Prior to the agreements entered into with the Bank in connection with
the March 31, 2009 restructuring (the Restructuring Agreements), our indebtedness was governed by forbearance
agreements and prior credit agreements with the Bank.  Effective as of March 31, 2009, all of our borrowings, with
the exception of the current amount of $38.2 million (referred to as the Unrestructured Debt), are governed by credit
agreements entered into as part of the Restructuring Agreements.  The Unrestructured Debt, which was due and
payable as of September 30, 2011 under the Company’s 2004 master credit agreement with the Bank, was subject to
the original terms of the forbearance agreements entered into with the Bank in December 2007 and subsequent
amendments thereto until the expiration pursuant to their terms on September 30, 2011.  In connection with the
Restructuring Agreements, certain of the forbearance agreements to which subsidiaries of Franklin Holding were
parties were collapsed into the Legacy Credit Agreement (as defined below) while the forbearance agreement
covering the Unrestructured Debt (the “Forbearance Agreement”) remained in place.  Although the Bank under the
Forbearance Agreement had agreed not to exercise certain rights available to it due to the defaults under the 2004
master credit agreement governing the Unrestructured Debt, such restrictions are no longer effective since the
Forbearance Agreement has now expired.

Due to the previously existing defaults under the 2004 master credit agreement and expiration of the forbearance
period with respect to the Bank’s rights and remedies under that credit agreement, the Bank, with notice, has the right
to call an event of default under the Legacy Credit Agreement with the Bank and its participating banks, dated as of
March 31, 2009, as amended, but not the Licensing Credit Agreement between Franklin Holding and FCMC, on one
hand, and the Bank and its participating lenders, on the other hand, dated March 31, 2009, as amended, which does
not include cross-default provisions that would be triggered by such an event of default under the Legacy Credit
Agreement.  The Bank’s recourse in respect of the Legacy Credit Agreement is limited to the assets and stock of
Franklin Holding’s subsidiaries, excluding the assets and stock of FCMC (except for a second-priority lien of the Bank
on $7.5 million of cash collateral held as security under the Licensing Credit Agreement).  The Bank has not exercised
the rights and remedies available to it with respect to the Unrestructured Debt.

FCMC is not obligated to the Bank with respect to the Unrestructured Debt and any references to FCMC in the
Company’s 2004 master credit agreement governing the Unrestructured Debt were amended to refer to Franklin Credit
Asset Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Franklin Holding (“Franklin Asset”).

The Bank, which holds legal title to the commercial loans governing the Unrestructured Debt, has through
participation agreements transferred 100% of the beneficial interest in the commercial loans to two parties, each
holding a 50% beneficial interest in the commercial loans.  One of the participants is Bosco III, a related party in
which 50% of the membership interests in said entity are held by Thomas J. Axon, the Company’s Chairman and
President.
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December Sale of Remaining Loans and Participation Interest in Unrestructured Debt with the Bank

In December 2010 (the December Loan Sale), Bosco III, which is owned 50% by the Company’s Chairman and
President, Thomas J. Axon, purchased $174 million of principally charge-off first and subordinate-lien loans sold by
the Trust, which were the remaining loans (other than real estate owned properties) held by the Bank’s Trust, and also
purchased from the Bank a 50% participation interest in each of the commercial loans to the Company covering that
portion of the Company’s debt (the Unrestructured Debt) with the Bank (see Forbearance Agreements with Lead
Lending Bank described below).

As of December 31, 2011, the Unrestructured Debt totaled approximately $38.2 million and is secured by
approximately 622 loans, for which FCMC is the loan servicer, and certain Company entities are the beneficial
owners.  The Unrestructured Debt is subject to the original terms of the Company’s forbearance agreement with the
Bank, as amended, which expired on September 30, 2011, and the Company’s 2004 master credit agreement with the
Bank.

In conjunction with the December Loan Sale, FCMC entered into a servicing agreement with Bosco III for the
servicing and collection of approximately $174 million of loans purchased by Bosco III of principally charge-off first
and subordinate-lien loans sold by the Trust and the Bank, which were the remaining loans (other than real estate
owned properties, the servicing of which has been terminated by the Bank effective March 24, 2011) held by the
Bank’s Trust.  FCMC’s services may be terminated with respect to some or all of the assets without cause and without
penalty on 30 days prior written notice.

FCMC also has one servicing contract with certain Company entities for the loans collateralizing the Unrestructured
Debt.

September 2010 Transaction

September 16, 2010 Agreement. On September 16, 2010, FCHC and its subsidiary, FCMC, entered into an agreement
with the Bank, the Bank’s Trust, Thomas J. Axon, the Chairman and President of FCHC and FCMC and Bosco II, an
entity of which Mr. Axon is the sole member.

The agreement was entered into in connection with discussions regarding the then proposed sale to Bosco II (with
approximately 95% of the funds provided by a third-party lender) of all of the subordinate-lien consumer loans (the
“Subordinate Consumer Loans”) owned by the Trust and serviced by FCMC under an amended and restated servicing
agreement dated as of August 1, 2010 (the “Servicing Agreement”).  The conditions and transactions contemplated by
the agreement, including the sale of the Subordinate Consumer Loans (the September Loan Sale) were consummated
on September 22, 2010.
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It was agreed that contemporaneously with the consummation of the September Loan Sale, and after obtaining the
requisite agreement of syndicate members under the Legacy Credit Agreement, FCHC’s pledge of 70% of the
outstanding shares of FCMC as security for the Legacy Credit Agreement would be released, in consideration of and
subject to:

•     receipt of $4 million in cash at closing from FCMC to be applied to the amounts outstanding under the Legacy
Credit Agreement;

•   payment by Bosco II to the Trust of approximately $650,000 as additional payment for the September Loan Sale,
an amount equal to the servicing fees paid by the Trust to FCMC for FCMC’s servicing of the Trust’s portfolio
during August 2010;

• FCMC and Mr. Axon entering into an agreement (the “Deferred Payment Agreement”) providing that upon each
monetizing transaction, dividend or distribution (other than the sale, restructuring or spinoff of FCMC (each
referred to as the “Proposed Restructuring”)) prior to March 20, 2019, they will be obligated to pay the lenders under
the Legacy Credit Agreement 10% of the aggregate value of qualifying transactions (as defined in the agreement),
in excess of a threshold of $4 million of consideration in respect of such transactions; and,

•   the cash payment of $1 million by FCMC to release the mortgages on certain office and residential condominium
units owned by FCMC (the “Real Estate”) pledged to the Bank under the Legacy Credit Agreement and the
Licensing Credit Agreement (the “Real Estate Release Payment”); provided, however, that if by the closing of the
September Loan Sale and the Proposed Restructuring, FCMC is unable to make such payment, FCMC will deliver
in lieu of such cash payment a $1 million note payable on November 22, 2010, guaranteed by Mr. Axon’s
note.  FCMC made the $1 million payment to the Bank prior to November 22, 2010, and the Bank released the
Real Estate.

The Bank also agreed that, in consideration of its receipt of the above items and either the Real Estate Release
Payment or delivery of Mr. Axon’s note upon closing, the EBITDA Payment described in the July 2010 Transaction
among FCHC, FCMC, Mr. Axon, the Bank and the Trust would be waived.

Additionally, the agreement provided that:

•   the Trust will consent under the Servicing Agreement with FCMC to the change of control of FCMC resulting
from the Proposed Restructuring and agree to eliminate any cross-default provisions in the Servicing Agreement
relating to defaults under the Legacy Credit Agreement;

•   the Bank and the requisite lenders will consent under the Legacy Credit Agreement to the change of control of
FCMC resulting from the Proposed Restructuring and agree to waive any related defaults and amend the definition
of Collateral and certain FCMC-related restrictive covenants; and,

•  FCMC and the Bank will amend the Licensing Credit Agreement to permit a change of control of FCMC resulting
from the Proposed Restructuring and agree to eliminate any cross-default provisions relating to defaults under the
Legacy Credit Agreement and extend the letter of credit facility and the revolving facility under the Licensing
Credit Agreement to September 30, 2011.  The Licensing Credit Agreement has been further extended by the Bank
on May 23, 2011 to September 30, 2012.
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In the agreement, FCMC also waived any additional notice of the termination of the Servicing Agreement with respect
to the Subordinate Consumer Loans, and any fees or other amounts in respect thereof with respect to any period from
and after the closing of the September Loan Sale.

In consideration of Mr. Axon’s undertaking the obligations required of him under the agreement, and various
guarantees and concessions previously provided by Mr. Axon for the Company’s benefit, the Company’s Audit
Committee agreed, subject to specific terms to be negotiated with the Company and Mr. Axon, to the transfer to Mr.
Axon of a number of shares of FCMC common stock currently held by FCHC representing 10% of FCMC’s
outstanding shares, effective upon the closing of the September Loan Sale and the release of FCHC’s pledge of 70% of
the outstanding shares of FCMC as security for the Legacy Credit Agreement.

September 22, 2010 Implementing Agreements. On September 22, 2010, FCHC and FCMC entered into various
agreements implementing the transactions contemplated by the September 16, 2010 agreement (the “Implementing
Agreements” or the “September 2010 Transaction”).  On September 22, 2010, the letter agreement was superseded by the
execution and delivery of an agreement, in a form and under terms substantially similar to the letter agreement, to
implement the terms and conditions agreed to under the letter agreement.

Deferred Payment Agreement.  On September 22, 2010, FCMC entered into the Deferred Payment Agreement with
the Bank, in its capacity as Administrative Agent under the Legacy Credit Agreement, and Mr. Axon.

The Deferred Payment Agreement has a term expiring on March 20, 2019, and provides that FCMC will pay to the
Bank in respect of a qualifying transaction consummated during the term of the agreement an amount equal to ten
percent of the aggregate value of the qualifying transaction minus $4 million.

Qualifying transactions, which do not include the Proposed Restructuring, would include transactions or series or
combinations of related transactions involving any of:

•  sale of all or a portion of the assets (an “Asset Sale”) or the capital stock (a “Stock Sale”) of FCMC, whether any such
sale is effected by FCMC, Mr. Axon, its then-current owners if such owners sell 30% or more of the fully diluted
outstanding equity securities of FCMC, a third party or any combination of any of the foregoing;

•  any exchange or tender offer, merger, consolidation or other business combination involving FCMC;

•  any recapitalization, reorganization, restructuring or any other similar transaction including, without limitation,
negotiated repurchases of FCMC’s securities, an issuer tender offer, a dividend or distribution, or a spinoff or
split-off involving FCMC; and,

•  any liquidation or winding-down of FCMC, whether by FCMC, its then-current owners, a third party or any
combination of any of the foregoing.

Qualifying transactions specifically exclude:

•  the issuance of shares under FCMC’s equity compensation plans to the extent that those issuances do not exceed 7%
of the fully diluted outstanding securities of FCMC during the term of the Deferred Payment Agreement; and,

•  the sale, restructuring or spinoff, which is subject to the Bank’s prior approval, by the Company of its ownership
interests in FCMC.
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In the event of a qualifying transaction, the aggregate value of the transaction will be:

•  in the case of a Stock Sale, the total consideration paid or payable to equity holders, or FCMC in the case of a new
issuance.  If a Stock Sale involves the acquisition of a majority of the fully diluted outstanding equity shares of
FCMC, the total consideration will also include additional amounts reflecting FCMC’s indebtedness for borrowed
money, net pension liabilities, to the extent they are under-funded and deferred compensation liabilities, and be
grossed up to the amount that would have been paid if all of the outstanding equity securities were acquired for the
same per share consideration as that ascribed to the shares actually acquired; and,

•  in the case of an Asset Sale, the total consideration paid or payable for the assets.  If an Asset Sale involves the sale
of a material portion of the assets or business of FCMC, the total consideration will also include any assumed debt
(including capitalized leases and repayment obligations under letters of credit), pension liabilities assumed, to the
extent they are under funded, and deferred compensation liabilities assumed, the net book value of net current
assets retained by FCMC and the fair market value of any other retained assets.

In any qualifying transaction, the aggregate value of the transaction will also include:

•  consideration paid or payable to FCMC and its equity holders in connection with the qualifying transaction for
covenants not to compete and management or consulting arrangements (excluding reasonable salaries or wages
payable under bona fide arrangements for actual services);

•  dividends or distributions declared, and payments by FCMC to repurchase outstanding equity securities, in either
event, after the date of the Deferred Payment Agreement; and,

•  in any qualifying transaction, amounts payable pursuant to any earn out, royalty or similar arrangement will be
included in the aggregate value of the transaction.  If such amounts are contingent, the deferred payment in respect
of the contingent amounts will be paid at the time the contingency is realized, provided that amounts payable
pursuant to notes or an escrow arrangement will not be treated as contingent.

Additionally, pursuant to the Deferred Payment Agreement, Mr. Axon guaranteed prompt and full payment to the
Bank of each required deferred payment when due.

Amendment to Legacy Credit Agreement.  On September 22, 2010, subsidiaries of FCHC (other than FCMC) entered
into an amendment to the Legacy Credit Agreement with the Bank.  Various definitions, terms and FCMC-related
covenants were amended to permit a change of control of FCMC as part of the Proposed Restructuring, to effectuate
the release of the equity interests of FCHC in FCMC and the release of the Real Estate, and to add the Deferred
Payment Agreement as collateral under the Legacy Credit Agreement.

On September 22, 2010, the limited recourse guarantee of FCMC under the Legacy Credit Agreement was released,
cancelled and discharged by the Bank.  On September 22, 2010, FCHC and the Bank entered into a first amendment to
the limited recourse guaranty and first amendment to amended and restated pledge agreements of FCHC under the
Legacy Credit Agreement, which eliminated any reference to the equity interests in FCMC of FCHC.

F-33

Edgar Filing: FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORP/DE/ - Form 10-K

174



Amendment to Licensing Credit Agreement.  On September 22, 2010, FCHC and FCMC entered into an amendment
to the Licensing Credit Agreement with the Bank.  Various definitions, terms and FCMC-related covenants were
amended to permit a change of control of FCMC as part of the Proposed Restructuring, to effectuate the release of the
Real Estate, eliminate any cross defaults resulting from any default under the Legacy Credit Agreement; permit
incurrence of liabilities for indebtedness subject to the prior written consent of the Bank, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed; and, eliminate the provision that FCMC shall, to the extent permitted by applicable
law, no less frequently than semi-annually, within forty-five days after each June 30th and December 31st of each
calendar year, make pro rata dividends, distributions and payments to FCMC’s shareholders and the Bank under the
Legacy Credit Agreement.  In addition the Licensing Credit Agreement and the revolving loan and credit facilities
thereunder were extended to September 30, 2011.  On May 23, 2011, the Licensing Credit Agreement was further
extended by the Bank to September 30, 2012.

Amendment to Servicing Agreement with the Bank.  On September 22, 2010, the Servicing Agreement was amended
to eliminate any cross-default provisions resulting from any default under the Legacy Credit Agreement.

EBIDTA Payment.  On September 22, 2010, the Bank cancelled and terminated the obligations to make any EBITDA
payments under the July 2010 Transaction.

Servicing Agreement with Bosco II.  On September 22, 2010, FCMC entered into a servicing agreement with Bosco II
for the servicing and collection of approximately 20,000 loans purchased by Bosco II from the Trust (the “Bosco II
Servicing Agreement”).  Pursuant to the Bosco II Servicing Agreement, FCMC services the loans generally subject to
customary terms, conditions and servicing practices for the mortgage servicing industry.  The Bosco II Servicing
Agreement may be terminated without cause and penalty upon thirty days prior written notice.  See Note 18 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

July 2010 Transaction

On July 16, 2010, FCHC and its servicing business subsidiary, FCMC, entered into a letter agreement (the “Letter
Agreement”) with the Bank, Franklin Mortgage Asset Trust 2009-A, an indirect subsidiary of the Bank (the Trust) and,
for certain limited purposes, Mr. Axon.  The Letter Agreement was entered into in connection with and in anticipation
of the Trust’s then-proposed sale to a third party, on a servicing-released basis (the July Loan Sale), of substantially all
of the first-lien residential mortgage loans serviced by FCMC under the servicing agreement by and among the Trust
and FCMC dated March 31, 2009 (the Legacy Servicing Agreement).

The July Loan Sale, effective July 1, 2010, closed on July 20, 2010 (the “July Loan Sale Closing Date”) and, on July 20,
2010, the July Loan Sale purchaser (the “Purchaser”) entered into a loan servicing agreement with FCMC (the “Loan Sale
Servicing Agreement”), pursuant to which FCMC services approximately 75% of the first-lien residential mortgage
loans acquired by Purchaser in the July Loan Sale (effective October 1, 2010, 25% of the loans acquired were
transferred by the Purchaser to its affiliate, which was an event that had been planned by the Purchaser at
acquisition).  Approximately 3,300 residential mortgage loans, consisting principally of first-lien mortgage loans,
were included in the July Loan Sale.

The Letter Agreement included terms amending, or committing the Bank, FCMC, the Company, and related parties to
amend certain of the March 2009 Restructuring Agreements entered into in connection with the Company’s
Restructuring with the Bank on March 31, 2009, including the existing relationships under the Legacy Servicing
Agreement, the Legacy Credit Agreement, and the Licensing Credit Agreement, and FCMC to commit to make
certain payments to the Bank.  Additionally, the Letter Agreement set forth certain mutual commitments of the parties
with respect to the Company’s consideration of a restructuring or spinoff of its ownership of FCMC (a Potential
Restructuring), as well as certain guaranties of Mr. Axon, the Chairman and President of the Company and FCMC.
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Letter Agreement with the Bank. Under the Letter Agreement with the Bank:

•  FCMC made a $1 million payment to the Bank as reimbursement for certain expenses of the Bank in connection
with the July Loan Sale;

•   FCMC released all claims under the Legacy Servicing Agreement as of the loan sale date (other than those for
unpaid servicing advances for services incurred prior to June 30, 2010) with respect to the loans sold in the July
Loan Sale;

•   FCMC refunded to the Trust an estimated $400,000 for servicing fees paid in advance to FCMC under the Legacy
Servicing Agreement in respect of July 2010 to the extent attributable to the loans sold in the July Loan Sale;

•   the Legacy Servicing Agreement was terminated as to the loans sold, except with respect to FCMC’s obligations to
assist in curing documentary issues or deficiencies relating to the loans sold; and,

•   FCMC and the Trust entered into the New Trust Servicing Agreement on July 30, 2010 and effective August 1,
2010, relating to the servicing of the loans and real estate properties previously serviced under the Legacy
Servicing Agreement, other than those sold in the July Loan Sale (see below).

On the July Loan Sale Closing Date, the Company and FCMC entered into Amendment No. 2 to the Licensing Credit
Agreement with the Bank and an affiliate of the Bank, Huntington Finance, LLC (“Amendment No. 2”).

Amendment No. 2 to the Licensing Credit Agreement with the Bank.  Under Amendment No. 2 to the Licensing
Credit Agreement with the Bank:

•     FCMC used $1 million in unpledged cash to repay the amount outstanding under its revolving line of credit with
the Bank; and,

•   available credit under the revolving loan facility was reduced from $2 million to $1 million and the cash collateral,
which was required to secure the revolving loan and letter of credit facilities, was reduced from $8.5 million to
$7.5 million, with the released collateral applied as a voluntary payment against the debt outstanding of certain
subsidiaries of the Company under the Legacy Credit Agreement.
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Loan Sale Servicing Agreement with Purchaser.  On July 20, 2010, but effective as of July 1, 2010, FCMC entered
into a loan servicing agreement with the third-party Purchaser, pursuant to which FCMC services the loans acquired
by the Purchaser in the July Loan Sale.  The Purchaser, which is now the second largest servicing client of FCMC, has
the right to terminate the servicing of any of such loans without cause upon ninety (90) calendar days prior written
notice, subject to the payment of a termination fee for each such loan terminated.  Pursuant to the Loan Sale Servicing
Agreement, FCMC services the loans subject to customary terms, conditions and servicing practices for the mortgage
servicing industry.

Effective October 1, 2010, the Purchaser exercised its right to terminate the servicing of approximately 25% of the
loans acquired by the Purchaser in the July Loan Sale (based on unpaid principal balance).

Potential Restructuring.  In the July 2010 Transaction, which was amended and modified in part by the September
2010 Transaction described above, the parties agreed that in connection with a potential restructuring (the Potential
Restructuring), if the Potential Restructuring is acceptable to the Bank and the required lenders, in each party’s sole
discretion, and the Potential Restructuring does not result in material tax, legal, regulatory, or accounting impediments
or issues for Franklin Holding or FCMC, then:

•   the Bank would use its reasonable efforts to assist Franklin Holding and FCMC in connection with such Potential
Restructuring in obtaining the approval of the required lenders for the Potential Restructuring and consent to any
change of control in connection with the Potential Restructuring to the extent required under the Legacy Credit
Agreement, and FCMC or Franklin Holding would reimburse and hold the Bank and the required lenders harmless
from any reasonable expense incurred by them in connection with any such Potential Restructuring;

•   FCMC would make semi-annual payments to the Bank under the Legacy Credit Agreement (the “EBITDA
Payment”) equal to (i) 50% of FCMC’s earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”), in
accordance with GAAP, for each period for the first 18 months from the July Loan Sale Closing Date, and (ii) 70%
of FCMC’s GAAP EBITDA for each period thereafter, up to a maximum aggregate of $3 million.  The EBITDA
Payment obligation, which was never triggered, was terminated and cancelled pursuant to the September 2010
Transaction;

•   Thomas J. Axon’s existing personal guaranty to the Bank would be extended to the EBITDA Payment pursuant to
an amendment to the guarantee, which will also provide that to the extent that the EBITDA Payment in respect of
any period is less than $500,000, Mr. Axon will pay such shortfall.  Mr. Axon’s obligations pursuant to the
guaranty would be secured and continue to be secured by the collateral he had pledged to the Bank on March 31,
2009; and,

•   any payments by FCMC or Mr. Axon in respect of the EBITDA Payment would go to reduce the obligation of the
other in respect of the obligations to make such payment, or the guaranty in respect of such payment, as the case
may be; and, any payments in respect of the EBITDA Payments, and application of payments to the Bank in
respect of distributions by FCMC to its stockholders, would each serve as a credit against the other, which could
have the effect of reducing the impact of the $3 million maximum amount of the EBITDA Payments otherwise
payable as described above.  (These obligations, which were never triggered, were terminated and cancelled, and
Mr. Axon’s collateral has been released by the Bank, pursuant to the September 2010 Transaction.)

New Trust Servicing Agreement.  On July 30, 2010, FCMC entered into a servicing agreement for the loans and real
estate properties not sold by the Trust, effective August 1, 2010, with the Trust to replace the Legacy Servicing
Agreement (the “New Trust Servicing Agreement”) that had been entered into with the Trust as part of the Company’s
March 31, 2009 Restructuring with the Bank.
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March 2009 Restructuring

On March 31, 2009, Franklin Holding, and certain of its direct and indirect subsidiaries, including Franklin Credit
Management Corporation, entered into the Restructuring Agreements with the Bank, successor by merger to Sky
Bank, pursuant to which the Company’s loans, pledges and guarantees with the Bank and its participating banks were
substantially restructured, and approximately 83% of the Portfolio was transferred to the Bank’s REIT.

The Restructuring did not include the Unrestructured Debt portion of the Company’s debt, which is due and payable in
full as of September 30, 2011 under the Company’s defaulted 2004 master credit agreement with Huntington, and as of
December 31, 2011 remains unpaid and totals approximately $38.2 million.  The Unrestructured Debt had been
subject to a forbearance agreement, which expired on September 30, 2011 without further extension.

Restructuring Agreements.  In connection with the March 2009 Restructuring, the Company and its subsidiaries:

1.  Transferred substantially the entire Portfolio in exchange for the REIT Securities.

Pursuant to the terms of a Transfer and Assignment Agreement, certain subsidiaries of the Company (the “Franklin
Transferring Entities”) transferred the Portfolio to a newly formed Delaware statutory trust (the “Trust”) in exchange for
the following trust certificates (collectively, the “Trust Certificates”):

(a)  an undivided 100% interest of the Bank’s portion of consumer mortgage loans (the “Bank Consumer Loan
Certificate”);

(b)  an undivided 100% interest in the Bank’s portion of consumer REO assets (the “Bank Consumer REO Certificate,”
and together with the Bank Consumer Loan Certificate, the “Bank Trust Certificates”);

(c)  an undivided 100% interest in the portion of consumer mortgage loan assets allocated to Marshall & Ilsley Bank
(“M&I”) and BOS (USA) Inc. (“BOS”) (M&I and BOS collectively, the “Participants”) represented by two certificates
(the “Participants Consumer Loan Certificates”); and,

(d)  an undivided 100% interest in Participants’ portion of the consumer REO assets represented by two certificates
(the “Participants Consumer REO Certificates,” and together with the Participants Consumer Loan Certificate, the
“Participants Trust Certificates”).

The Bank Trust Certificates represented approximately 83.27961% of the assets transferred to the Trust considered in
the aggregate (such portion, the “Bank Contributed Assets”) and the Participants Trust Certificates represented
approximately 16.72039% of the assets transferred to the Trust considered in the aggregate.  Substantially all of the
assets were sold by the Trust to third parties in the July and September Loan Sales.

F-37

Edgar Filing: FRANKLIN CREDIT HOLDING CORP/DE/ - Form 10-K

180



Pursuant to the Transfer and Assignment Agreement, the Franklin transferring entities made certain representations,
warranties and covenants to the Trust related to the Portfolio.  To the extent any Franklin transferring entity breaches
any such representations, warranties and covenants and the Franklin transferring entities are unable to cure such
breach, the Trust has recourse against the Franklin transferring entities (provided that recourse to FCMC is limited
solely to instances whereby FCMC transferred REO property FCMC did not own) (the “Reacquisition Parties”).  In such
instances, the Reacquisition Parties are obligated to repurchase any mortgage loan or REO property and indemnify the
Trust, the Bank, the Administrator (as defined below), the holders of the Trust Certificates and the trustees to the trust
agreement.  The Franklin transferring entities provided representations and warranties, including but not limited to
correct information, loans have not been modified, loans are in force, valid lien, compliance with laws, licensing,
enforceability of the mortgage loans, hazardous substances, fraud, and insurance coverage.  In addition, the Franklin
transferring entities agreed to provide certain collateral documents for each mortgage loan and REO property
transferred (except to the extent any collateral deficiency was disclosed to the Trust).  To the extent any collateral
deficiency exists with respect to such mortgage loan or REO property and the Franklin transferring entities do not cure
such deficiency, the Reacquisition Parties shall be obligated to repurchase such mortgage loan.  In connection with the
reacquisition of any asset, the price to be paid by the Reacquisition Parties for such asset (the “Reacquisition Price”)
shall be as agreed upon by the Administrator and the applicable Reacquisition Party; provided, however, should such
parties not promptly come to agreement, the Reacquisition Price shall be as determined by the Administrator in good
faith using its sole discretion.

The subsidiaries then transferred the Trust Certificates to a newly formed Delaware limited liability company,
Franklin Asset, LLC, in exchange for membership interests in Franklin Asset, LLC.  Franklin Asset, LLC then
contributed the Bank Trust Certificates to a newly formed Delaware limited liability company, Franklin Asset Merger
Sub, LLC, in exchange for membership interests in Franklin Asset Merger Sub, LLC (Franklin Asset, LLC retained
the Participant Trust Certificates).  Franklin Merger Sub, LLC merged with and into a Huntington National Bank
wholly-owned subsidiary of the REIT (“REIT Sub”) and Franklin Asset, LLC received the REIT Securities having in
the aggregate a value equal to the estimated fair market value of the loans underlying the Bank Trust Certificates,
which as of March 31, 2009 was approximately $477.3 million, in exchange for its membership interests in Franklin
Asset Merger Sub, LLC.  The preferred REIT Securities have a liquidation value of $100,000 per unit and an annual
cumulative dividend rate of 9% of such liquidation value.  If there is a reacquisition required to be made by the
Reacquisition Parties under the Transfer and Assignment Agreement, Franklin Asset, LLC will return such number of
Class C Preferred Shares of REIT Securities that is equal in value to the Reacquisition Price (as defined in the
Transfer and Assignment Agreement).

2.  Amended and restated substantially all of its outstanding debt.

Pursuant to the terms of the Legacy Credit Agreement, which matures on March 31, 2012, the Company amended and
restated substantially all of its indebtedness subject to forbearance agreements dated December 19, 2008 (the
“Forbearance Agreements”).  As more fully described below, pursuant to the terms of the Legacy Credit Agreement, (1)
the Participant Trust Certificates were collaterally assigned to the Bank as collateral for the loans as modified pursuant
to the terms of the Legacy Credit Agreement (the “Restructured Loans”); (2) all net collections received by the Trust in
connection with the portion of the Portfolio represented by the Bank Trust Certificates are to be paid to the REIT Sub
or its subsidiaries; (3) the REIT Securities were pledged to the Bank as collateral for the Restructured Loans; (4)
Franklin Holding pledged seventy percent (70%) of the common equity in FCMC to the Bank as collateral for the
Restructured Loans (which was released pursuant to the September 2010 Transaction); and (5) Franklin Holding and
FCMC were released from existing guarantees of the Restructured Loans, including Franklin Holding’s pledge of
100% of the outstanding shares of FCMC.  In exchange, Franklin Holding and FCMC provided certain limited
recourse guarantees relating to the Restructured Loans, wherein the Bank agreed to exercise only limited recourse
against property encumbered by the pledge agreement (the “Pledged Collateral”) made in connection with the Legacy
Credit Agreement, provided Franklin Holding and FCMC, respectively, any designee acting under the authority
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thereof or any subsidiary of either Franklin Holding or FCMC did not (i) commission any act fraud or material
misrepresentation in respect of the Pledged Collateral; (ii) divert, embezzle or misapply proceeds, funds or money
and/or other property relating in any way to the Pledged Collateral; (iii) breach any covenant under Article IV of the
Pledge Agreement entered into by Franklin Holding; or (iv) conduct any business activities to perform diligence
services, to service mortgage Loans or REO Properties or any related activities, directly or indirectly, other than by
FCMC and Franklin Credit Loan Servicing, LLC (all of which are referred to as exceptions to nonrecourse).  On
September 22, 2010 and May 23, 2011, the limited recourse guarantees of FCMC and FCHC, respectively, were
released, cancelled and discharged.
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The terms of the Legacy Credit Agreement vary according to the three tranches of loans covered by the Legacy Credit
Agreement.  At March 31, 2009, Tranche A included outstanding debt in the approximate principal sum of $837.9
million bearing interest at a per annum rate equal to 1-month LIBOR plus 2.25% per annum, payable monthly in
arrears on the outstanding principal balance of the related advances; Tranche B included outstanding debt in the
approximate principal sum of $407.5 million bearing interest at a per annum rate equal to 1-month LIBOR plus 2.75%
per annum, payable monthly in arrears on the outstanding principal balance of the related advances; and, Tranche C
included outstanding debt in the approximate principal sum of $125 million bearing interest at a per annum rate equal
to 15%, payable monthly in arrears on the outstanding principal balance of the related advances.  In the event of a
default, the applicable interest rate increases to 5% over the rate otherwise applicable to the respective tranche.

Terms of the Restructured Indebtedness under the Legacy Credit Agreement.  The following table summarizes the
principal economic terms of the Company’s indebtedness under the Legacy Credit Agreement and the Forbearance
Agreement.

Outstanding
Principal Amount
at March 31, 2009 –

Franklin
Asset/Tribeca

Outstanding
Principal Amount
at December 31,
2011 – Franklin
Asset/Tribeca

Applicable
Interest

Margin Over
LIBOR
(basis
points)

Required
Monthly
Principal

Amortization
Tranche A $ 838,000,000 $ 176,000,000 225 None
Tranche B $ 407,000,000 $ 443,000,000 275 None
Tranche C $ 125,000,000 $ 190,000,000 N/A (1) None

Unrestructured Debt $ 41,000,000 $ 38,000,000 (2) None
__________________

(1)  The applicable interest rate is fixed at 15% per annum.  Interest will be paid in kind during the term of the
Restructuring.

(2)  Interest margin over FHLB 30-day LIBOR advance rate plus 2.60%-2.75%.

The interest rate under the terms of the March 2009 Restructuring Agreements for Tranche A and Tranche B
indebtedness that is the basis, or index, for the Company’s interest cost is the 1-month LIBOR plus applicable
margins.  In accordance with the terms of the Restructuring Agreements, interest due and unpaid on Tranche A,
Tranche B and Tranche C debt are accrued and added to the debt balance.

All cash available for each tranche shall be used to pay cash interest to the extent cash is available, and any accrued
interest for which cash is not available will be added to the principal sum of such tranche.  Cash payments on each
tranche will be made from: (i) any cash or other assets of the borrowers (Tribeca and certain subsidiaries of Tribeca
and Franklin Asset), (ii) dividends and distributions on the REIT Securities (which were surrendered on May 23,
2011), all of which shall be applied as a non pro rata distribution solely to the Bank’s pro rata share of such tranche
(until paid in full), (iii) all distributions made by the Trust on the Participant Trust Certificates, all of which shall be
applied as a non pro rata distribution to the Participants’ pro rata shares of such tranche (until paid in full), and (iv)
from any proceeds received from any other collateral, which will be applied pursuant to a waterfall provision
described more fully in the Legacy Credit Agreement.  The borrowers will not be required to make scheduled
principal payments, provided that all amounts received by any borrower in excess of accrued interest, whether from
collateral or otherwise, shall be applied to reduce the principal sum.
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All remaining principal and interest is due and payable at maturity of the Legacy Credit Agreement on March 31,
2012.  Based on the remaining assets, as c described above, the Company will not be able to repay the remaining
principal and interest due on March 31, 2012.  Under such circumstances, the Bank would have all available rights
and remedies under the Legacy Credit Agreement.

In accordance with the terms of the Legacy Credit Agreement, during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011,
the outstanding balance of Tranche B debt increased from $430.1 million to $443.3 million and the outstanding
balance of Tranche C debt increased from $162.9 million to $189.5 million, due to the addition of accrued interest for
which cash was not available to pay the interest due.  Notwithstanding the increases in Tranche B and Tranche C debt
during the year ended December 31, 2011, the total balance of debt outstanding under the Legacy Credit Agreement
decreased from $1.341 billion at year-end 2010 to $846.9 million at December 31, 2011.

During the three months ended December 31, 2011, the outstanding balance of Tranche B debt increased from $439.9
million to $443.3 million and the outstanding balance of Tranche C debt increased from $182.4 million to $189.5
million, due to the addition of accrued interest for which cash was not available to pay the interest due.  In addition,
during the three months ended December 31, 2011, the outstanding balance of Tranche A debt increased slightly from
$175.5 million to $176.0 million due to the addition of accrued interest for which cash was not available to pay all the
interest due.  As a result, the total balance of debt outstanding under the Legacy Credit Agreement increased from
$797.8 million at September 30, 2011 to $808.8 million at December 31, 2011.

As a result of the surrender of the REIT Securities and the payment of dividends by the REIT for the last two quarters
of 2010 and the full year of 2011, the total balance of debt outstanding under the Legacy Credit Agreement decreased
from $1.341 billion at December 31, 2010 to $808.8 million at year-end 2011.

The Legacy Credit Agreement contains representations, warranties, covenants and events of default (the “Legacy
Credit Agreement Defaults”) that are customary in transactions similar to the Restructuring.  The Legacy Credit
Agreement (as amended) is secured by a first priority security interest in (i) the REIT Securities; (ii) the Participant
Trust Certificates; (iii) an undivided 16.72039% interest in the consumer mortgage loans and real estate owned
properties transferred to and still held by the Trust; (iv) 100% equity interests in all direct and indirect subsidiaries of
Franklin Holding (other than FCMC), pledged by Franklin Holding (v) all amounts owing pursuant to any deposit
account or securities account of any Company entities bound to the Legacy Credit Agreement (other than Franklin
Holding), (vi) all monies owing to any borrower from any taxing authority; (vii) any commercial tort or other claim of
FCMC, Franklin Holding, or any borrower; (viii) a second-priority lien on cash collateral held as security for the
Licensing Credit Agreement to FCMC; (ix) any monies, funds or sums due or received by any borrower in respect of
any program sponsored by any Governmental Authority, any federal program, federal agency or quasi-governmental
agency, including without limitation any fees received, directly or indirectly, under the U.S. Treasury Homeowners
Affordability and Stability Plan; and, (x) the Deferred Payment Agreement.  Any security agreement,
acknowledgement or other agreement in respect of a lien or encumbrance on any asset of the Trust shall be
non-recourse in nature and shall permit the Trust to distribute, without qualification, 83.27961% of all net collections
received by the Trust to the REIT Sub and its subsidiaries irrespective of any event or condition in respect of the
Legacy Credit Agreement.
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All collections received by the Trust, provided that an event of default has not occurred and is continuing, shall go
first to the payment of monthly servicing fees under the servicing agreement with the Trust, as amended (the “Servicing
Agreement”) and then to (i) Administration Fees, expenses and costs (if any), (ii) pro rata to the owner trustee,
certificate trustee and each custodian for any due and unpaid fees and expenses of such trustee and/or custodian, and
(iii) to the pro rata ownership of the Trust Certificates.  All amounts received pursuant to the Participants Trust
Certificates shall be distributed pursuant to the applicable “Waterfall” provisions.

On September 22, 2010, the Legacy Credit Agreement with the Bank was amended.  Various definitions, terms and
FCMC-related covenants were amended to permit a future transfer, sale, restructuring or spinoff of the ownership of
FCMC, subject to a review and final approval of the Bank; the equity interests of FCHC in FCMC that had been
pledged to the Bank in March 2009 and the Bank’s lien on a certain commercial condominium unit of FCMC were
released; and the Deferred Payment Agreement (which is guaranteed and collateralized by Mr. Axon) to pay the Bank
10% of the cumulative proceeds, minus $4 million, from any qualifying transactions (including dividends or
distributions) that monetize FCMC’s value or significant assets prior to March 20, 2019 was added as collateral; and,
the limited guarantee of FCMC was released, cancelled, and discharged.  In addition, on September 22, 2010, the
Bank eliminated all cross-default provisions to the Licensing Credit Agreement and Servicing Agreement of FCMC
with the Trust (for the remaining loans and real estate owned properties that continue to be held by the Trust) that
could have triggered a default resulting from a default under the Legacy Credit Agreement.  On May 23, 2011, FCHC
was removed as a guarantor under the Legacy Credit Agreement.  FCHC, however, remains a pledgor under the
Pledge Agreement, which includes a pledge of 100% of the equity interests in all direct and indirect subsidiaries of
FCHC other than FCMC.

3.  Entered into an amended and restated credit agreement to fund FCMC’s licensing obligations and working capital.

On March 31, 2009, in connection with the Restructuring, Franklin Holding and FCMC entered into the Licensing
Credit Agreement, which included a credit limit of $13.5 million, comprised of a secured (i) revolving line of credit
(“Revolving Facility”) up to the principal amount outstanding at any time of $2.0 million, (ii) up to the aggregate stated
amount outstanding at any time for letters of credit of $6.5 million, and (iii) a draw credit facility (“Draw Facility”) up to
the principal amount outstanding at any time of $5.0 million.

On March 26, 2010, Franklin Holding and FCMC entered into an amendment to the Licensing Credit Agreement with
the Bank, which renewed and extended the Licensing Credit Agreement entered into with the Bank on March 31,
2009 as part of the Restructuring.  The Amendment reduced the Draw Facility from $5.0 million to $4.0 million and
extended the termination date to May 31, 2010, which expired unrenewed, and extended the termination date for the
$2.0 million revolving line of credit and $6.5 million letter of credit facilities to March 31, 2011.
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On July 16, 2010, the Licensing Credit Agreement was amended to reduce the revolving line of credit from $2 million
to $1 million and to reduce the cash collateral securing the revolving loan and letter of credit facilities from
$8.5 million to $7.5 million.

On September 22, 2010, Franklin Holding and FCMC entered into a further amendment to the Licensing Credit
Agreement.  Various definitions, terms and FCMC-related covenants were amended to extend the revolving line of
credit and letter of credit facilities to September 30, 2011; permit a future transfer, sale, restructuring or spinoff of the
ownership of FCMC, subject to a review and final approval of the Bank; release Bank liens on certain corporate
condominium units of FCMC (subject to payment in full of Mr. Axon’s Note, which was due in full on November 22,
2010, and which has been paid and subject liens have been released); eliminate any cross defaults resulting from any
default under the Legacy Credit Agreement; permit the incurrence of liabilities for indebtedness subject to the prior
written consent of the Bank, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed; and eliminate the provision
that FCMC shall, to the extent permitted by applicable law, no less frequently than semi-annually, within forty-five
days after each June 30th and December 31st of each calendar year, make pro rata dividends, distributions and
payments to FCMC’s shareholders and the Bank under the Legacy Credit Agreement.  In addition, the Bank cancelled
and terminated the obligation of FCMC, entered into on July 16, 2010, to make payments aggregating $3 million to
the Bank based upon FCMC’s EBITDA over a three-year period.

The Revolving Facility and the letters of credit are used to assure that all state licensing requirements of FCMC are
met and to pay approved expenses of the Company.  The Draw Facility was available, although never utilized by the
Company, for the purpose of providing working capital for FCMC, if needed, and amounts drawn and repaid under
this facility could not be re-borrowed.

The principal sum shall be due and payable in full on the earlier of the date that the advances under the Licensing
Credit Agreement, as amended, are due and payable in full pursuant to the terms of the agreement, whether by
acceleration or otherwise, or at maturity.  Advances under the Revolving Facility shall bear interest at the one-month
reserve adjusted LIBOR plus a margin of 8%.  There is a requirement to make monthly payments of interest accrued
on the Advances under the Revolving Facility.  After any default, all advances and letters of credit shall bear interest
at 5% in excess of the rate of interest then in effect.

The Licensing Credit Agreement, as amended, contains warranties, representations, covenants and events of default
that are customary in transactions similar to the March 2009 Restructuring.

The Licensing Credit Agreement, as amended (and following the payment of Mr. Axon’s Note in November 2010), is
secured by (i) a first priority security interest in FCMC’s cash equivalents in a controlled account maintained at the
Bank in an amount satisfactory to the Bank, but not less than $8.5 million (which, effective June 20, 2010, is $7.5
million), (ii) blanket existing lien on all personal property of FCMC, and (iii) any monies or sums due FCMC in
respect of any program sponsored by any Governmental Authority, including without limitation any fees received,
directly or indirectly, under the U.S. Treasury Homeowners Affordability and Stability Plan.

The Draw Facility had been guaranteed by Thomas J. Axon, Chairman of the Board of Directors and a principal
stockholder of the Company.  In consideration for his guaranty, the Bank and the Company’s Audit Committee each
had consented in March 2009 to the payment to Mr. Axon equal to 10% of FCMC’s common shares.

On May 23, 2011, the term of the Licensing Credit Agreement was extended to September 30, 2012, and the financial
covenant that FCHC and FCMC maintain a minimum amount of net income before taxes was deleted.
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4.  Entered into a servicing agreement with the Trust.

The Servicing Agreement, which was entered into on March 31, 2009 and subsequently amended on August 1, 2010
and September 22, 2010, governs the servicing by FCMC, as the servicer (the “Servicer”) for the loans and real estate
owned properties owned by the Trust.  The Trust and/or the Bank as the administrator of the Trust (the “Administrator”)
have significant control over all aspects of the servicing by FCMC for the Trust.  On September 22, 2010, the
Servicing Agreement was amended to eliminate any cross-default provisions resulting from any default under the
Legacy Credit Agreement.  On December 22, 2010, the Bank terminated the Servicing Agreement and the servicing of
all assets by FCMC for the Trust (which as of December 31, 2010 consisted of only REO assets) effective March 24,
2011, which was extended through August 31, 2011.  Since then, the servicing arrangement for the REO assets has
been continued on essentially a month-to-month basis.

12.  SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS (FINANCING AGREEMENT)

At December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, FCMC had no balance outstanding under the revolving line of the
Licensing Credit Agreement with the Bank, which in prior years was shown in the Company’s financial statements as
Financing agreement.

The Company, FCHC and FCMC only, has available credit under a revolving loan facility of $1 million and a $6.5
million letter of credit facility with the Bank, and cash collateral securing the revolving loan and letter of credit
facilities of $7.5 million.  The Licensing Credit Agreement expires on September 30, 2012.

13.  NONCONTROLLING INTEREST

For the Company’s consolidated majority-owned subsidiary (FCMC) in which the Company owns less than 100% of
the total outstanding common shares of stock, the Company recognizes a noncontrolling interest for the ownership
interest of the noncontrolling interest holder, the Company’s Chairman and President, and principal stockholder,
Thomas J. Axon.  The noncontrolling interest represents the minority stockholder’s proportionate share of the equity of
FCMC.  At December 31, 2011, the Company owned 80% of FCMC’s capital stock, and Mr. Axon owned 20%.  The
20% equity interest of FCMC that is not owned by the Company is shown as Noncontrolling interest in subsidiary in
the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The change in the carrying amount of the noncontrolling interest for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 is
as follows:

2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year $ 3,174,632 $ 1,657,275

Transfer of additional 10% ownership - 1,516,381
Net (loss)/income attributed to noncontrolling interest (259,622 ) 976
Non-dividend distribution (122,405 ) -

Balance, end of year  $ 2,792,605 $ 3,174,632

On March 31, 2009, the Company transferred ten percent of its ownership in common stock of FCMC to its Chairman
and President, Thomas J. Axon, as the cost of obtaining certain guarantees and pledges from Mr. Axon, which were
required by the Bank as a condition of the March 2009 Restructuring entered into by the Company and certain of its
wholly-owned direct and indirect subsidiaries on March 31, 2009.  On September 22, 2010, in consideration for Mr.
Axon’s undertaking the obligations required of him under the September 2010 Transaction agreements, and various
guarantees and concessions previously and currently provided by Mr. Axon for the benefit of FCMC and FCHC,
FCHC transferred to Mr. Axon an additional 10% of FCMC’s outstanding shares of common stock.  When combined
with FCMC shares already directly owned by Mr. Axon, the Chairman and President of FCHC and FCMC now
directly owns 20% of FCMC, while the remaining 80% of FCMC is owned by FCHC and its public shareholders
(including Mr. Axon as a principal shareholder of FCHC’s publicly owned shares).

The non-dividend distribution of $122,000 during 2011 represents the noncontrolling interest portion of an
intercompany receivable in the amount of $612,000 due from FCHC to its servicing subsidiary company (FCMC),
which was charged off by FCMC in 2011 as not collectible.

14.  INCOME TAXES

Components of the provision/(benefit) for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as
follows:

2011 2010
Current provision/(benefit):
Federal $ - $ (150,000 )
State and local - (112,447 )

- (262,447 )

Deferred provision/(benefit):
Federal 2,603,554 (17,470,107)
State and local 226,396 (1,519,140 )

2,829,950 (18,989,247)
(Decrease)/increase in valuation allowance (2,829,950) 18,989,247
Tax (benefit) $ - $ (262,447 )
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A reconciliation of the anticipated income tax (benefit), computed by applying the Federal statutory income tax rate to
income before provision for income taxes, to the provision for income taxes in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

2011 2010
Tax determined by applying U.S. statutory rate to income $ 7,474,000 $ (18,881,901)
Increase in taxes resulting from:
State and local taxes, net of Federal benefit (4,652,628) (3,119,250 )
(Decrease)/increase in valuation allowance (2,829,950) 18,989,247
Basis adjustment - 3,045,497
Change in tax estimate - (304,447 )
Non-deductible expenses 8,578 8,407
Tax (benefit) $ - $ (262,447 )

The following table provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of the Company’s uncertain tax
positions:

2011 2010
Uncertain tax positions, January 1 $ 638,727 $ 943,174

Decreases relating to positions taken during prior years (251,000) (567,041)
Increases relating to positions taken during the current year 251,000 262,594

Uncertain tax positions, December 31 $ 638,727 $ 638,727

During 2011, the Company recorded a current provision of $251,000 and a reduction in a prior year’s uncertain tax
position of $251,000 and a net decrease in its uncertain tax position during 2010 of $304,000 in its consolidated
statements of operations.  The Company is not aware of any uncertain tax positions that will significantly increase or
decrease within the next twelve months.  The Company’s major tax jurisdictions are Federal and the states of New
Jersey and New York, which remain subject to examination from and including the years 2007 to 2010 for the states
of New Jersey and New York, and from and including the years 2008 to 2010 by the Internal Revenue Service for its
Federal returns.  The IRS examination of tax years 2005 through 2007 concluded during 2010 with a favorable
settlement, and as a result, the Company in 2010 reversed a $150,000 reserve for this audit determination.  The
Company also decreased the reserve by approximately $417,000 for other uncertain tax positions during 2010.  The
Company is not currently under examination by any taxing authorities.
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to deferred income tax assets and liabilities at December 31,
2011 and 2010 are presented below:

2011 2010
Deferred tax liabilities:
Loans to subsidiary
companies                                                                      $ 6,629,225 $ 6,629,225
Restricted stock                                                                      - 3,060
Investment in trust
certificates                                                                      882,822 -
Loan commitment
fees                                                                      1,070,237 1,530,534
Other                                                                      169,725 197,973
Deferred tax
liabilities                                                                $ 8,752,009 $ 8,360,792

Deferred tax assets:
Loan basis                                                                      $ - $ 7,936,451
Derivative
liabilities                                                                      - 1,130,512
Tax hedge                                                                      - 1,048,315
Investment in REIT
securities                                                                      - 46,963,223
Acquisition
costs                                                                      123,165 185,881
State net operating loss
carryforwards                                                                      19,530,009 11,829,359
Deferred costs                                                                      1,351,325 1,351,325
Federal net operating loss
carryforwards                                                                      94,699,493 48,828,171
Other                                                                      635,870 635,870
Deferred tax assets                                                                116,339,862 119,909,107
Valuation
allowance                                                                (107,587,853) (111,548,315)

Net deferred tax
liability                                                                $ - $ -

The Company recorded a valuation allowance of $107.6 million and $111.5 million, as of December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively, as the Company has determined that it is more likely than not that all of the deferred tax assets will
not be fully realizable.  As of December 31, 2010, the valuation allowance includes $1.1 million that was recorded in
Other accumulated comprehensive (loss).

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had tax net operating loss carryforwards with various states totaling
approximately $328.8 million.  As of December 31, 2011, the Company had Federal tax net operating loss
carryforwards of approximately $278.5 million.  The net operating loss carryforwards expire in various years
beginning in 2015 through 2031.
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15.  STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company awarded stock options to certain officers and directors under the Franklin Credit Management
Corporation 1996 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) as amended.  The Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors (the “Compensation Committee”) determines which eligible employees or directors will receive awards, the
types of awards to be received, and the terms and conditions thereof.

Options granted under the Plan may be designated as either incentive stock options or non-qualified stock
options.  The Compensation Committee determines the terms and conditions of the option, including the time or times
at which an option may be exercised, the methods by which such exercise price may be paid, and the form of such
payment.  Options are generally granted with an exercise price equal to the market value of the Company’s stock at the
date of grant.  These option awards generally vest over 1 to 3 years and have a contractual term of 10 years.

The Company estimated the fair value of stock options granted on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model.  The table below presents the assumptions used to estimate the fair value of stock options
granted on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010.  The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the stock option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield
curve in effect at the time of grant.  The Company uses historical data to estimate stock option exercise.  The expected
term of stock options granted is derived from the output of the model and represents the period of time that stock
options granted are expected to be outstanding.  The estimates of fair value from these models are theoretical values
for stock options and changes in the assumptions used in the models could result in materially different fair value
estimates.  The actual value of the stock options will depend on the market value of the Company’s common stock
when the stock options are exercised.

Incentive Stock Options
Non-Qualified Stock

Options
2011 2010 2011 2010

Risk-free interest rate - - 3.88 % 3.26 %
Weighted average volatility - - 150.56 % 123.51 %
Expected lives (years) - - 10.0 10.0

Transactions in stock options for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 under the plan are summarized as
follows:

2011 2010

Shares

Weighted
Average

Price Shares

Weighted
Average

Price
Outstanding options, beginning 229,000 $ 3.64 301,000 $ 3.81

Options granted 12,000 0.14 12,000 0.13
Options cancelled (11,000 ) 0.95 (84,000 ) 3.75

Outstanding options, end 230,000 3.58 229,000 3.64

Options unvested (20,000 ) 1.75 (40,000 ) 1.75

Options exercisable, end 210,000 $ 3.76 189,000 $ 4.04
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As of December 31, 2011, the weighted average remaining contractual term and aggregate intrinsic value of options
outstanding and exercisable was 4.93 years and $0, respectively.
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The Company has the following options outstanding at December 31, 2011:

Range of exercise price of
options:

Number
Outstanding

Number
Exercisable

$0.13 12,000 12,000
$0.14 12,000 12,000
$0.30 12,000 12,000
$0.75 23,000 23,000
$0.89 12,000 12,000
$1.75 80,000 60,000
$2.25 11,000 11,000
$3.55 12,000 12,000
$4.98 12,000 12,000
$7.73 12,000 12,000
$12.85 12,000 12,000
$13.75 20,000 20,000

TOTAL OPTIONS 230,000 210,000

Weighted average exercise
price $                   3.58 $                   3.76

Compensation cost related to the Company’s stock option awards was $20,807 for the year ended December 31,
2011.  Compensation cost related to the Company’s stock option awards was $20,643 for the year ended December 31,
2010.  As of December 31, 2011, unrecognized compensation cost related to the Company’s stock option awards was
$5,958, which will be recognized over a weighted average period of 0.33 years.

2006 Stock Incentive Plan

On May 24, 2006, the shareholders approved the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan.  This approval authorized and reserved
750,000 shares for grant under the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan.  Awards can consist of non-qualified stock options,
incentive stock options, stock appreciation rights, shares of restricted stock, restricted stock units, shares of
unrestricted stock, performance shares and dividend equivalent rights are authorized.  Grants of non-qualified stock
options, incentive stock options and stock appreciation rights under the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan generally qualify as
“performance-based compensation” under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code, and, therefore, are not subject
to the provisions of Section 162(m), which disallow a federal income tax deduction for certain compensation in excess
of $1 million per year paid to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and each of its four other most highly
compensated executive officers.

•     Restricted Stock – Restricted shares of the Company’s common stock have been awarded to certain executives.  The
stock awards are subject to restrictions on transferability and other restrictions, and step vest over a three-year period.
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A summary of the status of the Company’s restricted stock awards as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and changes
during the periods then ended is presented below:

2011 2010

Restricted Stock Shares

Weighted
Average

Fair
Value Shares

Weighted
Average

Fair
Value

Outstanding unvested grants, beginning of
year 8,500 $ 1.00 - $ -
Granted                                   - $ - 17,000 $ 1.00
Vested                                                      (8,500 ) $ 1.00 (8,500 ) $ 1.00
Canceled                                                      - $ - - $ -

Outstanding unvested grants, end of year - $ - 8,500 $ 1.00

Compensation cost related to the Company’s restricted stock awards was less than $1,000 for the year ended December
31, 2011 and $17,000 for the year ended December 31, 2010.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the total fair value of the Company’s restricted stock that vested was
$8,500.

16.  CERTAIN CONCENTRATIONS

Third Party Servicing Agreements – The Company’s operating business is conducted solely through FCMC, which is a
specialty consumer finance company primarily engaged in the servicing and resolution of performing, reperforming
and nonperforming residential mortgage loans, including specialized loan collection and recovery servicing, for third
parties.  The portfolios serviced for other entities, as of December 31, 2011, were heavily concentrated with loans
serviced for related parties (which consist primarily of loans previously acquired and originated by the Company,
transferred to the Trust and then subsequently sold by the Trust to third parties).  As of December 31, 2011, FCMC
had four significant servicing contracts with third parties to service 1-4 family mortgage loans and owned real estate;
three with related parties (Bosco I, Bosco II and Bosco III); and one with an unrelated third party.  At December 31,
2011, we serviced and provided recovery collection services on a total population of approximately 21,000 loans, with
approximately $899 million of unpaid principal balance, for the Bosco-related entities, including Bosco IV.
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The following table summarizes percentages of total principal balances by the geographic location of properties
securing the residential mortgage loans serviced for other entities at December 31, 2011:

Location
December 31,

2011
California                                              26.31 %
Florida                                              8.94 %
New Jersey                                              6.62 %
New York                                              6.59 %
Texas                                              5.49 %
Illinois                                              3.28 %
Pennsylvania                                              3.27 %
Ohio                                              3.06 %
Georgia                                              2.90 %
Michigan                                              2.89 %
All Others                                              30.65 %

100.00 %

Financing – Substantially all of the Company’s existing debt and available credit facility is with one financial
institution, Huntington.

17.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases – During 2005, the Company entered into two operating lease agreements for corporate office space,
which contain provisions for future rent increases, rent-free periods, or periods in which rent payments are reduced
(abated).  The total amount of rental payments due over the lease term is being charged to rent expense on the
straight-line method over the term of the lease.  The difference between rent expense recorded and the amount paid is
credited or charged to “accrued expenses,” which is included in Accounts payable and accrued expenses on the
Company’s balance sheets.  The Company’s aggregate rent expenses for 2011 and 2010 amounted to $1,350,000 and
$1,390,000, respectively.

The combined future minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2011 are as follows:

Year Ended Amount
2012                                          $ 1,597,107
2013                                          1,597,107

$ 3,194,214

Substantially all of the Company’s office equipment is leased under multiple operating leases.  The combined future
minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2011 are as follows:

Year Ended Amount
2012                                          $ 59,937
2013                                          59,937
2014                                          48,824
Thereafter                                          3,766

$ 172,464
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Capital Leases – The Company entered into a lease for office furniture for its corporate office under an agreement that
is classified as a capital lease.  The cost of the furniture under this capital lease, included on the balance sheets as
“Building, furniture and equipment, net” was originally $916,890.  The lease was fully depreciated in
2010.  Amortization of assets under capital leases is included on the Company’s consolidated statements of operations
in Depreciation.

Legal Actions – The Company is involved in legal proceedings and litigation arising in the ordinary course of
business.  In the opinion of management, the outcome of such proceedings and litigation currently pending will not
materially affect the Company’s financial statements.

18.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At December 31, 2011, our servicing and collection business, conducted through FCMC, consisted of approximately
21,600 first and second-lien loans for the Bosco entities, which are related-party entities of FCMC: approximately
2,100 home equity loans for Bosco I; approximately 18,400 subordinate-lien loans for Bosco II; approximately 500
actively serviced first and subordinate-lien loans that are in principally bankruptcy, foreclosure or charge-off statuses,
and approximately 600 actively serviced loans (representing 100% of the loans securing the Unrestructured Debt)
underlying a 50% participation interest in each of the commercial loans to the Company covering that portion of the
Company’s Unrestructured Debt with the Bank, for Bosco III; and, approximately nine (9) real estate owned properties
serviced for Bosco IV.

Included in the Company’s consolidated revenues were servicing fees recognized from servicing the portfolios for the
Bosco entities of $6.4 million and $2.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Bosco I Servicing Agreement – On May 28, 2008, FCMC entered into various agreements, including a servicing
agreement, to service on a fee-paying basis for Bosco I approximately $245 million in residential home equity line of
credit mortgage loans.  Bosco I was organized by FCMC, and the membership interests in Bosco I include the
Company’s Chairman and President, Thomas J. Axon, and a related company of which Mr. Axon is the chairman of
the board and three of the Company’s directors serve as board members.  The loans that are subject to the servicing
agreement were acquired by Bosco I on May 28, 2008.  FCMC’s servicing agreement was approved by its Audit
Committee.  The Bosco I lending agreement expired on May 28, 2011 without being renewed or extended.  Although
Bosco I is still the owner of the collateral and FCMC remains as the servicer of the mortgage loans, it is uncertain
whether the lenders at some time in the future will foreclose on the collateral or continue in the foreseeable future to
permit FCMC to remain the servicer of the mortgage loans.  The Bosco I servicing agreement also expired on May 28,
2011.

Included in the Company’s consolidated revenues were servicing fees recognized from servicing the Bosco I portfolio
of $607,000 and $501,000 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  On February 27,
2009, at the request of the Bosco I lenders, FCMC adopted a revised fee structure, which was approved by FCMC’s
Audit Committee.  The revised fee structure provided that, for the next 12 months, FCMC’s monthly servicing fee
would be paid only after a monthly loan modification fee of $29,167 was paid to Bosco I’s lenders.  Further, the
revised fee structure provided that, on each monthly payment date, if the aggregate amount of net collections was less
than $1 million, 25% of FCMC’s servicing fee would be paid only after certain other monthly distributions were made,
including, among other things, payments made by Bosco I to repay its third-party indebtedness.
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On October 29, 2009, at the additional request of the Bosco I lenders in an effort to maximize cash flow to the Bosco I
lenders and to avoid payment defaults by Bosco I, the revised fee structure relating to deferred fees was adjusted
through an amendment to the loan servicing agreement with Bosco I (the “Bosco Amendment”), which was approved by
FCMC’s Audit Committee.

Under the terms of the Bosco Amendment, FCMC is entitled to a minimum monthly servicing fee of
$50,000.  However, to the extent that the servicing fee otherwise paid for any month would be in excess of the greater
of $50,000 or 10% of the total cash collected on the loans serviced for Bosco I (such amount being the “Monthly Cap”),
the excess will be deferred, without the accrual of interest.  The cumulative amounts deferred will be paid (i) with the
payment of the monthly servicing fee, to the maximum extent possible, for any month in which the servicing fee is
less than the applicable Monthly Cap, so long as the sum paid does not exceed the Monthly Cap or (ii) to the extent
not previously paid, on the date on which any of the promissory notes (“Notes”) payable by Bosco I to the lenders,
which were entered into to finance the purchase of and are secured by the loans serviced by FCMC, is repaid,
refinanced, released, accelerated, or the amounts owing thereunder increased (other than by accrual or capitalization of
interest).  If the deferred servicing fees become payable by reason of acceleration of the Notes, the lenders’ right to
payment under such Notes shall be prior in right to FCMC’s rights to such deferred fees.

The Bosco Amendment did not alter FCMC’s right to receive a certain percentage of collections in the event Bosco I’s
indebtedness to the Lenders has been repaid in full, the Bosco I equity holders have been repaid in full the equity
investment in Bosco I made prior to Bosco I entering into the loan agreement with the lenders, and the lenders and
Bosco I’s equity holders have received a specified rate of return on their debt and equity investments.

At December 31, 2010, the Company charged off as uncollectible $299,000 of accrued and unpaid servicing fees due
from Bosco I that represented the remaining portion of outstanding servicing fees due and unpaid prior to August 1,
2009, due to current disputes among Bosco I and its lenders regarding the May 28, 2011 maturity of the Bosco I loan
agreement.  As of December 31, 2011, the Company had no outstanding accrued and unpaid servicing fees due from
Bosco I other than the servicing fee due for the current month of December 31, 2011, which was received in January
2012, and $21,000 in outstanding reimbursable third-party expenses incurred by FCMC in the servicing and collection
of the Bosco I loans.  As of December 31, 2011, no deferred servicing fees per the Bosco I amendments have been
accrued, and all such amounts remain unpaid.

Bosco II Servicing Agreement – On September 22, 2010, FCMC entered into a servicing agreement with Bosco II and
a trust to service and collect loans purchased by Bosco II from an indirect subsidiary of the Bank’s Trust. 100% of the
membership interest in Bosco II is held by the Company’s Chairman and President, Thomas J. Axon.  The Bosco II
Servicing Agreement governs the servicing of approximately 19,300 loans.  Pursuant to the Bosco II Servicing
Agreement, FCMC services the loans subject to customary terms, conditions and servicing practices for the mortgage
servicing industry.  The Bosco II Servicing Agreement may be terminated without cause and penalty upon thirty days
prior written notice.

FCMC also provided the loan analysis and certain other services for Bosco II for the loans acquired by Bosco II and
FCMC performs various administrative and bookkeeping services for Bosco II at the rate of $1,500 per
month.  FCMC’s servicing agreement and administrative services agreement with Bosco II were approved by its Audit
Committee.
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Included in the Company’s consolidated revenues were servicing fees recognized from servicing the Bosco II portfolio
for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 of approximately $5.4 million and $2.0 million,
respectively.

Bosco III Servicing Agreement and Participation Interest in Unrestructured Debt with the Bank – In January 2011,
effective December 2010, FCMC entered into a servicing agreement with Bosco III to service and collect charge-off
loans purchased by Bosco III from the Bank’s Trust (the remaining loans held by the Bank’s Trust) and purchased from
the Bank a 50% participation interest in each of the commercial loans to the Company covering that portion of the
Company’s debt with the Bank, the Unrestructured Debt, in the amount of approximately $39 million (FCMC is the
loan servicer for certain Company entities that are the beneficial owners of the loans securing the Unrestructured
Debt).  50% of the membership interest in Bosco III is held by the Company’s Chairman and President, Thomas J.
Axon.

The Bosco III servicing agreement, as amended in January and April 2011, governs the servicing of approximately
4,300 of first and subordinate-lien loans that are in principally bankruptcy, foreclosure or charge-off statuses
(including the loans securing the Unrestructured Debt), of which substantially fewer loans are actively serviced by
FCMC.  Pursuant to the Bosco III Servicing Agreement, FCMC services the loans subject generally to customary
terms, conditions and servicing practices for the mortgage servicing industry.  FCMC’s services may be terminated
with respect to some or all of the assets without cause and without penalty on 30 days prior written notice.  From time
to time, reimbursement of third-party expenses advanced by FCMC as servicer in the normal course of servicing the
Bosco III portfolio may be deferred when collections are not sufficient to cover the full amount of such
expenses.  When third-party expense reimbursements are deferred, payment terms are established based on future
servicing cash collections.

FCMC also provided the loan analysis and certain other services for Bosco III for the loans acquired by Bosco
III.  FCMC’s servicing agreement with Bosco III was ratified by its Audit Committee.

Included in the Company’s consolidated revenues for the year ended December 31, 2011 were servicing fees
recognized from servicing the Bosco III portfolio of approximately $366,000.  Servicing fees recognized from
servicing the Bosco III portfolio for the year 2010 were not significant.

Bosco IV Servicing Agreement – In May 2011, the Bank’s Trust sold thirteen (13) of its remaining REO properties to
Bosco IV, a third-party entity controlled by Mr. Axon.

Pursuant to the Bosco IV Servicing Agreement, FCMC services the REO properties subject to customary terms,
conditions and servicing practices for the mortgage servicing industry.  FCMC’s services may be terminated with
respect to some or all of the assets without cause and without penalty on 30 days prior written notice.  From time-to-
time reimbursement of third-party expenses advanced by FCMC as servicer in the normal course of servicing the
Bosco IV portfolio may be deferred when collections are not sufficient to cover the full amount of such
expenses.  When third-party expense reimbursements are deferred, payment terms are established based on future
servicing cash collections.

Included in the Company’s consolidated revenues for the year ended December 31, 2011 were servicing fees
recognized from servicing the Bosco IV portfolio of approximately $11,000.

Other Related Party Transactions with the Company’s Chairman – At December 31, 2011, the Company had an
outstanding receivable from an affiliate, RMTS, LLC, of $2,000.  This receivable represents various operating
expenses that are paid by the Company and then reimbursed by RMTS.
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On September 13, 2010, FCMC’s Audit Committee authorized a 22% commission (minus certain expenses) to Hudson
Servicing Solutions, LLC (“Hudson”), a procurer of force-placed insurance products for FCMC, with respect to
force-placed hazard insurance coverage maintained on FCMC’s remaining portfolio of mortgage loans and mortgage
loans serviced for third parties.  The sole member of Hudson is RMTS, LLC, of which Mr. Axon, the Company’s
Chairman and President, is the majority owner.

FCMC entered into a collection services agreement, effective December 23, 2009, pursuant to which FCMC agreed to
serve as collection agent in the customary manner in connection with approximately 4,000 seriously delinquent and
generally unsecured loans, with an unpaid principal balance of approximately $56 million, which were acquired by
two trusts set up by a fund in which the Company’s Chairman and President is a member, and contributed 50% of the
purchase price and agreed to pay certain fund expenses.  Under the collection services agreement, FCMC is entitled to
collection fees consisting of a percentage of the gross amount collected.  The agreement also provides for
reimbursement of third-party fees and expenses incurred by FCMC.  The collection fees earned by FCMC under this
collection services agreement during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 amounted to
approximately $47,000 and $116,000, respectively.  In December 2010, FCMC entered into an agreement with the
fund to provide certain administrative and bookkeeping services for a fee of $1,500 per month.

On February 1, 2010, FCMC entered into a collection services agreement, pursuant to which FCMC agreed to serve as
collection agent in the customary manner in connection with approximately 1,500 seriously delinquent and generally
unsecured loans, with an unpaid principal balance of approximately $85 million, which were acquired through a trust
set up by a fund in which the Company’s Chairman and President is a member, and contributed 25% of the purchase
price.  Under the collection services agreement, FCMC is entitled to collection fees consisting of a percentage of the
amount collected, net of third-party expenses.  The agreement also provides for reimbursement of third-party fees and
expenses incurred by FCMC in compliance with the collection services agreement.  The collection fees earned by
FCMC under this collection services agreement during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 were
not significant.

19.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

New Servicing Agreement with Bosco II

On February 8, 2012, FCMC, entered into a terms agreement (the “Terms Agreement”), effective April 1, 2012, with the
trust for Bosco II to service an additional pool of approximately seven thousand subordinate-lien residential mortgage
loans for a monthly servicing fee principally based on a percentage of monthly net collections.  FCMC is entitled to
reimbursement of certain third-party fees and expenses incurred by FCMC in the servicing and collection of the
loans.  The servicing of these loans may be terminated without cause and penalty upon thirty days prior written notice.

FCMC facilitated the purchase of the loans by the trust and Bosco II in order to enter into the Terms Agreement and
obtain the subservicing of the additional Bosco II pool of loans by temporarily advancing $650,000, which has since
been reimbursed, toward the purchase price of such loans.

Office Condominium Lease

In January 2012, the Company entered into a lease for approximately 5,877 square feet of condominium office space
in New York City for a term ending in mid-February 2015 with a base rent of $204,000 annually, payable in monthly
installments of $17,000, with annual rent escalations.

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the issuance of these Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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